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The Group’s financial highlghts

Economic figures {Thsd Euros) 2015 % 2014 % 2013 %
Revenue 705601 100 632184 1000 560,151 100
Gross operating Income 98736 140 8519 135 72,600 130
Cperatung ncome S0 558 128 80663 128 64,171 ns
Income before taxes 88 930 126 79 267 125 61732 10
Group net ncome 56,748 80 47 909 76 34 449 62
Finanaal figures (Thsd Euros) 2015 2014 2013
Group shareholders' equity 295,425 251908 211808
Non-controfing interest 653 936 799
Total assets 700745 616 712 549 531
Net working capital 162 566 134341 124 373
Net invested capnal 267893 236531 207,596
Cash flow 44 334 49,578 44132
Net financigl position 28186 16 313 50N
Data per share {(in Euros) 2015 2014 2013
Number of shares 9352857 9 352 857 9307 857
Qperating income per share 968 862 G B9
Net result per shares 6 07 512 370
Cash flow per share 474 530 474
Shareholders’ equity per share 3158 2693 2276
Other information 2015 2014 2013
Number of employees 5,245 4,689 4253
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Trend in the prnnciple economic indicators
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Main risks and uncertainties to which Reply S p.A and

the Group are exposed

The Reply Group adopts spectiic procedures in managing risk factors that can have an influence on company
results Such procedures are a result of an enterprnse management that has always aimed at maximizing
value for its stakeholders putting into place all necessary measures to prevent risks related to the Group
activities

Reply Sp A, as Parent Company, 1s exposed to the same nisks and uncertaintres as those te which the Group
Is exposed and which are listed below

The risk factors described in the paragraphs below must be jointly read with the other information disclosed
in the Annual Report

External risks

Risks associated with general economic conditions

The informatics consultancy market 1s strictly related to the economic trend of industntalized countries where
the demand for highty innovative products 1s greater An unfavorable economic trend at a navonal and/or
international level or hugh inflatton could alter or reduce the growth of demand and consequently could have
negative effects on the Group's activities and on the Group’s economic, financial and earnings position

Risks associated with evolution in ICT services

The ICT service segment in which the Group operates 1s characterized by rapid and significant technologcal
changes and by constant evolution of the composition of the professionalism and skills to be combined in
the realizaton of such services, with the need to continuously develop and update new products and
services Therefore, future development of Group activittes will also depend on the capability of anticipating
the technological evolutions and contents of the Group's services even through significant investments in
research and development activities

Risks associated with competition

The ICT market 1s highly competitive Competitors could expand their market share squeezing out and
consequently reduce the Group’s market share Moreover the intensification of the level of competition is
also linked with possible entry of new entities endowed with human resources and financial and technological
capacities In the Group's reference sectors, offering largely competitive pnces which could condition the
Group's activities and the possibility of consolidating or amplifying 1ts own competiive position In the
reference sectors, with consequent repercussions on business and on the Group's economic earnings and
financial situation




Risks associated with increasing chent needs

The Group's solutions are subject to rapid technological changes that, together with the increasing needs of
customers and therr need to improve informatics, which results in a request of ncreasingly complex
development activities, sometimes requires excessive efforts that are not proportional to the economic
aspects This in some cases could result In negative effects on the Group’s aclvities and on the Group's
economic, financtal and earnings position

Risks associated with segment regulations

The actvities camed out by the Group are not subgect to any pariicular segment regulation

Internal risks

Risks associated with key management

The Group's success Is largely dependent on some key figures that have made a deaisive contribution to its
development, such as the Chairrman and the Executive Directors of the Parent Company Reply Sp A

Reply also has a leadership team {Senior Partner, Partner) with many years of expenence in the sector with a
decaisive role in the management of the Group’s business

The loss of any of these key figures without an adequate replacemeni or the inability to attract and retain
new, qualifiled personnel could therefore have an adverse effect upon the Group’s business prospects,
earnings and financial position

Management deems that In any case the Company has a sufficient operational and managernal structure
capable of guaranteeing continuity In the running of the business

Risks associated with relationship with chent

The Group offers consulting services mainly to medium and large size companies operating in different
market segmenis (Telco Manufacturing, Finance, etc)

A significant part of the Group’s revenues, although in a decreasing fashton in the past years, 1s concentrated
on a relatively hmited number of clients If such chents were lost this could have an adverse effect on the
Group's activilies and on the Group's economic, financial and earnings position

Risks associated with internationalization

The Group with an internationalization strategy, could be exposed to typical nsks denving from the execution
of its activities on an international level, such as changes in the political, macro-economic, fiscal and/or
normative field, along with fluctuations in exchange rates

These could negatively influence the Group s growth expectations abroad
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Risks associated with contractual obligations

The Group develops solutions with a high technological content of significant value, the underlying related
contracts can provide for the application of penalties in relation to timeliness and the qualitative standards
agreed upon The application of such penalties could have adverse effects on the Group's economig,
financial and earnings positicn

The Group has undersigned adequate precautionary insurance contracts against any nsk that could arise
under professional responsihility for an annual maximum amount deemed to be adequate in respect of the
actual nsk Should the insurance coverage not be adequate and the Group 1s called to compensate damages
greater than the amount covered, the Group's economic, financial and earnings position could be deeply
Jeopardized

Financial risks

Credit nsk

For business purposes, specific policies are adopted 10 assure its clients’ solvency

With regards to financial counterparty risk, the Group does not present significant nsk in credit-worthiness or
solvency

Ligquidity nsk

The group 1s exposed to funding nisk if there 1s difficulty in obtaining finance for operations at any given pont
n tme

The cash flows, funding requirements and hquidity of the Group’s compantes are momtored or centrally
managed under the control of the Group Treasury, with the objective of guaranieeing effective and efficient
management of capital resources (maintaining an adequate level of iquid assets and funds obtamable via an
appropnate committed credit line amount)

The difficult economic context of the markets and financial markets requires specific attention as regards the
management of iguidity risk and 1n such a way that particular atiention s given to shares tending to generate
financial resources with operational management and to maintaining an adequate level of lquid assets The
Group therefore plans to meet 1ts requirements to settle financial habiities as they fall due and to cover
expected capital expenditures by using cash flows from cperations and avallable hquidity, renewing or
refinancing bank loans

Exchange rate and interest rate risk

The exposure to interest rate nsk anses from the need to fund operating activies and M&A investments, as
well as the necessity to deploy available liquidity Changes in market interest rates may have the effect of
enther increasing or decreasing the Group's net profit/{loss) thereby indirectly affecting the costs and returns
of financing and investing transactions

The interest rate nsk to which the Group Is exposed denves from bank loans, to mitigate such nsks, the Group
has used denvative financial instruments designated as “cash flow hedges”

The use of such instruments 15 disciplined by written procedures in line with the Group's risk management
strategies that do not contemplate dernivative financial instruments for trading purposes
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Review of the Group’s economic and financial position

Foreword

The financial statements commented on and illustrated in the following pages have been prepared on the
basis of the Consohdated financial statements as at 31 December 2015 to which reference should be made,
prepared in compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS’) 1ssued by the
international Accounting Standards Board ("IASB”™) and adopted by the European Union, as well as with the
provistons implementing Article 9 of Legislative Decree No 38/2005

Trend of the period

The Reply Group closed the 2015 financial year with a consclidated turnover of €705 6 million, an Increase
of 116% compared to €632 2 million in the 2014 financial year

The EBITDA amounted to €98 7 million {€85% 1 milion in 2014), while the EBIT was established at €90 6 milion
(€80 7 milhon in 2014)

The Group's net result amounted to €56 7 million (€47 9 midlion in 2014)

Following the results achieved In the course of 2015, Reply's Board of Directors has decided to propose
distribution of a €100 per share dvidend at the next Shareholders' Meeting, which will become payable on
11t May 2016, with the coupon detachment date fixed at 9t May 2016 (record date 10t May 2016)

The net financial position of the Group on 31 December 2015 1s positive by €28 2 million, a substantial
improvement compared to €16 3 milion on 31 December 2014 In September 2015, the net financial position
was positive by €40 2 million

Reply has established tself in 2015, not only in terms of technological innovation, but alse in the main areas
of transformation that all companies are introducing to compete on the markets, charactenzed by continuous
interactions and exchanges between the physical and virtual worlds This transformation s no longer confined
to the digital doman, but its effects are also radically changing processes, production systems, logistics
chains, services and materal products

Reply 1s now considered, to all intents and purposes, one of the leaders in Europe, having a unigue mix of
skills, ranging from Strategic to the Design of digital technologies (Cloud Computing, Big Data, eCommerce,
Digital Expenence)

However, It is important — now more than ever — that Reply does not become complacent Reply must grasp
and understand the daily evolution and expansion of technology for processing algonthms and data, therr
transformation into relevant business mformation and their use In the automation of processes and decisions,
as well as making "smart" products For this reason in the coming months Reply will continue to invest in
order to strengthen further in the areas of Immersive Reality, the Internet of Things, Industry 4 O and Machine
Learning
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Reclassified consolidated Income statement

Reply’s performance 1s shown in the following reclassified consolidated statement of income and ts compared
to corresponding figures of the previcus year

{thousand Euros) 2015 % 2014 %
Revenues 705,601 100 632,184 100
Purchases (14,049} 20) {12 227) (19)
Personnel (349 721) 49 6) (308 452) (48 8)
Services and other cosis {240 495) {34 1) (222 415) (352)
Other operaiing (costs)/income [2 601 04 (3972) 086
Operating costs (606,865) (86 0} {547.065) (86 5)
Gross operating income (EBITDA) 98,736 140 85,119 135
Amortization, depreciation and wnie-downs (S 37 {13) {8,021 13)
Other unusual {costs)income 1,192 02 3565 06
Operating income {EBIT) 90,558 128 80,663 128
[Loss}/gain on investments 440 g1 - -
Financial income/(expenses) (2,067) (03] {1398) 02)
Income before taxes 88,930 126 79,267 125
Income laxes (31502) 4 5) (30 646) @48
Net income 57,428 81 48,621 77
Non-controlling interests (680) 0% {712} {01
Group net Income 56,748 80 47,909 76
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Group key events of 2015 are summanzed below

October 2015 Triplesense Reply, the digital agency of the Reply group, putin an mpressive performance at
the prestigious Annual Multimedia Award 2016 by winnung gold in the category Content Marketing/Publishing

September 2015 Reply wins the "SAP and Google Glass Challenge” for its successful devetopment of an
enterprise wearable app

February 2015 Business Reply and Technology Reply has been named "Cloud Partners of the Year" by
Oracle

February 2015 Breed Reply, Reply's advanced incubator that funds and supports the development of internet
of Things (loT) stari-ups N Europe and the USA, announces that Term Sheets have been signed with two
start-ups In the sectors of Smart Home and Energy Cocoon and Greemant
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Revenues by geographical area
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Analysis of the financial structure

The Group's financial structure 1s set forth below as at 31 December 2015, compared to 31 December 2014

{thousand Euros) 3112/2015 % 3112/2014 % Change
Current operating assets 401,151 353,927 47 225
Current operating liabiliies (238,585) {219,586) (19 000}
Working capital, net {A) 162,566 134,341 28,225
Non-current assets 191,259 170 351 20908
Non-current habihties {85932) {68161) {17771
Fixed capital {B) 105,327 102,190 3137
Invested capital, net (A+B) 267,893 1000 236,531 100 O 31,362
Shareholders’ equity (C) 296 079 N0 S 252,843 1069 43 235
NET FINANCIAL POSITION {A+B-C] (28,186) (10 5) (16.313) (69) (11.874)

Net invested capital on 31 December 2015, amouniuing to 267,893 thousand Euros, was entrely funded by
Shareholders’ equity for 296,079 thousand Euros and by available overall funds of 28,186 thousand Euros

The following table provides a breakdown of net working capital

(thousand Euros) 311272015 311212014 Change
Work in progress 57929 40,801 17128
Trade recevables 302 250 285465 16 785
Other current assets 40973 27661 13312
Current operating assets (A) 401,151 353,927 47,225
Trade payables 77 686 83360 (5674)
Other current liabilsues 160 899 136225 24674
Current operating habilities (B) 238,585 219,586 19,000
Working capital, net {A-B) 162,566 134,341 28,225
% return on investments 230% 2A3%
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Net financial position and cash flows statement

(thousand Euros) 31/12/2015 3112/2014 Change
Cash and cash equivalents, net 70109 50745 19363
Current financal assets 2289 2,245 45
Due 10 banks {10 786) (6.348) (4 438)
Due to other providers of finance {466} (671 205
Short-term financial pesiion 61147 45,972 15,175
Non current financial assels 908 1371 (462)
Due to banks (33008) {29 994) (3.014)
Due to other providers of finance {860) (1036) 175
M/L term financal positicn (32,960) (29,659) (3.301)
Total net financial position 28,186 16,313 11,874

Change n the item cash and cash equivalents 1s summarized in the table below

_(thousand Euros) 3112/2015
Cash flows frem operating activities (A) 44 334
Cash flows from investment activities (B) {25 328)
Cash flows from financial acuwvities {C) 357
Change in cash and cash equivalents (D) = (A+B+C) 19,363
Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of penod () 50745
Cash and cash equivalents at year end (%) 73,109
Total change in cash and cash equivalents (D) 19,363

() Liquid assets and cash equivalents net are net of current account overdrafis

The complete consolidated cash flow staterment and the detals of cash and other cash eguivalentis net are
set forth below 10 the financial statements
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Significant operations in 2015

Breed Reply

Reply launched in October 2014 Breed Reply a new Reply advanced ncubator for funding, accelerating and
supporting the growth and establishment of 1deas and start-ups around loT across Europe and the USA
Breed Reply, based in London and with offices in ltaly and Germany, offers three fundamental services
funding at "seed" and "early stage" level, considerable support with sigrificant know how transfer of business,
managenal and technological expertise, and thanks to Reply's ecosysiem, medium-term involvement to
establish start-ups in their market

Breed Reply will offer the start-ups the opportunity to present their ideas and projects through 1oT

Best in Breed, an inimative that aims to identify the most iInnovative 1deas In loT space

Among the 150 plus apphcations received from all aver the world through the initiative "loT Best in Breed-2",
Breed Reply has selected several startups for their highly innovative solutions, outstanding management and
market potential

»  Gymcraft (www gymcraft es) 1s a sports-tech company, innovatively combining the mediums of
fitness and gaming to build the sports virtual experence of the future Gymcraft's fitness-games
are expenenced through 2d-moniter or in full immersion VR-goggles, while using any normal
fitness machines Gymcraft pushes the boundanes of virtual reality standards, providing users
with a real-time, interactive, fitness expenence, while perferming therr favorites sporting
activities

*  Xmetrics (www swim-xmetrics com), a company that offers innovative devices for swimmers
Xmetrics uses sensors, electronic components and software via mobile devices, to enhance the
training sesstons of professional and amateur swimmers, analyzing their main biometric
parameters and therr real ime performance

» Cocoon (https //cocoon life) 1s a UK based start-up that has created a smart home security
system that senses unusual activity throughout the hcouse in real time, without the need for any
additional sensors or professional installation It avoids false alarms by learning what's normal
for home, only sending alerts and high quahty video straight to your smartphone via the mobile
app Cocoon received a London Design Award and has been listed i Forbes as one of the top
new businesses to keep an eye on in 2015

» enModus {www enmodus com) 15 a Smart Buldings technology company enablng the
mortoring, conirol and internet connectivity of any device that 1s mains powered Wattwave 1s
the enModus patented powerline technology that leverages the existing cabling infrastructure
n a bulding, and offers a unigue solution to the problem of long range, low cost, scatable
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communications in buldings Tegether with an open Cloud based platform for remote
management and moniioring, the end-to-end solution delivers cost savings, productivity gains
and an enhanced bullding experience in the Smart Lighting Cantrol (SLC) and Bullding Energy
Management (BEM} sectors

Inova Design (www inovadesign ¢ uk) 1s a technology company, specializing in the design,

development and commerciahzation of novel body sensing solutions to optimize performance
and prevent illness Their product offers the measurement of all vital physiological parameters
along with motion monitornng in a single miriature ear-based device which 1s non-invasive and
provides continuous real-time data wirelessly to the end user Inova’s patented technology has a
host of applications including sport, healthcare and defense
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Reply on the stock market

2015 has been another outstanding year for Reply in the capital markets On Decembser 31, 2015 the Reply share
stood at Euro 125 20 107% up compared to Euro 60 80 at the end of 2014 With this development Reply was among
the Top-5 performers of the Italian MidCap index In parallel this share price development induced a remarkable
improvement of the Reply valuation Today the Reply share 1s traded at a premium compared to most of its relevant
histed competitors

The macroeconomic climate was volatile enough in 2015 Topics like Greece the refugee crisis, the impact of China
growth rates on the European economies or the future policy of the European Central Bank had some transitory
impact on the share prce development of Reply But shortly after these turbulences the story of Reply came again o
the fore

The markets are facing a revolution The digital transformation will affect every company and every person, it1s
changing the way how business s done and cur daily lives Reply I1s well positioned to seize the exciting
opportunities denving from this development

Reply share performance

Until Mid of March the ltalian stock market and the Reply share price rose quite in parallel Until mud of Apnl we saw
the first significant outperformance of the Reply share before entering a phase of lateral development Following the
New York and Boston roadshow in June and the communication of the half-year resulls Reply entered another
strong growth phase bringing the share price performance to +79% It took until mid of October until the Reply share
recovered from the market turbulences that resulted from wornes about the situation of the Chinese economy
Finally the share entered an upward corndor that led to the year-high of Eure 129 2 on December 17, 2015 and
brought the market capitalization of Reply In excess of Euro 1 bilion With only some minor corrections Reply closed
the financial year 2015 with a share price of Euro 125 90 and a market capitalization of Euro 12 bilhion
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Dunng the year Reply outperformed the ltahian MIB index by 94% and the STAR index by 67% Significant
outperformance 1s also to be noted when comparing with the listed Reply competitors

'
o ' — RepNSpA_—! FTSE MIB %
200 oty 2003 2004 2005 o0 0 2008 o 09 FLA] 201y w7 20 w018
Source Pacrb Price.

Since the Reply IPO on December & 2000 the ltalian main index MIB lost more than 60% of its starting value |n 2015
Reply added another 400% points to the share prnice performance With 788% the share price nearly octuplicated
since the IPO on an indexed base A sharehoider who invested 100 Euro at that time, at the end of 2015 owned 788
Euro, not considenng the dividends that where paid dunng those years

Capital market position

Reply once again reached new levels 1n the capital markets Since Q3 2015 the market capitalization of Reply
exceeded Euro 1 billion The hquidity situation of the Reply share further improved 31% year-on-year in 2015 This
development 1s the botiom line of the strong share prnice increase and a further reduction of the number of traded
shares (-19% compared to 2014)

Further progress was made tn terms of valuation We characterized 2014 with “closing the valuation gap compared
to relevant competitors n the IT services space 2015 showed further growth i all important valuation ratios In each
ratio Reply 15 now traded at a premium compared to the median valuations of our peer group Analysts consider this
premium Justified because of the long lasting supernior profitability and growth story of Reply

Dividend

Internal financing 1s an important source for Reply to fund the investments in new startup companies and new
technologies, considered relevant for the fulure offering ponfolic Nevertheless Reply shareholders participate in the
posiive sustainable course of business In 2015 Reply achueved earnings per shave of Eure 6 07 an increase of 18%
compared to 2014 Apar from the strong operatienal progress this development 1s also due to the substantial
revision of the [tahan corporate tax system which became efiective in 2015 For the financial year 2015 the corporate
bodies of Reply propose to the shareholders meeting 10 approve the payment of a dividend of EUR 100 {dvdend
2014 Eurc 085} Referred to the share price of Reply at the end of 2015 this means a dividend yield of 0 8%
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Because of the very strong development of the share price the dividend yield is tower than last year s 14% Assuming
the approval of the shareholders’ meeting Reply will pay to its shareholders a dividend total of Euro 9 3 mullion In
2014 Euro 7 95 millien were distnbuted

The subsequent lable gives an overview on the main parameters of the Reply share and their substantial
developments durning the last 5 years

2015 2014 2013 2012 201
Share price
Year-end Euro 1259 60 90 56 90 2099 16 02
High for the year Euro 129 2 67 90 56 90 2100 2149
Low for the year Euro 58 45 4770 2092 1589 14 86
Trading
Numter of shares traded {year) # thousand 2,8620 35860 37050 14973 14031
Numter of shares traded {day) # thousand no 128 47 59 55
Trading volume [year) Eurg million 2795 2127 1239 273 266
Trading volume {day) Euro milion 1083 0844 0492 0108 0104
Capital structure
Number of shares # thousand 93529 93529 93079 92229 92229
Share capial Euro milhon 4864 4863 4 8B40 4796 4756
Free Float % 420 431 421 418 423
Markel capitalization Euro mifhon 11775 5696 5296 1936 1478
Alflocation of net income
Earnings per share Euro 607 512 37 294 262
Dwidend ? Euro 100 085 070 Q57 050
Dividend payment Euro milion 9352 7950 6515 5257 461
Divdend yield 2 % 0 8% 14% 12% 27% 3i%

4 Amount proposed for sharehoider approval for 2015
7 Related to year-end closing price
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The shareholder base

Based on the last information on the Reply shareholders’ register (September 2015) the free float of the share
amounted tc 42 0% 58% of the Reply shares are owned by the founders of Reply Institutional shareholders further
increased their holdings to 33 3% Accordingly the shares in the hands of retall shareholders stood al 8 7%

The retail shareholders base of Reply is by far dominated by ltalian (60%) and German (i9%) shareholders Significant
movements were observed in the institutional shareholders base American investors with 29% of all institutionat
shareholdings now are on top of the list, followed by German (21%} Brtish {15%) and French (13%) investors Interestingly
ltalian funds own only 6% In Reply

Analysts

Unchanged 4 analysts from italy and Germany are covering the Reply share Reflecting the share price development
ratings were set to “outperform™ or “neutral” rating Durning the Equity Forum in Frankiunt Reply got in touch with a
German capital markets magazine who recommended buying Reply The target price was set to Euro 140 All Reply
analysts on average currently see a target pnice of Euro 121

Dialog with the capital markets

In 2015 Reply further increased its activities with the capital markets to keep sharehelders informed Durning 15
conferences and 4 road shows Reply actively explained its equity story Specisl emphasis was laid on the opening of
the US markets where Reply in 2015 conducted a road show in New York and Boston followed by a New York investor
conference with very positive feedback As well the activitres with French investors were funther expanded The effects
on the institutional shareholders base are clearly visible now With Barcelona and Lyon Reply opened 2 other important
locations for its IR conference program

In terms of the number of brokers Reply is working with 2015 saw some focahzation 7 brokers are now closely
working with Reply on investor targeting and communicating the value of the Reply story for shareholders
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The Parent Company Reply S p.A.

introduction

The tables presented and disclosed below were prepared on the basis of the financial statements as at 31
December 2015 te which reference should be made, prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS”) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("lASB") and endorsed
by the European Union, as weil as with the regulations impiementing Article 9 of Legislative Decree No
38/2005

Reclassified income statement

The Parent Company Reply Sp A mainly carnes out the operational co-ordination and the technical and
quality management services for the Group companies as well as the administration, finance and marketing
activities

As at 31 December 2015 the Parent Company had 87 employees (86 employees in 2014)

Reply SpA also carnes out commercial fronting activities for some magor customers, whereas delivery Is
carned out by the operational companies The economic results achieved by the Company are therefore not
representative of the Group's overall economic trend and the performances of the markets in which 1t
operates Such activity 1s nstead reflected in the item Revenue from fronting operations of the Income
Statement set forth below

The Parent Company’s income statement 1s summarized as follows

{thousand Euros) 2015 2014 Change
Revenues from aperaling activiies 52 095 45694 £401
Income from fronting activities 280938 252 614 28324
Purchases senices and other expenses {313 450) (281822) {316568)
Personnel and related expenses {17 994) {17 703} 291
Other unusual operating (expenses}income (3 750) (2 989) 761)
Amecrtization depreciation and write-downs {472) {672) 200
Operating income {2 674) {4 878) 2,204
Financial incomef{expenses) 3407 2526 887
Gain gn equity Investments 39577 34951 4626
Loss on equity investments {1640} (7 460) 5820
Income before laxes 3867 25 140 13,531
Income taxes #7570 (1209) (548)
NET INCOME 36914 23,932 12,983

24




Revenues from operating activites mainly refer to charges for

* royalties on the Reply trademark for 19,541 thousand Euros (14,752 thousand Euros in the
financial year 2014),
« shared service activities in favor of its subsidianes for 23,606 thousand Euros (22,571 thousand
Euros in the financial year 2014),
« management services for 7,876 thousand Euros (7,605 thousand Euros 1n the financial year
20149)
Operating income 2015 marked a negative result of 2,674 thousand Euros after having deducted amortization
expenses of 472 thousand Eures (of which 151 thousand Euros referred to intangible assets and 321thousand
Euros to tangible assets)
Financial income/({expenses) amounted to 3,407 thousand Euros, and included interest income for 3,187
thousand Euros and interest expenses for 1,102 thousand Euros mainly relating to financing for the M&A
operations Such result also Includes net positive exchange rate differences amounting to 1,316 thousand
Euros
Income from equity investments which amounted to 39,577 thousand Euros refers to dividends received from
subsidiary companies in 2015
Losses on equity investments refer to write-downs and losses reported In the year by some subsidiary
companies that were considered to be unrecoverable
Net income for the year ended 2015, amounted to 36,914 thousand Euros after income taxes of 1,757
thousand Euros

Financial structure

Reply S p A's financtal structure as at 31 December 2015, compared to that as at 31 December 2014,
Is provided below

(thousand Euros) 31/12/2015 31272018 Change
Tangible assets 765 1095 (330)
Intangible assets 1586 953 632
Equily Investments 133 596 130 081 3514
Other fixed assets 1235 1522 (287}
Nen financial llabiives - LT (13 388} {8 956) {4433)
Flxed capital 123793 124,696 (904)
Net working caprtal 22,144 4572 17,573
INVESTED CAPITAL 145937 129,268 16,669
Sharehclders equity 192 907 163 936 28971
Net financial position {46 570} (34 668) {12 302)
TOTAL SOURCES 145937 129,268 16,669

The net invested capital on 31 December 2015, amounting to 145,937 thousand Euros, was entirely funded
by Shareholders’ equity in the amount of 192,507 thousand Euros and avallable overall funds of 46,970
thousand Euros

Changes in balance sheet items are fully analyzed and detalled in the explanatory notes to the financiat
statements
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Net Financial Position

The Parent Company’s net financial positien as at 31 December 2015, compared to 31 December 2014, 1s
detailed as follows

{thousand Euros) 31142/2018 3112/2014 Change
Cash and cash equivalents, net 20557 4,193 16 364
Financial loans to subsidiaries 57,779 49,849 7929
Receivables from facior 744 960 {216)
Due o banks (10 475) {6 285) {4190)
Due to subsidiaries (41147 (26 B68) 14 273
Net financial position short term 27.463 21,849 5,615
Long term financial asseis 5212 42,487 9625
Due lo banks {32 606) (29 668) (2938)
Net financial position long term 19,506 12,819 5,688
Total net financial pesition 46,970 34,668 12,302

Change n the net financial position I1s analyzed and ilustrated in the explanatory notes to the financial
position
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Reconciliation of equity and profit for the year of the Parent Company
In accordance with Conscb Communication no DEM/6064293 dated 28 July 2006, Shareholders’ equity
and the Parent Company's result are reconciled below with the related consolidated amounts

311212018 31H2/2014

Net equity Net result Net equity Net result
{thousand euros)
Reply S p A 's separate flnancial statements 192,907 356,914 163,936 23,932
Results of the subsidiary compames 161236 68,655 143 235 53955
Carrying value of investments in consolidated companies {52,791 - (50 107) -
Elimination of dividends from subsidiary companses - (39,629) - (37,698)
Urrealzed itercompany Sane and ioscs et o raated tax 623 €512) 222) 8432
effect
Non-controlling interests 653 {680] (936) {712)
Net Group consolidated financial statement 296,079 56,748 251,908 47,910
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Corporate Governance

The Corpcrate Governance system adopted by Reply adheres to the Corporate Governance Code for ftalian
Listed Companies i1ssued by Borsa Iltaliana S p A 1in March 2006, which was updated 1in July 2015, with the
addiions and amendments related to the specific characteristics of the Group

In compliance with regulatory obligations the annually drafted "Report on Corporate Governance and
Ownership Structures” contains a general description of the corporate governance system adopted by the
Group, reporting information on ownership structures and compliance with the Code of Conduct, including
the main governance practices applied and the charactenstics of the nsk management and intemal control
system also with respect to the financial reporting process

The aforementioned Report 1s available on the Corporate Governance section of the website www reply eu
- Investors — Corporate Governance

The Corporate Governance Code I1s avallable on the webstite of Borsa ltallana Sp A www borsaitahiana it

The Board of Directors, on an annua! basis and at the proposal of the Remuneration Committee, establishes
a Remuneration Policy which incorporates the recommendations of the Corporate Governance Code and
regulations tssued by Consob In accordance with law, the Remuneration Policy forms the first part of the
Report on Remuneration and will be submitted to the review of the Shareholders’ Meeting called to approve
the 2015 financial statements
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Other information

Research and development activities

Reply offers high technology services and sclutions in a market where innovation 1s of pnimary importance
Reply considers research and continuous innovation a fundamental asset in supporting clients with the
adoption of new technology

Reply dedicates resources to Research and Development activities and concentrates develcpment and
evolution of its own platforms

o Click Reply™

+ Definio Reply™

¢ [hiscovery Reply™

* Hi Reply™

* Sideup Reply™

* Starbytes™

+  TamTamy™

Reply has important partnershuips with major global vendors so as to offer the most suitable solutions to
different company needs Specifically, Reply boasts the highest level of certification amongst the technology
leaders in the Enterprise sector, among which

¢ Microsoft

¢ Oracle

* SAP

*  Amazon
¢ Google
s Hybns

¢ Salesforce

Research and development activiies are fully described in the corporate information of “Reply Living
Netwark”
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Human resources

Human resources constitute a primary asset for Reply which bases its strategy on the quality of products and
services and places continuous attention on the growth of personnel and in-depth examination of
professional necessities with consequent definiions of needs and training courses

The Reply Group is compnsed of professionals onginating from the best universiies and polytechmes The
Group Intends to continue Investing In human resources by bonding special relations and collaboration with
major universties with the scope of attracting highly qualified personnel

The peopie who work at Reply are characterized by enthusiasm, expertise, methodology, team spirit,
Initiative, the capability of understanding the context they work in and of clearly communicating the solutions
proposed The capability of imagming, experimenting and studying new solutions enables more rapid and
efficlent iInnovation

The group Intends to maintain these distinctive features by increasing investments in training and
collaboration with universities

At the end of 2015 the Group had 5,245 employees compared to 4,689 in 2014 Durnng the year 1,264 were
employed, 709 left the Group and 26 new entrnes owe {6 change in consolidation

Security Planning Document

As part of the requirements of Legislative Decree 196/03, the ltalian “Data Protection Act , several activilies
to evaluate the system of data protection for information held by Group companies subject to this law,
including specific audits, were performed These activities confirmed that legislative requirements relating to
the protection of personal data processed by Group companies had been substantially complied with,
including preparation of the Secunty Planning Document

Transactions with related parties and Group companies

During the period, there were no transactions with related parties, including intergroup transactions, which
qualified as unusual or atypical Any related party transactions formed part of the normal business activities
of companies in the Group Such transactions are concluded at standard market terms for the nature of goods
and/or services offered

The company in the notes to the financial statemenis and consohdated financial statements provides the
information required pursuant to Art 154-ter of the TUF [Consoldated Financial Act] as indicated by Consob
Reg no 17221 of 12 March 2010, indicating that there were no significant transactions concluded during the
perod

informatton on transactions with related parties as per Consob communication of 28 July 2006 1s disclosed
at the Note to the consolidated financral statements and Notes to the {financial statements
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Treasury shares

At the balance sheet date the Parent Company holds 1,007 treasury shares amounting to 24,502 Euros,
nominal value equal toc 524 Euros, at the balance sheet tem net equity, the company has posted an
unavailable reserve for the same amount

At the balance sheet date the Company does not hold shares of cther holding companies

Financial instruments

In relation to the use of financial Instruments, the company has adopted a policy for risk management through
the use of financial derivatives, with the scope of reducing the exposure 1o interest rate rnisks on financial
loans

Such financial instruments are considered as hedging instruments as they can be traced to the object being
hedged (in terms of amount and expiry date)

In the notes to the financial statements more detail 1s provided to the above operations

Events subseguent to 31 December 2015

No significant events have occurred since year ended December 31, 2015

Outlook on operations

2015 was a very successful year for Reply that has managed to succeed in an increasingly selective market
and exposed to new forms of competition

Reply 1s now a leader not only on technology but also on the major digital transformation processes that
companies are ntroducing in order to compete In increasingly global markets, charactenzed by continuous
interactions between the physical and the virtual world

A transformation enabled by cloud, data, digital services and Internet of things the new paradigms on which
the entire world economy 15 shifting and that, In fact, are becoming the key enablers of each sector From
automotive to banking, from telecommunications to meda, from manufactuning to healthcare, from
communication to logistics, the "digital transformation” 1s revolutionizing processes, business models,
products and services

This new scenario Is to Reply a huge growth opporiunity that has one "skill set”, which extends from digital

creativity, the domain of the top "stack” technology, from strategic consulting 1o the design of architectures,
from nsk management to IT secunty
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Reply s now well positioned In the market, esteemed and appreciated by leading worldwide groups, but the
context n which it operates 1s in continuous and profound change and therefore it 1s crucial not to stand stll,
but to grasp and interpret, almost daily, the evolution and expansion of technology

Reply must continue to invest in new skills, challenging on a daily basis the resuits achieved so far, the quality
of its work and commitment o be a group
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Motion for the approval of the financial statement and
allocation of the result for the financial year

The financial statements at year end 2015 of Reply S p A prepared in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), recorded a net Income amounting to 36,914,414 Euros and net shareholders’
equity on 31 December 2015 amounted to 192,906,713 Euros thus formed

(Euros) 3122015
Share Capital 4 863 486
Share premwum reserve 23302692
Legal reserve 972 697
Reserve for treasury shares on hand 24502
Other reserves 126 828 922
Total share capital and reserves 155,992,299
Net iIncorme 36 914 414
Total 192,906,713

The Board of Directors in submitiing to the Shareholders the approval of the financial statements (Separate
Statements) as at 31 December 2015 showing a net result of 36,914,414 Euros, proposes that the shareholders
resolve
s to approve the financial statement (Separate Statements) of Reply S p A which records net
profit for the financial year of 36,914,414 Euros,
* to approve the motion to allocate the net result of 36 914 414 as follows

+ aunitdividend to shareholders amounting to 100 Euros for each ordinary share with a nght,
therefore excluding treasury shares, with payment date fixed on 11 May 2016, coupon cutoff
date 9 May 2016 and record date, determined in accordance with Article 83-terdecies of
Legislative Decree no 58/1998 set on 10 May 2016,

* approving the proposal of attribution to Directors entrusted with operative positions &s regards
a shareholding in the profits of the Parent Company In accordance with Article 22 of the
articles of association, to be established for an overall amount of 2,400,000 Q0 Euros,
corresponding to around 2 4% of the consolidated gross operative margin 2015, (before
allocation of the sharehoiding in profits for Directors invested with operative positions)
calculated at 101,136 thousand Euros, which will be paid taking into account the related reserve
funds in the financial statement in compltance with that foreseen In the main 1AS/FRS
international accounts, ratifying as the related allocation 1n the statement requires

Tunn, 15 March 2016

/s/ Marno Rizzante
For the Board of Directors
The Chairman

Mario Rizzante
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Consolidated Financial Statement as
at 31 December 2015
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Consolidated income statement (%)

{thousand Euros) Note 2015 2014
Revenues 5 705,601 632,184
Other Income 15,643 16 805
Purchases 6 {i4 049) (12 227)
Personnel 7 {349 729) (308 457)
Services and other costs B {256,138) {239,220)
Amorbization depreciation and write-downs 9 {8 371) {8021
Other unusual (costiincome 10 {1408) {407)
Operating income 50,558 80,663
({Loss)/gain on investments N 440 -
Financial income/(expenses) 12 (2 067) (1 396)
Income before taxes 88,930 79,267
Income laxes T (31,502) (30 646)
Net income 57,428 48,621
Non-controlling interest 680} 712)
Group net result 56,748 47,909
Larmings per share 14 607 512
Diluled earmings per share 14 607 512

{") Pursuant to Consob Regulation No 15519 of 27 July 2006 the effects of related party transactions on the consolidated statement of income are
reported in the Annexed tables heren and fully described in Note 35
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Consohdated statement of comprehensive income

({thousand Euros) Note 3M2/2015 3112/2014
Profit of the pencd (A) 57,428 48,621
Other comprehensive ncome that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss
Acluanal gainsf{lesses) from employee benefit plans 567 (2 349}
Total Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss, net of tax (BY) 567 {2,349)
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash Mow hedges 4 120
Gains/(losses) on exchange differences on translating foreign operations 894 339
Total Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss, net of tax (B2) 898 459
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax
(B) = (B1) + (B2) 25 1,465 (1,890}
Total comprehensive income (A)+{B) 58,894 46,731

Total comprehensive income attnbutable to

Cwners of the parent 58,213 46 019

Non-controlling interests 680 712
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Consohdated Statement of financial position {*)

{thousand Euros}) Note 311272015 311272014
Tangible assets 15 17022 14976
Goodwill 16 133376 126 763
Other intangible assels 17 3 696 6 549
Equity investments gvallable for sale 18 9105 3m
Other financial assets 19 5,629 447
Deferred 1ax assels 20 17339 15052
Non-current assets 192 167 1M,722
Inventciies i) 57625 40801
Trade recelvables 22 302 250 285 465
Other receivables and current assets 23 40973 27 661
Financial assels 19 2289 2245
Cash and cash equivalents 24 105137 88819
Current assets 508 577 444 990
TOTAL ASSETS 700 745 616 712
Share Capital 4863 4863
Orher reserves 233814 199135
Nel result of the pericd 56 748 47 909
Group shareholders' equity 25 295425 2519508
Non-controlling interest 6563 936
NET EQUITY 256,079 252843
Due 10 minority shareholders 26 19 746 13306
Financial liabtlities 27 33869 31030
Employee benefits 28 25 866 24454
Deferred tax habilites 29 21471 15 630
Provisions 30 18 B4G 14772
Non-current Hablitles 119,801 99,191
Financial lrablities 27 46 280 45092
Trade payables el 77686 83360
Other current llabilitles 32 160 640 135 202
Provisions 30 260 1024
Current llabillties 284,865 264 678
TOTAL LIABILITIES 404 666 363,869
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 700,745 616,712

{Pursusant 1o Consob Regulaton No 15519 of 27 July 2006 the efferts of relaled-party transactions on the Statement of Financial Posibien are reported in the annexed Tables and

further described In Note 35
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Consolidated Statement of changes in equity

Cash flow Reserve for Non-
Share Treasury Capital Eaming hedge Translation actuanal  controling
{thousand Euros) capital shares reserves reserves reserve reserve gains/(losses) interests Total
On 1 January 2014 4,840 {9) 51,899 155,849 (124) 313 {960) 799 212,607
Share capital Increase 23 - 937 - - - - - 960
Dividends distnbuted - - - (6,546} - - - (624) (7.240)
Total profitfloss) - - - 47909 120 339 {2349) 712 46,73
Olher changes - - - (333 - - - 19 {214)
Balance at 31
December 2014 4,863 (9) 52,836 196,878 4) 652 (3,309) 936 252,843
Cash
flow Reserve for Non-
Share Treasury Capital Earmning hedge Translation actuarial  controlling
(thousand Euros) capital shares reserves reserves reserve reserve gamns/{losses) Interests Total
On 1January 2015 4,863 (9) 52,836 196,878 {4) 652 {3.309) 936 252,843
Dividends distnbuted - - - {7950 - - - (1012} (8,962)
Change n treasury
shares - (150 20,000 (20 000) - - - - {15)
Total profit/(loss) - - - 56748 4 894 567 680 58,894
Other changes - - - (6,730) - - - 4% (6,681)
Balance at 31
December 2015 4,863 (25) 72,836 218,946 - 1,546 (2,742) 653 296,079
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Consolidated Statement of cash flows

{thousand Euros) 2015 2014
Group net ncome 56,748 47909
Income taxes 31502 30 646
Amortization and deprecration 93n 8021
Qther non-monetary expensesi{income) (2 6G4) {6 201)
Change in inventories (17128) (18 891)
Change in trade recenvables {16 785) (14 298)
Change in trade payables (5 674) i5 237
Change In cther assels and liahihites 20545 15 306
income tax pald {30 646) (26,653)
Interest paid 1372 (1843)
Interest collected 377 346
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 44,334 49,578
Payments for tangible and intangible assets {14 564} (9 63C)
Payments for financial assets (1202} (5318}
Payments for the acquisiion of subsidianes net of cash acquued (9 561) {156 984)
Net cash flows from investment actlvities (B) {25,328) (31,933)
Shares issued - 960
Dividends paid (B 962) {7 240)
in payments from loans 28615 15 348
Repayment of loans (21,543) (13437
Other changes 2247 {1392}
Net cash flows from financing activities (C) 357 {5,761)
Net cash flows (D} = (A+B+C) 19,363 11,884
Cash and cash eguvalenis at the beginning of perniod 50745 38 861
Cash and cash equivalents at period end 70,109 50 745
Total change in cash and cash equivalents (D) 19,363 11,884
Detall of cash and cash equivalents

{thousand Euros) 2015 2014
Cash and cash equlvalents at beginning of period £0,745 38,861
Cash and cash equivalents 88 819 66145
Bank overdrafts (38 073) [27 284)
Cash and cash equivalents at perlod end 70109 50 7458
Cash and cash equrvatents 105,137 88,819
Bank overdrafts (35 028) (38073}
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Notes to the financial statements

General information NOTE 1 - General iInformauon
NOTE 2 - Accounting principles and basis of consolidauon
NOTE 3 - Risk management
NOTE 4 - Consolidation
Income statement NOTE 5  -Revenue
NOTE 6 - Purchases
NOTE 7 - Personnel
NOTE B - Senvices and other costs
NOTE 9 - Amortization deprecistion and wnie-downs
NOTE 10 - Other unusual operating Income/(expenses)
NOTE 11 - [Lossigan on investments
NQTE 12 - Financial income/{expenses)
NOTE 13 - Income {axes
NCTE 14 - Earnings per share
Statement of financial position - Assets NOTE 15 - Tangible assets
NOQTE16 - Goodwill
NOTE 17 - Other mtangible assets
NOTE 18 - Equity Invesiments
NQOTE 19 - Financial assets
NQOTE 20 - Deferred tax assets
NOTE 21 - Work-in-progress
NOTE 22 - Trade recewables
NOTE 23 - Other recevables and current assels
NOTE 24 - Cash and cash eguivalents
Statement of financial pesition - Liabihties and NOTE 25 - Shareholders’ equity
=Ry NOTE 26 - Payables 1o minority shareholders and Earn-out
NOTE 27 - Financia! habiilies
NOTE 28 - Employee benefits
NOTE 28 - Deferred tax habililies
NOTE 30 - Prowvisions
NOTE 31 - Trade payables
NOTE 32 - Other current habilies
Other information NQTE 33 . Segment Reporting
NOTE34 Addiional disclosures to financial instruments and nisk management
policies
NOTE 35 - Transactions with relaied parties
NOTE 36 Emoluments to Directors Statutory Auditors and Directors with Key
responsibilties
NOTE 37 - Guarantees commiiments and contingent habilities
NQOTE 38 - Events subsequent to 31 December 2015
NOTE 30 Approval of the Consolidated financial statements and authonzation to

publish
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NOTE 1 - General Information

Reply [MTA, STAR REY] specializes 1n the implementation of solutions based on new communication
channels and digital media Reply, consisting of a network of specialist companies, supports wmportant
European industries belonging to the Telco & Media, Manufacturing & Retall, Bank & Insurances and Public
Administration segments, m defining and developing new business models utiizing Big Data, Cloud
Computing CRM, Mobile, Social Media and Internet of Things paradigms Reply offers consultancy, system
integration and application management and business process outsourcing (www reply eu)

NOTE 2 — Accounting principles and basis of consolidation

Compliance with International accounting principles

The consohdated financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and endorsed by the
European Union The designation ‘IFRS” also includes all valid International Accounting Standards ("IAS"), as
well as all interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {*IFRIC™}, formerly
the Standing Interpretations Commuiitee {*SIC”) Following the coming into force of European Regulation No
1606 of July 2002, starting from 1 January, 2005, the Reply Group adopted International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Consob regulations regarding
the format of financiai statements, in application of Art 9 of Legislative Decree 38/2005 and other CONSQOB
regulations and instructions concerning financial statements

General principles

The consolidated financial statement 1s prepared on the basis of the histonc cost prnnciple, medified as
requested for the appraisal of some financial instruments for which the far value cntenon s adopted In
accordance with IAS 39

The consohdated financial statements have been prepared on the going concern assumption In this respect,
despite operating in a difficult economic and financial environment, the Group's assessment 1s that no matenal
uncertainties (as defined in paragraph 25 of IAS 1) exist with regards its ability to continue as a going concerm

These consohdated financial statements are expressed In thousands of Euros and are compared to the
consoldated financial statements of the previous year prepared in accordance with the same principles
Further indication related to the format of the financial statements respect to 1AS 11s disclosed here within as
weil as information related to significant accounting principles and evaluation critena used in the preparation
of the following consolidated report
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Financial statements

The consoldated financial statements include, statement of inceme, statement of comprehensive iIncome,
statementi of finanaial position, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, statement of cash flows and the
explanatory notes

The income statement format adopted by the Group classifies costs according to therr nature, which 1s
deemed t¢ properly represent the Group’s business

The Statement of financial position is prepared according to the disunction between current and non-current
assets and habilibes The statement of cash flows I1s presented using the indirect method

The most significant items are disclosed in a specific note in which details retated t¢ the composttion and
changes compared to the previous year are provided

it should be noted that in order to comply with the indications contained in Consob Resolution no 15518 of
27 July 2006 "as to the format of the financial statements”, additonal staiements income statement and
statement of financial positicn have been added showing the amounts of related party transactions

Basis of consolidation

Subsidianes

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December of each year Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an enterprise so as to cbian benefits from its activities

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included In the consolidated income
statemeni from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting
principles used into ine with those used by other members of the Group

All significant intercompany transactions and balances between group companies are eliminated on
conselhidation

Non-controlling interest I1s stated separately with respect to the Group's net equity Such Non controlling
interest 1s determimed according to the percentage of the shares held of the fair values of the identifiable
assets and habilities of the company at the date of acquisition and post-acquisitton adjustments According
to IAS 27, overall loss (including the profitfifoss) for the year) 1s attnibuted to the owners of the Parent and
minonty snterest also when net equity attributable to minornty interests has a negative balance

Difference anising from transtation of equity at historical exchange rates and year end exchange rates are
recorded at an appropnate reserve of the consolidated shareholders’ equity
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Business combinations

Acquisition of subsidiary companies 1s recognized according to the purchase method of accounting The
acquisitton cost 1s determined by the sum of the fair value, at the trading date, of all the assets transferred,
habiltties settled and the financial instruments 1ssued by the group in exchange of contral of the acquired
company In addition, any cost directly attributable to the acquisition

The (dentifiable assets, habiliies and contingent habilities of the company acquired that respect the
conditions to be recognized according with IFRS 3 are stated at their fair value at the date of acguisiion with
the excepton of those noncurrent assets (or groups in discontinued operations) that are held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5, which are recogmzed and measured at far value less selling costs

The positive difference between the acquisition costs and Group interest of the reported assets and liabilities
Is recorded as goodwill and classified as an intangible asset having an indefinite life

Minority tnterest in the company acquired 1s initially measured to the extent of their shares in the fair value of
the assets, labiies and contingent habiities recognized

The accounting of the put and call options on the mincnity shareholdings of the subsidiary company are
recorded according to IAS 32, taking into account therefore, depending on the case, the existence and the
determinability of the consideration to the minonty sharehaolders if the option was exercised

Investments in associate companies

An associate 15 a company over which the Group 1s 1n a position to exercise significant influence, but not
control, through the participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

The results and assets and habilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, with the exception of investments held for {uiure disposal

Where a group company transacts with an associate of the Group, unrealized profits and losses are
ehminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate, except {o the extent that unreahzed
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

With regard to investments in associated companies held erther directly or indirectly through venture capital
or similar entities, in order to realize capital gains, these are carmed at fair value This treatment 1s permitted
by IAS 28 "Investments in Assotiates” which requires that these investments are excluded from its scope and
are designated, from the time of imual recogmtion at far value through profit or 1oss and accounted for in
accordance with IAS 39 "Financial instruments recognition and measurement', and any change therein 1s
recogruzed in profit (loss) in the period in which they occurred

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

All significant intercompany balances and transactions and any unrealized gains and losses ansing from
intercompany transactions are eliminated In prepanng the consolidated financial statements Unrealized
gains and losses ansing from iransactions with associates and jointly controtled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the company's interest in those entities
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Foreign currency transactions

Transactions In foreign currencies are recorded at the foreign exchange rate prevalling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated at the exchange rate prevaiing at that date Exchange differences ansing on the settiement of
monetary items or on reperting monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded dunng the period or in previous financial statements, are recognized in the income statement

Consohdation of foreign entities

All assets and liabities of foreign consohdated companies with a functional currency other than the Euro are
translated using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date Income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rate for the pernod Transtation differences resulting frem the applicavon of this
method are classified as equity untit the disposal of the investment Average rates of exchange are used to
translate the cash flows of foreign subsidianes in preparnng the consolidated statement of cash flows
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arsing on the acquisitian of a foreign entity are recorded in the relevant
functienal currency of the foreign entity and are translated using the period end exchange rate In the context
of IFRS First-time Adopton, the cumulative translation difference ansing from the consolidation of foreign
operations was set at nil, as permitted by IFRS 1, gains or losses on subsequent disposal of any foreign
operation only include accumulated translation differences arising after 1January 2004

The following table summarizes the exchange rates used in translating the 2015 and 2014 financial statements
of the foreign companies included in consolidation

On 31 December On 31 December

Average 2015 2015 Average 2014 2014

Gae 0726002 073395 0806429 07789

CHF 1067635 10835 1214631 12024

Real 3601603 4317 3122768 32207
Ron Rumenan Leu 4445215 45240 _

US Dollar 1109625 10887 1328842 12141

Potish Zloty 4182785 42639 4184467 42732

Tangible assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and imparment losses

Goods made up of components of significant value, that have different useful lives are considered separately
when determining depreciation

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, over their estumated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, on the following bases




Buildings 3%

Equipment 30%
Plants 40%
Hardware 40%
Furniture and fittings 24%

The recoverable value of such assets Is determined through the prinaples set cut in [AS 36 and outhned in
the paragraph (“Impairment”) herein

Ordinary mamntenance costs are fully expensed as incurred Incremental maimtenance costs are allocated to
the asset to which they refer and depreciated over therr restdual useful lives

Improvement expendiures on rented property are allocated to the related asseis and depreciated over the
shorter between the duration of the rent contract or the residual useful lives of the relevant assets

Assets held under finance leases, which provide the Group with substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership, are recogmzed as asseis of the Group at their far value or, If lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments The corresponding liability to the lessor 1s in¢cluded in the financial statement as a
debt The assets are amortized over their estimated useful life or over the duration of the lease contract if
lower

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset s determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognized In income

Goodwill

Goodwill 1s an intangible asset with an indefinite Iife, derving from business combinations recognized using
the purchase method, and 15 recorded to reflect the positive difference between purchase cost and the
Group’s interest at the time of acquisition, after having recognized all assets, habilities and identifiable
contngent liabilities attributable to both the Group and third parties at therr fair value

Goodwill 1s not amentized but is (tested for impairment) annually or mere frequently If events or changes In
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired After inittal recognition goodwill 1s measured at cost less
any accumulated impamrment losses

impairment losses are recognized immediately as expenses that cannot be recovered i the future

On disposal of a subsidiary or assoctate, the attributable amount of unamontized goodwill 1s Included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal

Other intangible assets

Intangible fixed assets are those lacking an identifiable physical aspect, are controlled by the company and
are capable of generating future economic benefits

Other purchased and internally-generated intangible assets are recognized as assets in accordance with IAS
38 — Intangible Assets, where 1t 1s probable that the use of the asset will generate fulure economic benefits
and where the costs of the asset can be determined reliably

Such assets are measured at purchase or manufacturing cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful ives, if these assets have finite useful ives

Other intangtble assets acquired as part of an acquisition of a business are capitalized separately from
goodwill if theur fair value can be measured rehably
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In case of intangible fixed assets purchased for which availability for use and relevant payments are deferred
beyond normal terms, the purchase value and the relevant liablilities are discounted by recording the imphcit
financial charges in their onginal price

Expenditure on research activities Is recagnized as an expense in the period in which 1t 1s Incurred

Development costs can be capitalized on condition that they can be measured rebably and that evidence 1s
provided that the asset will generate future economic benefits

An internally-generated intangible asset ansing from the Group’s e-husiness development (such as
informatics solutions) s recognized only If all of the following conditions are met an asset 1s created that can
be identified (such as software and new processes), it1s probable that the asset created will generate future
econonic benefits, the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

These assets are amortized when launched or when available for use Until then, and on conditicn that the
above terms are respected, such assets are recognized as construction in progress Amortization s
determmned on a straight ine basis over the relevant useful lives

When an internally-generated mtangible asset cannot be recorded at balance sheet, development costs are
recognized in the statement of income In the penod in which they are incurred

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives consist principally of acquired trademarks which have no legal,
contractual, competitive, economic, or other factors that imit their useful hives Intangible assets with indefinite
useful ives are not amortized in accordance with IAS 36 crniteria, but are tested for impairment annually or
more frequently whenever there 1s an indication that the asset may be imparred Any imparment losses are
not subject to subsequent reversals

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such
indicatton exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 15 estimated In order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss {if any) Where 1t is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an indwvidual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

An itangible asset with an indefinite useful Iife 1s tested for impairment annually or more frequently,
whenever there 1s an indication that the asset may be impaired

The recoverable amount of an asset 15 the higher of fair value, less disposal costs and its value In use In
assessing is value in use, the pre-tax estimated future cash flows are discounted at therr present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of money and the rnisks
specific to the asset Its value in use 15 determined net of tax In that this method produces values largely
equivalent to those obtained by discounting cash flows net of tax at a pre-tax discount rate derved, through
an iteration, from the result of the post-tax assessment The assessment 1s carned out for the iIndividual asset
or for the smallest identifiable group of cash generating assets dernving from ongoing use, the so-called Cash
generating unit
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Ifthe recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)1s estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset s reduced to 1ts recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognrzed as
an expense iImmediately

Where the value of the Cash generating unit, inclusive of goodwill, 1s higher than the recoverable value, the
difference 1s subject to iImpairment and attributable firstly to goodwill, any exceeding difference 15 attributed
on a pro-quota basis to the assets of the Cash generating unit

Where animpauwment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset, (or cash-generating unit),
with the exception of goodwill, 1s Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount that would have been determined had no imparrment loss been recognized for
the asset Areversal of an impairment loss I1s recognized as income immediately, unless the relevant asset 1s
carned at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment ioss 1s ireated as a revaluation
increase

Investments in other companies

lnvestments in other companies that are avallable-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, when
this can be reliably determined Gains or Losses arnsing from change in fair value are recognized in Other
comprehensive income/{losses) until the assets are sold or are impaired, at that time, the cumutative Other
comprehensive incomef{losses) are recognized in the Income Statement Investments in other comparnies for
which fair value 1s not avarlable are stated at cost less any imparment losses

Dividends received are included in Other incomef{expenses) from investments

In the event of write-down for iImpairment, the cost 1s recognized in the iIncome statement, the onginal value
15 restored in subsequent years if the assumptions for the wnte-down no longer exist

The nsk resulting from possible losses beyond equity I1s entered in a specific provision for risks to the exient
to which the Parent Company 15 committed to fulfil its legal or implicit obligations towards the associated
company or to cover its losses

Current and non-current financial assets
Financial assets are recognized in the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party {o the
contractual provisions of the instrument

Investments are recognized and written-off the balance sheet on a trade-date basis and are initially measured
at cost, including transaction costs

At subsequent reporting dates, financial assets that the Group has the expressed intentton and ability to hold
to maturity (held-to-maturity secunties) are measured and amortized at cost according to the prevailing market
interest rate method, less any impairment loss recognized to reflect irrecoverable amounts

Investments other than held-to maturity securities are classified as either held-for-trading or avallable-for-sale,
and are measured ai subsequent reporting dates at fair value Where financial assets are held for trading
purposes, gans and losses ansing from changes in fair value are included in the net profit or loss for the
pericd, for avatlable-for-sale investments, gains and losses ansing from changes n farr value are recognized
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directly in equity, untit the security 1s disposed of or I1s determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in equity 1s Included in the net profit or loss for the period
This item 1s stated i the current financial assets

Transfer of financial assets

The Group removes financial assets from its balance sheet when, and only when, the contractual nghts to
the cash flows from the assets expire or the Group transfers the financial asset In the case of transfer of the
financial asset

e If the entity substantially transfers all the nisks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
the Group removes the asset from the balance sheet and recognizes separately as assets or
habilties any nghts and obligations created or retained with the transfer,

= If the Group substantially retains all the risks and rewards of cwnership of financial assets, it
continues to recognize the financial asset,

o if the Group neither transfers nor substantially retains all the nsks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, it determines whether or net 1t has retained control of the financial asset In
this case

+ f the Group has not retained control, it removes the asset from its balance sheet and
separately recognizes as assets or habihttes any rights and obligations created or retained in
the transfer,

+ Ifthe Group has retained control, it continues 1o recognize the financial asset to the extent of its
residual iInvolvement in the financial asset

At the time of removal of financial assets from the balance sheet, the difference between the carrying vaiue
of assets and the fees received or receivable for the transfer of the assets I1s recognized in the ncome
statement

Work In progress

Work In progress mainly comprise construction contracts, when the result of a specific order can be reliably
estimated, proceeds and costs referable to the related order are indicated as proceeds and costs
respectively in relation to the state of progress of activities on the date of closure of the financial statement,
based on the relationship between costs sustained for activities taking place up to the date of the financial
statement and total costs estimated from the order, except for that which 1s not considered as representative
of the state of progress of the order

Vanations n contract work claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue 15 recognized
to the exient of contract costs that 1t 1s probable will be recoverable Contract costs are recognized as
expenses In the penod in which they are incurred

When 1t 1s probable that the total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss 15
recogmzed as an expense Immediately Any advance paymenis are subtracted from the value of work in
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progress within the limits of the contract revenues accrued, the exceeding amounts are accounted as
habihities

Product inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value Cost comprises direct matenal
and, where apphcable, direct labor costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and conditton Cost is calculated using the weighted average method

Trade payables and receivables and other current assets and liabilities

Trade payables and receivables and other current assets and liabilities are measured at nominal value and
eventually wntten down to reflect their recoverable amount

Wriite-downs are determined 1o the extent of the difference of the carrying value of the receivables and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows

Recelvables and payables denominated in non EMU currencies are stated at the exchange rate at penod
end prowvided by the European Central Bank

Cash

The ntem cash and cash equivalents includes cash, banks and reimbursable deposits on demanad and other
short term financiat investments readily convertible in cash and are not subject to significant nisks in terms of
change in value

Treasury shares
Treasury shares are presented as a deduction from equity The onginal cost of treasury shares and proceeds
of any subseqguent sale are presented as movements in equity

Financial liabilities and equity investments
Financial iabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are presented according to therr substance
ansing from their contractual obligations and In accordance with the definitions of financial habilities and
equity Instruments The latter are defined as those contractual obligations that give the nght to benefit in the
residual interests of the Group's assets after having deducted iis habilities
The accounting standards adopted for specific financtal habihties or equity instruments are outlined below
+ Bank borrowings
o Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds recerved, net of
direct 1ssue costs and subsequently stated at its amortized cost using the prevailing
market interest rate method

s Equity instruments
o Equity instruments issued by the Group are stated at the proceeds received, net of direct
Issuance costs
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+« Non current financial iabilities
o Liabiities are stated according to the amortization cost

Derlvative financial instruments and other hedging transactions

In accordance with 1AS 39, dernvative financial instruments quahfy for hedge accounting only when at the
inception of the hedge there 1s formal designation and sufficcent documeniation that the hedge 1s highly
effective and that its effectiveness can be reliably measured The hedge must be highly effective throughout
the different financial reporting periods for which it was designated

All derivative financial instruments are measured In accordance with 1AS 39 at fair value

Changes In the fair value of dertvative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of
future cash flows relating to the Group's contractual commitments and forecast transactions are recogmzed
directly in Shareholders’ equity, while any ineffective portion 1s recogmzed immediaiely in the Income
Statement

If the hedged company commitment or forecasted transaction results in the recognition of an asset or iability,
then, at the time the asset or hability is recognized, associated gains or losses on the denvative that had
previously been recognized in equity are included in the iniial measurement of the asset or iability

For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset or a liability, amounts deferred in equity are
recognized in the income statement in the same penod n which the hedge commitmeni or forecasted
transaction affects net profit or loss, for example, when the future sale actually occurs

For effective hedging against a change in fair value, the hedged item 18 adjusted by the changes in farr value
attributable to the nisk hedged with a balancing entry in the Income Statement Gamns and losses ansing from
the measurement of the derivative are also recognized at the iIncome statement

Changes n the farr value of denvative financial instruments that no longer qualfy as hedge eccounting are
recognized in the Income Statement of the perniod in which they anse

Hedge accounting s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised
or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognized In equity 1s retained in equity until the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the net cumulative gain or 10ss recognized in equity 1s transferred to the net profit or loss for the penod
Implicit denvatives included in other financial instruments or in other contractual obligations are treated as
separate denvatives when their nisks and charactenstics are not strictly related to the underlying contractual
obligatton and the latier are not stated ai fair value with recogniion of gamns and losses in the Income
Statement

Employee benefits

The scheme underlying the employee severance indemnity of the lalan Group companies (the TFR) was
classified as a defined benefit plan up untit 31 December 2006 The legislstion regarding this scheme was
amended by Law No 296 of 27 December 2006 {the “2007 Finance Law’) and subsequent decrees and
regulations 1ssued n the first part of 2007 In view of these changes, and with specific reference to those
regarding companies with at least 50 employees, this scheme only continues to be classified as a defined
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benefit plan in the Consolidated financial statements for those benefits accruing up to 31 December 2006
(and not yet settled by the balance sheet date), while after that date the scheme s classified as a defined
contribution plan

For lahan companies with less than 50 employees severance pay (“TFR") remains a "post-employment
benefit”, of the defined benefit plan” type, whose already matured amount must be planned to estimate the
amount to settle at the time of annulment of working relations and subsequently updated, using the
“Projected unit credit method” Such actuanal methodology 1s based on an assumption of demographic and
financial nature in order to carry out a reasonable estimate of the amount of benelits that each employee had
already matured based on tus employment performances

Through actuanal valustion current service costs are recognized as “personnel expenses” in the Income
Statement and represent the amount of nghts matured by employees at the reporting date, and the nterest
cost 1s recognized as “Financial gains or losses” and represents the figurative expenditure the Company
would bear by securing a market loan for an amount corresponding to the Employee Termination Indemnities
{"TFR"

Actuanal income and losses that reflect the effects resulting from changes In the actuanal assumptions used
are directly recognized in Shareholders’ equity without being ever included in the consolidated income
statement

Pension plans
According to local conditions and practices, some employees of the Group benefit from pension plans of
defined benefits and/or a defined contribution

In the presence of defined contribution plans, the annual cost 1s recorded at the income statement when the
service cost 1s executed

The Group's oblgation to fund defined benefit pension plans and the annual cost recognized in the Income
Statement 15 determined on an actuarial basis using the “ongoing single premiums”™ method The portion of
net cumulative actuanal gains and losses which exceeds the greater of 10% of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation and 10% of the fair value of ptan assets at the end of the previous year is amortized
over the average rematning service lives of the employees

The post-employment benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of
the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized actuanal gains and losses, ansing from the
application of the corndor method and past service costs to be recognized in future years, reduced by the
farr value of plan assets
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Share-based payment plans

The Group has apphed the standard sel out by IFRS 2 "Share-based payment” Share-based payments are
measured at fair value at granting date Such amount s recognized in the income Statement, with a balancing
entry In Shareholders’ equity, on a straight-line basis over the “vesting penod”™ The fair value of the option,
measured at the granting date, 1s measured through actuanal calculations, taking inic account the terms and
conditions of the options granted Following the exerase of the options assigned in previous years, the Group
has no more stock option plans

For cash-settled share-based payment transactions the Group measures the goods and services acquired
and the liabihty incurred at the fair value of the kability Until the liability 15 settled, the Group 1s required to
remeasure the fair value of the liability at each reporting date and at the date of settlement, with the changes
In value recognized in profit or toss for the period

Prowvisions and reserves for risks

Provisions for risks and habilities are costs and liabilities having an established nature and the existence of
which 1s certain or probable that at the reporting date the amount cannot be determined or the occurrence
of which 1s uncertain Such provisions are recognized when a commitment actually exists arising from past
events of legal or contractual nature or ansing from statements or company conduct that determine vahd
expeciations from the persons involved (implicit obligations)

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present commitment ansing from a past event and it 1s
probable that it will be required to fulfil the commitment Provisions are accrued at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the hability at the balance sheet date, and are discounted when the effect 1s
significant

Revenue recognition
Revenue 1s recognized If it 1s probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group and the revenue can be measured reliably

Revenue from sales and services 1s recognized when the transfer of all the risks and benefits ansing from the
passage of title takes place or upon execution of a service

Revenues from sales of products are recognized when the nsks and rewards of ownership of goods are
transferred to the customer Revenues are recorded net of discounts allowances, settlement discounts and
rebates and charged against profit for the peniod in which the corresponding sales are recognized

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the financial statements when there 15 reasonable assurance that the
company concerned will comply with the conditions for recewving such grants and that the grants themselves
will be received Government grants are recognized as Income over the penods necessary to match them
with the related costs which they are intended to compensate
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Taxation

income tax represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 15 based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit defers from the profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of iIncome or expense that are taxable or
deductble in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible

Current income tax 1s entered for each individual company based on an esttmate of taxable income In
compliance with existing legislation and tax rates or as substantially approved at the period closing date in
each country, considering applicable exemptions and tax ¢redit

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount
of assets and hatulities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation
of taxable profit, and i1s accounted for using the balance sheet labidity method Deferred tax habibties are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
1s probable that taxable profits will be available agamnst which deductible temporary differences can be
utlized Such assets and habilities are not recognized If the temporary difference anses from goodwill or from
the iniial recognition (other than 1n a business combination) of other assets and habilities in a transaction that
affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recogrized for taxable temporary differences ansing oninvestments in subsidiaries
and associates and interests ansing in joint ventures, except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it (s probable that the temporary difference wili not reverse inthe foreseeable
future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that 1t 1s ne longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered

Deferred tax s calcutated at the tax rates that are expected to gpply to the penod when the liabilty 1s settled
or the asset realized Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity
Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when they relste to iIncome taxes levied by the same taxation
authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and habiliies on a net basis

In the event of changes to the accounting value of delerred tax assets and habihies dernving from a change
in the applicable tax rates and relevant tegislation, the resultng deferred tax amount 1s entered in Income
statement, unless 1t refers to debited or credited amounts previously recognized to Shareholders’ equity

Dividends
Dividends are entered in the accounting penod in which distribution 1s approved
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Earnings per share

Basic earmnings per share 1s calculated with reference to the profit for the penod of the Group and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year Treasury shares are excluded from this
calculation

Diluted earnings per share 1s determined by adjusting the basic earnings per share to take account of the
theoretical conversion of all potential shares, being all financial mstruments that are potentially convertibte
into ordinary shares, with diluting effect

Use of estimations

The preparation of the financial statements and relative notes under IFRS requires that management makes
estimates and assumptions that have effect on the measurement of assets and habilities and on disclosures
related to contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date The actual results could differ from such
esiimates Estimates are used to accrue provisions for risks on recevables, to measure development costs,
to measure contract work In progress, employee benefits, ncome taxes and other provisions The estimations
and assumptions are reviewed penodically and the effects of any changes are recognized immediatety In
income

In this context it 15 made known that the situation caused by the current economic and finanaial cnsis has
included the need to carry out underiakings regarding future progress charactenzed by significant
uncertamty, for which the materialization cannot be excluded in the next financial year of resulis different
from that estimated and that therefore could require rectification, up tc the present day, neither assessable
or foreseeable In the accounting value of the related items The items of the financial statements mainly
effected by such uncertainty are the impairment funds, nisk funds, goodwill and deferred taxes

Changes in accounting principles

The accounting principles newly adopted by the Group and their outcomes are described in the subsequent
paragraph “Accounting principles amendments and interpretations appled since 1 January 2014" There
have been no further changes other than those described in the alorementioned paragraph

Changes 1n accounting estimates and reclassifications

At the reporting date, there are no significant estimates regarding the unforeseeable outcome of fuiure
events and other causes of uncertainty that might result in significant adjustments being made to the value
of assets and liabilities in the coming year

OTHER ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
COMMENCING JANUARY 1, 2015

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans Employee Contributions

IAS 19 requires an eniity to consider contributtons from employees or third parties when accounting for
defined benefit plans Where the contributions are linkad to service, they should be attributed to penods of
service as a negative benefit These amendmenits clanfy that, if the amount of the conirtbutions is
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independent of the number of years of service, an enty I1s permitted to recognize such contributions as a
reduction In the service cost In the period in which the service 1s rendered instead of allocating the
contributions 1o the periods of service This amendment ts effective for annual perods beginning on or after
1 July 2014 This amendment I1s not relevant ta the Group, smce none of the entities within the Group has
defined benefit plans with contnbutions from employees or third parues

IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 21 s effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and 15 applied retrospectively It
1s applicable to all levies iImposed by governments under legislation, other than outflows that are within the
scope of other standards (e g, 1AS 12 Income Taxes) and fines or other penaltes for breaches of legislation

The interpretation cianfies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy no earher than when the activity that
tnggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs It also clanfies that a levy liabilty 1s
accrued progressively only if the activity that triggers payment occurs over a pered of ime, in accordance
with the relevant legislation For a levy that is tnggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, no lability s
recognized before the specified minimum threshold is reached The interpretation requires these same
principles 1o be applhed in interim financial statements

This amendment 15 effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, and 1t 1s not relevant to the
Group

Annual improvements to IFRS- cycle 2010-2012

These improvements have been in force since July 1, 2014 and the Group has applied them for the first time
In these consolidated financiat statements The improvements are related to a senes of amendments to
IFRS , In response to eight topics discussed duning the cycle from 2010 to 2012 They relate largely to
clarfication, and their adoption had no material iImpact on the intenm consolidated financial statements

Annual improvements to IFRS- cycle 2011-2013

These improvements have been in force since July 1, 2014 and the Group has applied them for the first time
In these consolidated financial statements The improvements are redated to a sernies of amendments to
IFRS, In response to four topics discussed dunng the cycle from 2011 to 2013 They relate largely to
clarification, and ther adoption had no matenal impact on the intenim consolidated financial statements

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The standards and interpretations that are 1ssued, but not yet effective, up to the date of 1ssuance of the
Group’s financial statements are disclosed below The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable,
when they become effective
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In July 2014, the IASB 1ssued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial

Instruments Recogrution and Measurement and all previous verstons of IFRS 9 IFRS 9 brings together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments project classificanon and measurement,
imparment and hedge accounting IFRS 915 effective for annual penods beginming on or after 1 January 2018,
with early application permitted Except for hedge accounting, retrospective apphcation 18 required but
providing comparative information 1s not compulsory For hedge accouniing, the requirements are generally
appled prospectively, with some limited exceptions The Group plans to adopt the new standard on the
required effective date Overall, the Group expects no significant impact on its balance sheet and equity The
Group will assess possible changes related to the accounting for the ime value of options, forward points or
the currency basis spread in more detall in the future

{FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 was 1ssued In May 2014 and establishes a five-step model te account for revenue ansing from

contracts with custormners Under IFRS 15, revenue 1s recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitied in exchange {or transfernng goods or services to a customer

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under [FRS Erther a
full retrospective application or a modified retrospective apphcation s required for annual penods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 Early adoption 1s permitted The Group plans to adopt the new standard on the
required effective date using the full retrospective method Preliminary evaluation of the effects of IFRS 15 15
currently in progress

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
The amendments to {IFRS 11 mainly require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an interest in

a Joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business, must apply the relevant
{FRS 3 pninciples for business combinations accounting

The amendments prospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 with early
adoption permitted These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group

Amendments to 1AS 16 and IAS 38 Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortization
The amendments clanfy the principle iIn1AS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits

that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset i1s parti) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through use of the asset As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to
depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very hmited circumstances to amortize
intangible assets The amendments are effective prospectively for annual penods beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with early adoption permitted These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the
Group given that the Group has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current assets

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
The amendments will allow entities 1o use the equity method to account for nvestments n subsidianes, joint

ventures and associates in therr separate financial statements Entities already applying IFRS and electing to
change to the equity method in its separate financial statements will have to apply that change
retrospectively
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For first-time adopters of IFRS electing to use the eguity method in 1its separate financial statements, they will
be required to apply this method from the date of ransiion 10 IFRS The amendments are effective for
annual perods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitited These amendments will
not have any impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and I1ts
Associate or Joint Venture
The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and I1AS 28 in dealing with the loss of conirol of a

subsidiary thatis sold or contnbuted to an associate or Joini venture The amendments clanfy that the gain or
loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between
an investor and its associate or joint venture, 1$ recogrized in full Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contnbution of assets that do not constitute a business, however, s recognized only to the extent of unrelated
Investors' interests in the associate or joint venture These amendments must be applied prospectively and
are effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted These
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
These mprovements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, and no impact

on the Group I1s expected

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Imitiative
The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements are effective for annual pernieds begmning on

or after 1 January 2016, and no impact 1s expected on the Group

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities Applying the Consolidation Exception
The amendments address 1ssues that have arisen In applying the investment entities exception under IFRS

10 The amendments to IFRS 10 clanfy that the exemption from presenting consolidated financial statements
applies to a parent entity that 1s a subsidiary of an investment entity, when the investment entity measures all
of its subsidianes at farr value

Furthermore, the amendments to IFRS 10 clanfy that only a subsidiary of an investment entity that 1s not an
Investment entity itself and that provides support services to the investment entity 1s consolidated All cther
subsidianes of an investment entity are measured at fair value The amendments to IAS 28 allow the investor,
when applying the eguity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the investment entity
assoclate or joint venture to its mterests in subsidiaries

These amenaments must be applied retrospectively and are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted These amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the Group
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NOTE 3 - Risk management

Credit nsk =

For business purposes, specific policies are adopied to assure its clients’ solvency

With regards to financial counterparty nsk, the Group does not present significant risk in credit-worthiness or
selvency

Liquidity risk

The group 1s exposed to funding nsk If there1s difficulty in obtaining finance for operations at any given pomnt
In time

The cash flows, funding requirements and liquidity of the Group companies are monitored and centrally
managed under the control of the Group Treasury The aim 1s to guarantee the efficiency and effectiveness
of the management of current and perspective capital resources {(maintaining an adequate level of reserves
of hquichty and availability of funds via a suitable amount of committed credit ines)

The difficult economic situation of the markets and of financial markets necessitates special attention being
given to the management of the iquidity nsk, and in that sense particular emphasis 1 being placed on
measures taken to generate financial resources through operaticns and maintaning an adequate level of
hquid assets The Group therefore plans to meet its requirements to settle financial labilities as they fall due
and to cover expected capital expenditures by using cash flows from operations and available liquidity,
renewing or refinancing bank loans

Exchange rate and interest rate risk
As the Group operates mainly in a “Euros area” the exposure to currency nsks 1s imited The Group mamly
does not operate in areas with strong fluctuations in currency and therefore this nisk 1s not sigmificant

The exposure to Interest rate nisk anses from the need to fund operating activities and M&A investments, as
well as the necessity to deploy available hquidity Changes in market interest rates may have the effect of
either increasing or decreasing the Group's net profit/loss), thereby indirectly affecting the costs and returns
of financing and investing transactions

The interest rate nsk to which the Group 1s exposed derives from bank loans, to mitigate such nsks, and when
the Group considers it approprate, makes use of dernvative financial instruments designated as “cash flow
hedges™

The use of such instruments 1s disciplined by written procedures in line with the Group's nisk management
strategies that do not contemplate denvative financial instruments for trading purposes
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NOTE 4 - Consolidation

Companies included in consolidation are consohdated on a line-by-line basis

Change in consolidation compared to 31 December 2014 I1s related to Leadwvise, a company incorporated
under German 'aw acquired in the month of March 2015 by the subsidiary Reply AG The company offers
services In Management Consufting mainly in the areas of Innovation Management, Risk Management and
Digital Optimization

Change in the consolidation does not sigruficantly affect the Group’s revenues and profits before tax on 31
December 2015 (approximately O 8% on consolidated revenue and 01% on EBT)

NOTE 5 - Revenue

Revenues from sales and services, ncluding changes In work in progress on orders, amounted to 705,601
thousand Euros (632,184 thousand Euros in 2014)

This item includes consulting services, fixed price projects, assistance and mainienance services and other
MINOr revenues

The following table shows the percentage breakdown of revenues by geographic area Moreover the
breakdown reflects the business management of the Group by Top Management and the allocation
approximates the localization of services provided

Country 2015 2014
Italy 7100% 723%
Germany 16 50% 155%
United Kingdom 12 50% 122%
Total 100 00% 100 00%

Disclosure required by IFRS 8 {“Operating segment”) i1s provided in Note 33 herein
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NOTE 6 - Purchases

Detall 1s as follows

{thousand Eurcs) 2015 2014 Change
Software licenses for resafe 6268 6,038 231
Hardware for resale 1548 693 855
Other 6232 5496 736
Total 14,049 12,227 1,822

Purchases of Software licenses and Hardware licenses for resale are recognized net of any change In
Inventory

The ttem Other includes the purchase of fuel for 2,297 thousand Euros and the purchase of consumption
matenal for 2,627 thousand Euros

NOTE 7 - Personnel

Detall 15 as follows

{thousand Euros) 2015 2014 Change
Payroll employees 317,485 276767 40718
Executive Directors 26673 25342 1,331
Project collaborators 5563 6,343 (780)
Total 349,721 308,452 41,269

The increase n the cost of employees, amounting to 41269 thousand Euros, 1s attnbutable to the total
registered increase in the Group's business and in the increase in employees

Detail of personnel by category 1s provided below

(number) 2015 2014 Change
Diectors 294 270 24
Managers 774 713 61
Staff 4177 3706 471
Total 5,245 4,689 556

60




On 31 December 2015 the Group had 5,245, employees compared with 4,689 at the end of 2014

The average number of employees in 2015 was 4,949 marking an increase with respectto n 4,473 n the
previous year

Payroll employees compnse mainly electronic engineers and economic, computer science, and business
graduates from the best Universities

NOTE 8 — Services and other costs

Services and other costs comprised the following

{thousand Euros) 2015 2014 Change
Commercial and technical consulting 152500 144 870 7,630
Traveling and professional training expenses 27825 24 341 3,485
Other services cosis 45258 a1 3546
Office expenses 16158 14384 1774
Lease and rentals 7773 7255 518
Cther 6,623 6659 {36)
Totat 256,137 239,220 16,917

The change In Services and other costs, amounting to 16,917 Euros, 15 attributable to an overall increase n
the Group’s business

The item Other services mainly include marketing services, administrative and legal services, telephone and
canteen

Office expenses include rent charged by third parties for 9 715 thousand Euros, utility expenses for 2,770
thousand Euros and services rendered by third parties for 807 thousand euro and related parties for 1024
thousand Eurgs, in connection to service contracts for the use of premises, domicihiation and the provision of
secretanal services
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NOTE 9 — Amortization, depreciation and write downs

Depreciation of tangible assets, calculated on the basis of economic-technical rates determined in relation
to the residual useful lives of the assets, resulted in an overall charge as at 31 December 2015 of 5,375
thousand Euros Detalls of deprectation are provided in the notes to tangible assets

Amortization of intangible assets for the year ended 2015 amounted to an overall loss of 3,995 thousand
Euros Detaills of depreciation are provided in the notes to tangible assets

NOTE 10 — Other unusual operating income/(expenses)

Other unusual operating costs amounted to 1,408 thousand Euros (407 thousand Euros in 2014) and refer to !

»  (Other operating costs amounting to 2,601 thousand Euros in relation to provision for coniractual
and commercial nsks and lawsutits,

s  Other unusual items amounting te positive 1,192 thousand Euros in relation to the fair value
adjustment of the hability referred to the deferred consideration for the acquisition of
shareholdings in subsidiary companies (Business combination)

NOTE 11 — (Loss)/gain on investments

This item amounting to 440 thousand Euros 1s related to
¢ The fair value of the investment in Cocoon Alarm Ltd resulting in a gain of 1,073 thousand Euros,
e Impairment of the investment in Greemant BV in the amount of 633 thousand Euros, following the
winding up of the company
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NOTE 12 — Financial income/(expenses)

Detall 1s as follows

{thousand Euros) 2015 2014 Change
Financial income 427 378 49
Interest expenses (1334) (1950) 615
Other (1159) 176 (1335)
Total {2,067) {1,396) 6M)

Firancial income mainly include interest on bank accounts amounting to 377 thousand Euros

Interest expenses manly include expenses related to loans for M&A operations

The item Other includes the Exchange rate differences from the translation of balance sheet items not stated
in Euros, as well as changes in farr value of financial habilities pursuant to 1AS 39

NOTE 13 — Income taxes

Income taxes for the financial year ended 2015 amounted to 31,502 thousand Euros and 15 detailed as follows

{thousand Eures) 2015 2013 Change
IRES and other taxes 24 2756 20365 391
IRAP {italy} 5206 9000 {3794)
Current taxes 29,481 29,365 "z
Deferred tax expenses 5272 3035 2238
Deferred tax income {3252 (1754) {1,498)
Deferred taxes 2,020 1,281 739
Total income taxes 31,502 30,646 B56

The tax burden on the result before taxes was equivalent to 35 4% (38 7% in the financial year of 2014)
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The reconciliation between the tax charges recorded In the consolidated financial stalements and the
theoretical tax charge, calculated on the basis of the theoretical tax rate In effect in Raly, 1s the following

Profit/(loss) before taxes from continuing operations 88,930
Theoretical Income taxes 24,456 275%
Effect of difference between foreign tax rates and the theoretical Italian tax rate (561)
Other differences 380
Current and deferred income tax recognized in the financial statement excluding IRAP 24,276 27 3%
IRAP current and deferred 5206
Current and deferred income recognized in the financ:al statements 29,481 332%

In order to render the reconciliaion between income taxes recognized in the financial statements and
theoretical income taxes more meaningful, IRAP tax 1s not taken into consideration since it has a taxable basis
that 1s different from the result before tax of continuing operations Theoretical iIncome taxes are therefore
calculated by applying only the tax rate in effect in lRaly ("IRES”), equal to 27 5%, on the result before tax of
continuing operations

NOTE 14 - Earnings per share

The basic and diluted earnings per share as at 31 December 2015 was calculated on the basis of the Group's
net result amounting to 56,748 thousand Euros (47,909 thousand Euros as at 31 December 2014) divided by
the weighted average number of shares, net of treasury shares, as at 31 December 2015 which amounted to
9,351,850 (9,351,850 as at 31 December 2014}

{Euros} 31/12/2015 31M2/2014
Group net result 56 748,000 47,905 000
Average no shares 9 351850 9,351,850
Earnings per share 607 512

The bastc earnings per share 1s the same of diluted earnings per share because there arent financial
instruments potentially convertible in shares (stock options)
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NOTE 15 - Tangible assets

Tangible assets as at 31 December 2015 amounted t¢ 17,022 thousand Euros and are detailed as follows

{thousand Euros) 3122015 3112/2014 Change
Buildings 1,906 2048 (142)
Plant and machinery 2805 2209 596
Hardware 3357 3,586 {229)
Other 8,955 7134 1821
Total 17,022 14,976 2,046
Change in tangible assets dunng 201515 summanzed below
Plant and

{thousand Euros) Buildings machinery Hardware Other Total
Historical Cost 4023 6,147 25,844 1813 52127
Accumulated depreciation {1975) (3938 (22 259) {8,979) {37,151)
3112/2014 2,048 2,209 3,586 7,134 14,976
Historical cost

Increases - 1412 2406 3867 7,686
Disposals - {73) {1 605} (874) {2,553)
Other changes - 679 131 225 1,035
Accumulated depreciatron

Depreciation (142) (804) {2 595} {} B34) (5.375)
Utihzed - 44 1555 488 2,087
Other changes - 661 122) (52) (835)
Historical Cost 4023 8165 26,777 19 331 58,206
Accumulated depreciation {217 {5 359) (23 420) (10 377) (41.274)
31/12/2015 1,906 2,805 3,357 8,955 17,022

During the financial year the Group carned out total investments 7,686 thousand Euros (6,512 thousand Euros

at 31 December 2014)

The tem Buildings mainly includes the net value of a bullding owned by the group amounting to 1,903

thousand Euros, located in Gutersloh, Germany

Increase 1n the item Plant and machinery mamly refers to purchases of specific devices and to plant systems

for the new offices in which the Group operates
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Change 1n the tem Hardware 1s due to investments made by operating companies for purchases of specific
equipment about mobile and the construction of plants for the new headquarters of Group Furthermore this
item includes financial leases for 230 thousand Euros (248 at 3t December 2014)

The tem Other as at 31 December 2015 mainly includes improvements to third party assets and office
furniture The increase of 3,867 Euros mainly refers to improvemenis made to the offices where the Group's
companies operate Such item alse Includes a financial leasing for furniture for a net value amounting to 1,412
thousand Euros (733 thousand Euros at 31 December 2014)

Other changes refer to change in consolidation and to translation differences

As at 31 December 2015 tangible assets were depreciated by 70 8% of their value, compared to 71 3% at the
end of 2014

NOTE 16 - Goodwiill

This item includes goodwill ansing from consclidation of subsidianes and the value of business branches
purchased against payment made by some Group companies

Goodwill in 2015 developed as follows

{thousand Euros)

Beginning balance 126,763
Exchange rate differences (1.623)
Beginning balance without excthange rate differences 125,180
Increases 5,875
Impairment -
Total 131,015
Exchange rate differences 2361
Ending balance 133,376

The increase I1s related to Leadvise, a company incorporated under German law acguired in the month of
March 2015 by the subsidiary Reply AG, for an initial cash consideration of 3,500 thousand Euros

The following table summarizes the calculation of goodwill and the aggregate book value of the companies
as at the acquisition date
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{thousand Euros) Fair value (*)

Tangible and intangible assels 38
Trade recevables and other 515
Cash and cash equrvalents 746
Financial llabiliies 937)
Trade payables and other (206)
Deferred tax (4)
Net assets acquired 152
Compensation 6 027
Goodwill 5,875

(*) book value 15 equal to farr value

Goodwill was allocated to the cash generating units (*CGU”), identified in the countries in which the Group
operates Moreover the breakdown reflects the business management of the Group by Top Management
and 1s summarized as follows

cGu Euro/000
Italy 39003
Germany 38572
UK 52 440
Total 131,015

Reply has adopted a siructured and pernodic planning and budgeting system aimed at defining objectives
and business strategies in order to draft the annual budget

The imparrment model adopted by the Reply Group 1s based on future cash flows calculated using the
Discounted cash flow anaiysis

In applying this moadel, Management uses different assumptions, which are appled to the single CGU over
two years of extrapolation subsequent to the annual budget, in order to estimate

* Increase In revenues,

e Increase in operaling cosis,

* Investments,

s Change in net capital
The recoverable value of the CGU, to which the single goodwill s referred, 1s determined as the highest
between the fair value less any selling costs (net selling pnce) and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected from the continuous use of the good {value i use) Hf the recoverable value 15 higher
than the carrying amount of the CGU there 1s no imparrment of the asset, in the contrary case, the model
indicates a difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable value as the effect of impairment
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The following assumptions were used In calculating the recoverable value of the Cash Generating Units

Assumption Italy Germany UK
Terminal value growth rales 1% 1% 1%
Discount rate, net of taxes 817% 6 65% 748%
Discount rate before taxes 11 27% 9 44% 9 46%
Multiple of EBIT 104 104 104

As to all CGUs subject to the impairment tests at 31 December 2015 no ndications emerged that such
businesses may have been subject to impairment

The positive difference between the value in use thus estimated on the accounting value of the net invested
capital on 31 December 2015 of the CGU 15 equal to 329% for italy, 280% for Germany and 41% for the UK

Reply has also developed a sensiivity analtysis of the esumated recoverable value The Group considers
that the growth rate of revenues and the discount rate are key indicators in estimating the fair value and
has therefore determined that

» adecrease of up to 30% of the revenue growth,

+ anincrease of 100 basis points in the discount rate
would not lead to an excess of the carrying value of the CGU compared to its recoverable value, which
tends to be significantly higher

Finally, it 1s approprate to noie that the estimates and budget data to which the above mentioned
parameters have been applied are those determined by management on the basis of past performance
and expectations of developments in the markets in which the Group operates Moreover, estimating the
recoverable amount of the Cash-Generatng Units requires discretion and the use of esumates by
Management The Group cannot guarantee that there will be no goodwill imparrment in future penods
Circumstances and events which could potentially cause further imparment losses are constantly
monitored by Reply management
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NOTE 17 — Other intangible assets

Net intangible assets as at 2015 amounted to 9,696 thousand Euros (6,549 thousand Euros on 31 December
2014) and are detalled as follows

Accumulated Net book value as at
{thousand Euros) Histornical Cost amorzation 3112/2015
Development costs 21610 (16 174) 5436
Software 19917 (16 i94) 3,723
Trademarks 537 - 537
Other intangble assets 3150 (3150) -
Total 45 214 (35.518) 9,696

Change in intangible assets during 2015 is summarized in the table below

Net book value as Other Netbook value as
{thousand Euros) at 31/112/2014 Increase Amortization changes at 3122015
Developmens costs 3599 4117 {2 280) - 5,436
Software 2414 3,090 {1.715) 65} 3723
Trademark 537 - - - 537
Total 6,549 7,207 (3,995) [65]) 9,696

Development costs refer to software products and are accounted for in accordance with provisions of IAS
38

The item Software mainly refers to software licenses purchased and used internally by the Group companes
This item includes 382 thousand Euros related to sofiware development for internal use

The item Trademark mainly refers to the value of the Reply” trademark granted on 9 June 2000 to the Parent
Company Reply S p A (at the time Reply Europe Sarl), in connection with the share capital increase that was
resolved and subscribed to by the Parent Company Such amount Is not subject to systematic amortization
Other intangible assets manly includes the know-how of the Secunty Operation Centre (SOC), which offers
a range of Managed Secunty Services (MSS) amed at avoiding and 1dentifying real or potential threats to
which the complex IT infrastructures are exposed, in addition to proposing and implementing adequate
counter-measures to lmit or remove such dangers
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NOTE 18 - Equity investments

The item Equity investments amounts to 9,105 thousand Eurcs and includes for 24 thousand Euros several
subsidiary companies that were not consolidated as they were not operational at the closing date and for
9,081 to investments in start-up companies it the loT field made principally by the Investment company
Breed Investments Ltd

Noie that the companies listed below, mainly held through an investment Entity as defined by IFRS 10, are
designated at fair value and accounted for in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement™ The fair value 1s determined using the International Private Equity and Venture Capitat
valuation guidehne (IPEV } and any change therein 1s recognized in profit /{loss) in the penod in which they

occurred
% Value at  Increases/ Fair value Value ot
Company name country acquired  31/12/2014  Decreases  adjustments  Write-downs 3112/2015
Cocoon Alarm Limited UK 2209% - 1,928 1,062 - 2990
Xmetycs Sports Limited UK 3000% - 920 - - 92¢
Greeniant BV Netherlands 3576% - 6533 - (633)
Inova Design Lid UK 2222% - 704 - - 704
Zeeta Networks Lig UK 15 83% - 579 - - 579
Sensoria usa 2127% 3888 - - - 3888
Total 3,888 4,764 1,062 {633) 9,081
Cocoon

A UK based start-up that has created a smart home secunty system that senses unusual activity throughout
the house in real time, without the need for any additional sensors or professional installation It avoids false
alarms by learning what s normal for home, only sending alerts and high quality video straight to your
smartphone via the mobile app Cocoon receved a London Design Award and has been listed in Forbes as
one of the top new businesses to keep an eye on in 2015 The investment was valued at the market value
of the Iast round that took place on October 12, 2015

Xmetrics

A company that offers innovative devices for swimmers Xmetrics uses sensors, electronic components and
software via mobile dewvices, to enhance the training sessions of professional and amateur swimmers,
analyzing their main biometric parameters and therr real time performance The investment was vatued at
the price paid upon acquisition, there were no subsequent rounds

Greeniant

A Dutch start-up whose solution was to analyze energy consumpiion by using the data from smarn meters
to enable the analysis of consumption and use of electrical appliances Durng the year the company was
put in iquidation and therefore entirely wniten-off
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Inova Design

Inova Design is a technology company specializing in design, development and marketing of new solutions
for detecting body parameters in order to optimize performance and prevention of llinesses The product 1s
a headset capable of offering the accurate measurement of all the physiotogical parameters together with
the monitaning of the movement, all In a single miniaturized dewvice, not- Invasive and that provides the user
data in a continuous, real-ume and wireless way The Inova 's patented technology ¢can be apphed in many
fields such as sports, health and defense The investment was valued at the price paid upon acquisition,
there were no subsequent rounds

Zeeta Networks Ltd

Zeeta Networks offers NetOS® a powerful orchestration software which manages, automates and monitors
an ICT network while sigruficantly reducing 1ts operating costs The investment was valued at the pnce pad
upon acquistion, there were no subsequent rounds

Sensona

Headquartered in Redmond, Washington — Sensona 1s a leading developer of wearable platforms and
devices The company was founded on the wvision that clothing would become the futcrem between internet
of Things and People as a seamless, naturally wearable body-sensing computer The investment was
valued at the price paid upon acquisition, there were no subsequent rounds

It 1s reported that on December 18, 2015 a contract for the partcipation in the Amike Digital Health Limited
capital was signed for £ 425 thousand, subject to conditions precedent, resolved in January 2016, with the
simultaneous subscription of shares equal to 11 11 % of the share capital

All farr value assessments shall be part of the hierarchy level 3

NOTE 19 - Financial assets

Current and non-current financial assets amounted (o a total of 7,318 thousand Euros with compared to 6,716
thousand Euros as at 31 December 2014
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Detall 1s as follows

{thousand Euros) 3112/2015 31212014 Change
Receivables from Insurance companies 3,194 3082 12
Guarantee deposits 853 1013 (160)
Loans to non-consolidated companies 68 20 48
Long term securiies 55 358 (303)
Oiher financial asseis 14 18 {4)
Converiible loans 1512 - 1512
Receivables from factor 744 960 {26}
Short term securiies 1,478 1265 212
Tatal 7.918 6,716 1,202

The item Receivables from insurance companes mamnly refers to the insurance premiums paid agamnst
pension plans of some German companies and to directors’ severance iIndemnities

Recewvables from factonng companies refer to recevables for the assignment of invoices without recourse
for 3,718 thousand Euros, net of advance payments received for 2,974 thousand Euros

Convertible loans relate to the option to convert into shares of the following start-up company in the field of
loT
- EnModus technology company specializing in the monitonng control and Internet connectiaty of
any device on AC power Wattwave I1s the enModus patented powerline technology that uses the
existing wining infrastructure
- Gymcraft sport - tech company, combining the fitness industiry with the world of video games in an
Innovative way to build the virtual sporting experience of the future Gymeraft takes full advantage
of the potential of virtual reality giving to users a fitness, real time and interaciive experience
during the course of thewr favonte sports

Short term securities mamnly refer to Time Deposit investments

The items Receivables from insurance compames, Convertible loans and Other financial assets are not
included in the net financial posibion

NOTE 20 - Deferred tax assets

Such an item, amounting to 17,339 thousand Euros as at 31 December 2015 (15,052 thousand Euros as at 31
December 2014) includes the fiscal charge corresponding to the temporary differences onginating among
the anti-tax result and taxable income relating to entnes with deferred deductbiity
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Detail of deferred tax assets 1s provided at the table below

{thousands Euros) 3112/2014 Accruals Utihzation 3NM22015

Prepaid tax on costs thai will become deduclible 6,019 2,699 {2,463) 6254
0 fulure years

Prepald tax on greater provisions for doubtful

accounts 5 861 1835 (642) 7,054
Deferred fiscal deductibility of amortization 1728 246 {257) 1,677
Consolidation adjustments and other items 1444 3127 {2218) 2353
Total 15,052 7,906 (5.619) 17,339

The decision to recognize deferred tax assets I1s taken by assessing critically whether the conditions exist for
the future recoverability of such assets on the basis of expected future results
There are no deferred tax assets on losses carned forward

NOTE 21 — WORK IN PROGRESS

Work in progress, amounting to 57,929 thousand Euros, 1s detalled as foliows

(thousand Euros) 3112/2015 31122014 Change
Contract work i progress 141309 112 045 29,264
Advance payments from customers (83 380) {71244) (12,136)
Totat 57,929 40,801 17,128

Any advance paymenis made by the customers are deducted from the value of the inventones, within the
limits of the accrued consideration, the exceeding amounts are accounted as liabilities
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NOTE 22 — Trade receivables

Trade receivables as at 31 December 2015 amounted to 302,250 thousand Euros with a net increase of
16,785 thousand Euros

{thousand Euros} 3112/2015 3112/2014 Change
Domestc clienis 233,502 227900 5603
Foreign irade recevables 71178 59 368 1810
Cradit notes to be issued 9 (42) 33
Total 304,672 287,226 17,446
Allowance for doubtful accounts {2422) (1761 {661}
Total trade recevables 302,250 285,465 16,785

Trade recewables are shown net of allowances for doubtful accounts amounting 10 2,422 thousand Eures on
31 December 2015 (1,761 thousand Euros at 31 December 2014)

The Allowance for doubtful accounts developed in 2015 as follows

{thousand Euros) 31122014 Accruals Reversals Utihzation 311272015

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1.761 735 2] {64 2422
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Over-due trade receivables and the corresponding allowance for doubtful accounts, compared to 2014, are
summanzed n the tables below

Aging at
3112/2015

Trade 91-180 181- 360 Over 360 Total
(thousand Euros) receivables Current O - 90 days days days days overdue
Trade recevables 304,672 256,601 41039 3574 1615 1843 48.0M1
Allowance for doubtful accounts {2 422) )} (301) {220) (499) {1,391 2 41
Total trade receivables 302,250 256,590 40,738 3,354 1115 452 45,660
Aging at
3112/2014

Trade 91-180 181 - 360 Over 360 Total
{thousand Eurcs) recevables Current O - 90 days days days days overdue
Trade recevables 287,226 243,922 37,374 3346 856 1,728 43,304
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,761 17 (313) (78) (129} (1,230) (1,750)
Total trade recewvables 285,465 243,914 37,060 3,268 726 498 41,554

Assignment of receivables

The Group assigns part of its trade recervables through factoring operations

The assignments of receivables can be with or without recourse, some assignmenis without recourse ¢an
include deferred payment clauses (for exampie, payment by the factor of 8 minor part of the purchase price
15 subordinated on the collection of the total amount of the receivables), require a deductible from the
assignor or require maintaining significant exposure teo the cash flow trend denving from the assigned
recelvables This type of operation does not comply with the requirements of IAS 39 for the elimination of the
assets from the financial statements, since the nsks and benefits related to their collection have not been
substanually transferred

Consequently, alt receivables assigned through factoning operations that do not satisfy the requirements for
elimination provided by IAS 39 continue 10 be recognized in the Group's financial statements, even though
they have been legally assigned and a financial lability for the same amount is recognized in the consolidated
financial statements as kiabilities for advance payments on assignments of receivables Gamns and losses
related to the assignment of these assets are only recognized when the assets are derecognized from the
Group's financial-economic position

As at 31 December 2015 the recewvables transferred via Factenng operations with recourse amounted to
15,884 thousand Euros

The book value of the assets assigned without recourse as at 31 December 2015 amounted to 7 100 thousand
Euros, with an increase of avallable hguidity of 6,356 thousand Euros of which 2,974 thousand Eures recerved
as an advance

The carrying amount of Trade recevables is in ine with its fair value

Trade recewables are all collectible within one year
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NOTE 23 - Other receivables and current assets

Detail 15 as follows

{thousand Euros) 3112/2015 31/12/2044 Change
Tax recewables 15425 8339 7.086
Advances to employees 100 16 (16)
Accrued tncome and prepald expenses 6 049 5120 929
Other recevables 19 389 14,086 5,314
Total 40,973 27,661 13.312

The stem Tax receivables mainty includes
s credits to the Treasury for VAT (7,973 thousand Euros),
+ Income tax prepayments net of the allocated hability (4,921 thousand Eures),

« recelvables for withholding tax {83 thousand Euros)

The item Other receivables mainly includes the contnibutions receivable in relation to research projects for
15,761 thousand Euros (12,484 thousand Euros at 31 December 2014)

NOTE 24 - Cash and cash equivalents

The balance of 105,137 thousand Euros, with an increase of 16,318 thousand Euros compared with 31
December 20%4, represents cash and cash equivalents and the existence of cash on hand and valuables as
at the end of the year

Changes in cash and cash equivalents are fully detailled in the consolidated statement of cash flow

NOTE 25 — Shareholders’ equity

Share capital
On 31 December 2015 the company capital of Reply S p A, wholly undersigned and paid up, was amounting
to 4,863,486 Euros and 1s composed of n 9,352,857 ordinary shares with nominal value of 0 52 Euros each

Treasury shares
The value of the Treasury shares, amounting to 25 thousand Euros, refers to the shares of Reply S p A held
by the parent company that at 31 December 2015 were equal to n 1,007
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Capital reserves

On 31 December 2015 Capital reserves, amounting to 72,836 thousand Euros, were mainly comprised as

follows

Earning reserves

Share premium reserve amounting to 23,303 thousand Eurcs,

Treasury share reserve amounting to 25 thousand Euros, relating to the shares
of Reply S p A held by the Parent Company,

Reserve for the purchase of treasury shares amounting to 49,976 thousand
Euros, formed via initial withdrawal from the share premium reserve By means
of a resolution of the Shareholders’ Meeting of 23 Apnil 2015 Reply Sp A re-
authonzed it, In accordance with and for the purposes of Article 2357 of the
Italian Civil Code, the purchase of a maximum of 50 million Euros of ordinary
shares, corresponding to 20% of the share capital, in a lump sum solutton or In
several solutions within 18 months of the resolution

Earnings reserves amounted to 218,946 thousand Euros and were comprised as follows

Reply S p A’s Legal reserve amounted to 973 thousand Euros,
Retained earnings amounted to 161226 thousand Euros {retained earnings
amounted to 147,996 thousand Euros on 31 December 2014 ),

Profits/losses attnbutable to shareholders of the Parent Company amounted to
56,748 thousand Euros (47 809 thousand Euros as on 31 December 2014)

Other comprehensive iIncome

Other comprehensive income can be analyzed as follows

{thousands euros) 31/12/2015 3V12/2044
Other comprehensive iIncome that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or foss net of tax
Actuanal gains/{losses) from employee benefit plan 567 (2,349)
Total Other comprehensive income that will not be classified 567 (2.249)
subsequently to profit or loss, net of tax (B1) ¥
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss
Gainsf{losses) on cash flow hedges 4 120
Gainsf{losses) from the translation of financial siatements 894 339
Totat Other comprehensive income that may be classified subsequently to 808 459
profit or loss, net of tax {B2)
Total other comprehensive iIncome, net of tax (B) = (B1) + (B2) 1,465 {1,890)
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Share based payment plans
There are no stock option plans resolved by the General Shareholders' meetings

NOTE 26 - Payables to minority shareholders and for
operations

Payables to minornty shareholders and for company operations (earn out) owed on 31 December 2015 amount
to 19,746 thousand Euros inclusive of an exchange difference amounting to 16 thousand Euros and are
detailed as follows

Fair value Exchange
{thousand Eures) 3112/2014 Increases adjustments Payments differences 3MM2/2015
Payable to minonty 5878 6,798 394 (830) (298) 1,942
sharehalders
Fayables for Earn-out 7427 2,214 1182) (837) 282 7 803
Total payables to minority
shareholders and earn-out 13,306 9,012 {788) (1,767) (16) 19,746

The increase In payables to minonty shareholders amounting to 6,798 thousand Euros reflects the best
estimate of the option to acquire the mionty shares in future reporting penods subject to the achievement
of profitability parameters contractually defined

The increase In payables for earn-out amounting to 2,214 1s related to Leadvise Region Mitte GmbH, a
company incorperated under German law, acquired in the menth of March 2015 by the subsidiary Reply AG
The increase reflects the best estimate of the consideration in relation to the onginal contract signed

The tem Fair value adjustments in 2015 amounted to 788 thousand Euros with a balancing entry in Profit
and loss, reflects the best estimate In relation to the deferred consideration onginally posted at the time of

acquisition

Total payments made amounted to 1,767 thousand Euros and refer to the consideration paid in relation to
the onginal contracts signed at the time of acquisition
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NOTE 27 — Financial liabilities

Detall i1s as follows

3112/2015 3112/2014
{thousand Euros) Current  Non current Total Current  Non current Total
Bank averdrafis 35,028 - 35028 38073 - 38,073
Bank loans 10786 33008 43794 6,348 26994 36 342
Total due to banks 45,814 33,008 78,822 44,421 29,994 74,415
Other financial borrowings 466 B6O 1,326 671 1036 1,706
Total financial iabilites 46,280 33,869 80,149 45,092 31,030 76,122

The following lustrates the distribution of financial habilities by due date

312/2018 3112/2014
Duein12 From1te Over 5 Duein12 From1to Over 5
(thousand Euros) months 5 years years Total months 5 years yEears Total
35,028 - - 35028 38073 - - 38073
ME&A loans 10553 32 606 - 43,159 5 967 29801 - 35768
Morigage loans 31 403 . 714 15 460 58 633
Other financial borrowings 466 860 - 1326 671 1036 - 1707
Other {78} - - {78) 266 {325) - {59}
Total 46,280 33,869 - 80,149 45,092 30,973 58/ 76,122

M&A financing refers to credit ines to be used for acquisition operations carned directly by Reply Sp A or
via companies controlled directly or indirectly by the same

Summarized below are the existing contracts entered into for such a purpose

On 19 September 2012 Reply S p A signed a ine of credit with Unicredit S p A for a total amount of
15,000,000 Euros The loan was fully reimbursed in advance in the first half of 2015

On 25 September 2012 Reply S p A signed a contract with Intesa Sanpaoto S p A for 2,500,000
Euros Instalments were paid on a half-year basis and expired on 25 September 2015, so as at 31
December 2015 the Ioan was fully reimbursed

On 24 December 2012 Reply S p A signed a contract with Intesa Sanpaolo Sp A for 1,500,000
Euros The loan was reimbursed on a half-year basts commencing 30 June 2013 and was fully
remmbursed as at 31 December 2015

On 13 November 2013 Reply S p A undersigned a line of credit with Intesa Sanpaoclo S p A for a
total amount of 20,000,000 Euros to be used by 31 December 2015 The loan was fully reimbursed
in advance 1n the first half of 2015

On 25 November 2013 Reply S p A entered into a line of credit with Unicredit S p A for a total
amount amounting to 25,000,000 Euros to be used by 31 December 2015 The loan will be
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reimbursed on a half-year basis deferred to commence on 31 May 2016 and will expire on 30
November 2018 Such credit ine was used for 18,159 thousand Euros at 31 December 2015
« On 31March 2015 Reply S p A entered into a line of credit with Intesa Sanpaolo S p A for a total
amount of 30,000,000 Eurcs detalled as follows
o Tranche A, amounting to 10,000,000 Euros, entirely used for the rembursement of the
credit ine dated 13 November 2013 The residual loan amounted to 9,000 thousands
Euros at 31 December 2015
o Tranche B, amounting to 20,000,000 Euros, to be used by 31 December 2016 The loan
will be reimbursed on a half-year basis deferred te commence on 31 March 2017 Such
credit ine was used for 4,500 thousands Eurcs at 31 December 2015
« On 8 Apn 2015 Reply S p A entered into a Iine of credit with Unicredit S p A for a total amount of
10,000,000 Euros entirely used for the reimbursement of the creditine dated 19 September 2012
The loan will be reimbursed on a half-year basis deferred to commence on 31 October 2016 The
residual loan amounted to 10,000 thousand Euros
¢ On 30 September 2015 Reply S p A entered intc a line of credit with Unicredit S p A for a total
amount of 25,000,000 Euros to be used by 30 September 2018 The loan will be reimbursed on a
half basis deferred to commence on 31 May 2019 and will expire on 30 November 2021 Such
credit ine was used for 1,500 thousands Euros at 31 December 2015

As contractually defined, such ratios are as follows
+ Net financial Indebtedness / Equity
= Net financial indebtedness /EBITDA
At the balance sheet date Reply fulfilled the Covenants under the vanous contracts
The item Mortgages refers to financing granted to Tool Reply GmbH, for the acquisiion of the bullding where
the German company has Iits registered office
Reimbursement takes place via six monthly instalments (at 4 28%) with expiry on 30 September 2019

Other financial borrowings are related to financial leases determined according to IAS 17
The carrying amount of financial iabilities 1s deemed to be in line with its far value
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Net Financial Position

In compliance with Consob regulation 1ssued on 28 July 2006 and in accordance with CESR's
Recommendations for the consistent implementation of the Evropean’s regulation on Prospectuses issued
on 10 February 2005, the Net financial position of the Reply Group at 31 December 2015

{thousand Euros) 21/12/2015 3112/2014 Change
Cash and cash equivalents 105137 88 819 16,318
Current financial assets 2289 2245 45
Non current financial assets 309 1371 (462)
Total financial assets 108,335 92,434 15,900
Current financial habiliies (46 280) {45 092) {1,188)
Non current financral liabilities (33,869 (31030) (2 839)
Total financial liabilities (80,149) (76,122) (4,027)
Total net financial position 28,186 16,313 1,874

For further details with regards to the above table see Notes 19 and 24 as well as Note 27

NOTE 28 — Employee benefits

{thousand Euros) 31/12/2015 31M2/2014 Change
Employee severance indemnihes 18,489 17 091 1398
Employee pension fungds 5 8BGO 5928 (68)
Direclors severance indemniues 1,502 1419 83
Other i) 16 -
Total 25,866 24,454 143

Employee severance indemnities

The Employee severance indemnity represents the obhgation ¢ employees under Italan law {amended by
Law 296/06} that has accrued up to 31 December 2006 and that will be settled when the employee leaves
the company In certan circumstances, a portion of the accrued habiity may be given to an employee during
his working Iife as an advance This is an unfunded defined benefit plan, under which the benefits are almost
fully accrued, with the sole exception of future revaluations
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The procedure for the determination of the Company's obligation with respect 10 employees was carned out
by an independent actuary according to the following stages

+«  Projection of the Employee severance indemnity already accrued at the assessment date and of the
poriions that will be accrued until when the work relationship s terminated or when the accrued
amounts are parttally paid as an advance on the Employee severance indemnities,

«  Discounting, at the valuation date, of the expected cash flows that the company will pay in the future
to Its own employees,

. Re-proporticning of the discounted performances based on the senionty accrued at the valuation |
date with respect to the expected senionty at the time the company must fulfil its obligations In order ‘
to allow for the changes introduced by Law 296/06, the re-proportioning was only carmed out for
employees of companies with fewer than 50 employees that do not pay Employee severance
indemmuies into supplementary pension schemes

Reassessment of Employee severance indemnities in accordance with IAS 19 was carried out “ad personam”

and on the existing employees, that 1s analytical calculations were made on each employee In {force in the

company at the assessment date without considering future work force

The actuanal valuation model 1s based on the so called technical bases which represent the demographic,
economic and financial assumptions underlying the parameters included in the calculabion

The assumptions adopted can be summanzed as follows

Demographic assumptions

Mortality !
RG 48 survival tables of the ltalian population ‘

Inabihity INPS tables divided by age and gender i

Retirement age Fulfilment of the minimum requisites provided by the General Mandatory |
Insurance |
Annual frequency of advances and employee turnover were assumed from

Advances on Employee severance tustorical data of the company

indemnities frequency of advances in 2015 2 50%

frequency of turnover In 2035 10%

Economic and financial assumptions

Annual discount rate
Average annual rate of 15%

Calcutated with reference 1o the valuation date of primary shares on the
Annual growth rate of the Employee siock market in which the company belongs and with reference 1o the
severance mdemnilies marke! yield of Federal bonds

An annual constant rate equal o 2 03% was used for the year 2015

The employee severance indemnibies {TFR) are revalued on an annual
Annual Increase in salarnies basis equal to 75% of the mflation rale plus a spread of one and a half
percentage point.

The annual increase of salanies used was calculated in function of the
Annual inflation rale employee qualifications and the Company s market segment net of
inflation from 10% to 150%
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In accordance with 1AS 19, Employment severance indemnities at 31 December 2015 are summanzed in the

table below

({thousand Euros)

Balance at 3112/2014 17,091
Cost relating to current (service cost) work 3,024
Acluanal gain/loss (544)
Inlerest cost 298
Change m consolidation 33
Indemnities paid duning the year (1414)
Balance at 31/12/2015 18,489

Employee pension funds

The Pension fund item relates to hability as regards the defined benefit pensions of some German companies

and 15 detalled as foliows

({thousand Euros) 31112/2015 31112/2014
Present value of hability 6,209 6,256
Faour value of plan assels {349) (329)
Net hability 5,860 5,927
The amounts recogntzed for defined benefit plans 1s summarized as follows

(thousand Euros)

Present value at beginmng of the year 6 256
Service cost -
Interesl cost 152
Actuanal gansf{losses) (24
Indemnities paid dunng the year (175)
Present value at year end 6,209
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Directors’ severance indemnities

Thus amount 1s related to Directors severance indemnities paid dunng the year

Change amounting to 83 thousand Euros refers to the resolution made by the Shareholders Meeting of
several subsidiary companies to pay an addiional indemmnity to some Members of the Board in 2015

NOTE 29 — Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax habilities at 31 December 2015 amounted to 21,471 thousand Euros and are referred manly to
the fiscal effects ansing from temporary differences denving from statutory income and taxable income
related io deferred deductibility

{thousand Euros) 3112/2015 311272004
Deductible items off the books 1836 1074
Other 19,635 11384
Total 21,471 15,630

The tem Other mainly includes the measurement of contract work 1n progress, employee benefits,
capitalization of development costs and reversal of amortization of intangible assets

Deferred tax fiabiltties have not been recognized on retained earnings of the subsidiary companies as the
Group s able to control the timing of distrnbution of said earnings and in the near future does not seem likely

NOTE 30 - Provisions

Provisions amounted to 19,108 thousand Euros {(of which 18,849 thousand Euros are not current)

Change in 2015 1s summarnized in the table below

Balance at Balance at
{thousand Euros) 3112/2014  Other changes Accruals  Utlization  Reversals 311272015
Fidelty fund 492 (190) 29 (26} m 305
Provision for nsks B 347 737 4912 (615) (60) 1846
mgé’orota research Centre 6957 . R 6957
Total 15,796 {927) 4,94 (641) {61) 19,108

Employee fideiity provisions refer mainly to provisions made for the employees of some German companies
in relation to anniversary bonuses The habiiity 1s determined through actuanal calculations applying a 5 5%
rate




The Provision for risks represents the best estimate for contingent liabiities The accrual of the year s referred
to the update of this estimate and to new legal ongoing controversies, lawsuits with former employees and
other latihities in ltaly and abroad

The Provision for Motorola Research center ongimates from the acquisition of the business branch Motorola
Electronics Sp A in 2009 and reflects the best estimate of the residual costs to incur in relation to the
agreements reached with the parties involved In the transaction to implement research and development
projecis, N accordance with 1AS 37 This provision was used on the basis of the progression of the
abovementioned research activities

Acquisition of the Motorola Research Centre was carried out as a consequence of agreements reached with
Motorola Electronics Sp A, Trade Unions and the region of Piedmont and the commitment to carry out
research activities on agreed upon themes

During the financial year the provision remained unchanged as Reply is still waiting for the Pubhic authonties,

with whom Reply hag undersigned the onginal agreements, to give instructions as to which other research
projacts to undertake on agreed contents

NOTE 31 - Trade payables

Trade payables at 31 December 2015 amounted to 77,686 thousand Euros and are detailed as foliows

{thousand Eurgs) 3112/2015 322014 Change
Domestic suppliers 66,790 71476 {4 686)
Foreign supplers 11577 12786 (1209)
Advances to suppliers 681 (S0 221
Total 77,686 83,360 (5.674)

NOTE 32 - Other current liabilities

Other current liabilities at 31 December 2015 amounted to 160,640 thousand Euros with anincrease of 25,438
thousand Euros with respect to the previous financial year
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Detall ts as follows

{thousand Euros) 3112/2015 3112/2014 Change
Income tax payabie 3,641 5465 (1824}
VAT payable 7 451 7875 {224)
withholding tax and other 5 886 5442 444
Total due to tax authorities 16,978 18,682 {1,604)
Nauonal social insurance payable 20,578 18 634 1,944
Other 1512 1347 165
Total due to social secunties 22,090 19,981 2,108
Employee accruals 46 578 38,381 8197
Other payables 654154 48,048 16106
Accrued expenses and deferred income 10 840 10 210 630
Total other payables 121,572 96,638 24,934
Other current habilities 160,640 135,202 25,438

Due 1o tax authorties amounting to 16,978 thousand Euros, mainly refers to payables due to tax authorities
for withholding tax on employees and professionals compensation

Due to social security authonties amounting to 22,090 thousand Euros, 15 related to both Company and
employees contribution payables

QOther payabies at 31 December 2015 amount te 121,572 thousand Euros and mainly include
. Amounts due to employees that at the balance sheet date had not yet been paid
. Remuneration of directors recognized as participation in the profits of the subsidiary companies

. Liabilities related to share based payment transactions to be settled in cash to some Group
companies Following agreements signed in 2014 with some Directors of subsiciary companies,
the hability at year end amounted to 707 thousand Euros while the cost in Profit and loss
amounted to 565 thousand Euros Such options can be exerased in financal year 2018 upon
achievement of some economic-financial parameters

«  Advances received from customers exceeding the value of the work In progress amounting to
36,917 thousand Euros

Accrued Expenses and Deferred Income mainly relate 1o advance invoicing in relation to T&M consultancy
activities to be delivered in the subsequent financial year

a8




NOTE 33 - Segment Reporting

Segment reporting has been prepared in accordance with IFRS 8, as a breakdown of revenues by geographic

area, determined as the area in which the services are executed

Econornic figures United toT Total
({thousand Eures) aty % Germany % Kingdem % Investments % Intersegment 2015 %
Revenues 514 177 100 115,186 100 89,156 100 1,578 100 (18.426) 705,601 100
Operating costs (436 354) (84 9) (105 988) (88 9) 8004) @97 (3 008) 190 6) 18496 (606 865) (860
Gross operating
Income 77824 151 13,200 11 9142 103 (1,430)__ {30 6Q) - 98,736 hLY]
Amortization
depreciation and
write downs 7 424) 14) {1337) {11 (589) 07) (20) 13) - (37) (13}
Other nen-
recumng
{coesis)income 250 [e]e) - - 942 11 - - 1192 02
_Operating income 70,649 137 11,863 100 9495 107 {1,450) (9190) - 90,558 128
Unlted loT Total
{thousand Euros) Italy % Germany % Kingdom % Investments %  Intersegment 2014 %
Revenues 470,784 100 101012 100 79,685 100 - (19 297) £32184 100
Operating costs (394254 (837 (85612) (947 {75832) [953) (564) - 19297 (547065) (B65)
Gross operating
Income 76,530 163 5400 53 3753 a7 (564) - 85119 135
Amortization
depreciation and
write downs (6 097) {13) 1297) 13) (627) (C8) 0 {8 021) 13)
Other non-
recurnng
{costs)income (2124) [0 5) - - 5690 71 - - - 3565 Q&
Operating income 68,308 145 4,403 41 8,816 " {565) - 80,663 128
Finandal figures
United T Total Unrited T Total
fthousand Eurcs) aly G W Kihgdom  Investrments Interseyy 2015 kaly Germany Kingdom | Interseq 204
Current operatng
assets 340676 42 516 31447 397 {i3885) 401151 310817 31196 31685 22 (19794 353927
Current operaing
labites 2064935) 28660) {4989 {1885 B2s5 (238585 (96728) (25365 (I667) B4 18794 (219586)
Net workdng
capital (3) 133741 13856 15458 (1.488) 162,566 1088 5831 1509 592 13434
Non-cunent
assets 126487 22414 31687 9159 189747 19230 17593 29622 3906 70351
Non financial
labilties long
term 63567 (8165 8975 225 85937 (2292 m27) (4598 - 68161
Fied capial (B) 62,920 4249 a7 8934 - 103815 66938 6323 25023 3,906 - 0210
Net invested
_capital{A+8) 195,661 18,06 44,170 7446 -_ 266381 181026 12,54 40037 334 - 236531
Breakdown of em ployees by cperating segment 15 as follows
Country 3111272015 311122044 Change
haly 4069 3617 452
Germany 769 674 95
United Kingdom 400 392 B
loT Investments 7 6 i
Total 5,245 4 689 5556
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NOTE 34 — Additional disclosures to financial instruments
and risk management policies

Types of financial nsks and corresponding hedging activities

Reply S p A has determined the guide lines tn managing financtal nisks In order to maximize costs and the
resources Reply Sp A has centralized all of the groups nsk management Reply Sp A has the task of
gathering all nformation concerning possible nsk situations and define the corresponding hedge

As descnbed i the section “Risk management”, Reply S p A constantly monitors the financiat risks to which
it 1s exposed, in order to detect those rnisks in advance and take the necessary action to mitigate them

The following section provides qualitative and quantitative disclosures on the effect that these nisks may have
upon the company

The gquantitative data reported in the following do not have any value of a prospective nature, In particular
the sensitivity analysis on market risks, 1s unable to reflect the complexity of the market and its related reacticn
which may result from every change which may occur

Credit nsk
The maximum credit nsk to which the company I1s theoretically exposed at 31 December 2015 1s represented
by the carrying amounts stated for financial assets in the balance sheet

Balances which are objectively uncollectible either in part or for the whole amount are written down on a
spectfic basis If they are individually significant The amount of the write-down takes into account an estimate
of the recoverable cash flows and the date of receipt, the costs of recovery and the far value of any
guarantees received General provisions are made for receivables which are not written down on a specific
basis, determined on the basis of historical expernence

Refer to the note on trade recewvables for a quantitate analysis

Liquidity nsk
Reply Sp A 1s exposed to funding rnisk if there 15 difficulty in obtaming finance for operations at any given
point in time

The two main factors that determine the company's iquidity situation are on one side the funds generated
by or used in operating and investing activities and on the other the debt lending pericd and its renewal

features or the hquidity of the funds employed and market terms and conditions

As descnibed in the Risk management section, Reply S p A has adopted a senes of policies and procedures
whose purpose Is to optimize the management of funds and to reduce the liquidity risk, as follows
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s centralizing the management of receipts and payments, where it may be economical in the
context of the local civil, currency and fiscal regulations of the countries in which the company
IS present,

+« maintaining an adequate level of avallable hquidity,

s monitoring future hgquidity on the basis of business planning

Management believes that the funds and credit ines currently available, in addition to these funds that will
be generated from operating and funding activities, wili enable the Group to satisfy its requirements resulting
from its Investing activities and its working capital needs and to fulfil its obligations to repay its debts at therr
natural due date

Currency nsk
Reply S p A has a imited exposure to exchange rate risk, therefore the company does not deem necessary
hedging exchange rates

Interest rate rnisk

Reply S p A makes use of external funds obtained in the form of financing and invest In monetary and financia!
market instruments Changes In market interest rates can affect the cost of the vanous forms of financing,
including the sate of recewvables, or the return on investments, and the employment of funds, causing an
impact on the level of net financial expenses incurred by the company

Sensitivity analysis

In assessing the potential impact of changes in interest rates, the company separates fixed rate financial
Instruments (for which the impact 1s assessed n terms of fair value) from floating rate financial Instruments (for
which the impact 1s assessed in terms of cash flows)

Floating rate financial instruments include principally cash and cash equivalents and part of debt

A hypothetical, unfavorable and instantaneous change of 50 basis points in short-term interest rates at 31
December 2015 apphied to floating rate financial assets and liabihties, operations for the sale of receivables
and dernvatives financial instruments, would have caused ncreased net expenses before taxes, on an annual
basis, of approximately 323 thousand Euros

This analysis 1s based on the assumption that there 15 a general and instantaneous change of 50 basis points

In interest rates across homogeneous categones A homogeneous category 15 defined on the basis of the
currency in which the financial assets and liabilities are denominated
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Fair value assessment hierarchy levels

The IFRS 13 establishes a fair value hierarchy which classifies the input of evaluation techniques on three
levels adopted for the measurement of fair value Far value hierarchy attributes maximum prionty to prices
qguoted {not rectified) in active markets for identical assets and lhabilities (Level 1 data) and the non-observable
minimum nput prionty (Level 3 data) In some cases, the data used to assess the farr value of assets or
habihties could be classified on three different levels of the farr value hierarchy In such cases the evaluation
of fair value s wholly classified on the same level of the hierarchy 1n which Input on the lowest level 1s
classified, taking account its importance for the assessment

The levels used in the hierarchy are

* |evel 1inputs are prices quoted (not rectified) In markets active for identical assets and liabilibes
which the entity can access on the date of assessment,

« level 2 Inputs are vanable and different from the prices quoted included In Level 1 observable
directly orindirectly for assets or ilabilities,

s Level 3nputs are vanable and not observable for assets or habilities

The following table presents the assets and liabilities which were assessed at fair value on 31 December
2015, according to the fair value hierarchical assessment level

{thousand Euros) Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Invesiments 18 - - 9081
Convertible loans i9 - - 1512
Financial secunities 19 1633 - -
Total financial assets 1,533 . 10,593
Liabilities to minonty shareholders and 26 - - 19 746
earn out

Other financial habilities 31 - - 806
Total financial habiities - - 20,552

The valuation of iInvestments In start-ups within the Internet of Things (loT) business, through the acquisition
of equity Investments and through the 1ssuance of convertible loans, 1s based on data not directly observable
on active stock markets, and therefore falls under the fair value hierarchical Level 3

The item financial securities Is related to securnities listed on the active stock markets and therefore falls under
the fair value hierarchical Level 1

The fair value of Liabilties to minonty shareholders and earn out was determined by Group management on
the basis of the sales purchase agreements for the acquisition of the company’s shares and on economic
parameters based on budgets and plans of the purchased company As the parameters are not observable
on stock markets (directly or indirecily) these llabilities fall under the tuerarchy profile in Level 3

Cash settled share-based payments of companies belonging to the Group included within the caption Other
financial liabilines, are valued on the basis of profitability parameters Since these parameters are not
observable market parameters [directly or indirectly) such debts fall under the hierarchy of Levet 3

As at 31 December 2015, there have not been any transfers within the hterarchy levels
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NOTE 35 - Transactions with Related parties

In accordance with IAS 24 Related parties are Group companies and persons that are able to exercise control,
Jomnt control or have significant influence on the Group and on its subsidiaries

Transactions carned out by the group companies with related parties that as of the reporting date are
considered ordinary business and are carried out at normal market conditions

The main economic angd financial transactions with related parties 1s summanzed below

{thousand Euros)

Financial transactions 31/12/2015 31272014 Nature of transaction
Trade recenvables 3 48 Receivables from professional services
Trade payables ang cther 8 218 Payables for professionat services and official rentals offices

4348 Payables for emoluments to Directors and Managers with

Other payables 3924 strategic responsibilities and Board of Statulory Auditors
Economic transactions 2015 2014 Mature of transaction
Revenues from professional
SErICEs - 14 Receivables from professional senvices
Services from Parent company 1024 932 Service contracts relating to office rental, and office
and related parties administration
Emoluments te Directors and Key Management with strategic
Personnel 8083 8464 responsibillies
Services and other costs 122 148 Emoluments to Statutory Auditors

Reply Group Main economic and financial transactions

In accordance with IAS 24, emoluments to Diwectors, Statutory Auditors and Key Management are also
included in transactions with related parties

In accordance with Consob Resolution no 15519 of 27 July 2006 and Consob communication no
DEM/6064293 of 28 July 2006 the financial statements present the Consolidated Income statement and
Balance Sheet showing transactions with related parties separately, together with the percentage incidence
with respect to each account caption

Pursuant to Art 150, paragraph 1 of the Italian Legislative Decree n 58 of 24 February 1998, no transactions
have been carried out by the members of the Board of Directors that might be in potential conflict of interests
with the Company
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NOTE 36 - Emoluments to Directors, Statutory Auditors

and Key Management

The fees of the Directors and statutory Auditors of Reply Sp A for carrying out their respective function,

Including those In other subsidiary companies, are as follows

{thousand Eures) 2015 2014
Executive Directors 5276 5461
Statutory auditers 122 148
Total 5,398 5,609

Emoluments to Key management amounted to approximately 2,807 thousand Euros (2,954 thousand Euros
at 31 December 2014)

NOTE 37 - Guarantees, commitments and contingent

liabilities

Guarantees

Guarantees and commitments where existing, have been disclosed ai the item to which they refer

Commitments

It 1s reported that

The Domination Agreement contract undersigned in 2010 between Reply Deutschland AG
dominated company, and Reply S p A, dominating company, ceased to exist from the date of
legal efficacy of the merger for incorporation of Reply Deutschland AG in Reply Sp A and with
this, the obligations taken on by Reply It 1s reported that the jJudgment of the qualified German
Court 1s still pending for deciding on the suitability of the strike value of the acquisition option
of shares on request of the minority shareholders of Reply Deutschland AG at a pre-
determined price (8 19 euro) Currentiy 1t 1s not possible to foresee the outcome of the said
Judgment but Management believes that any future economic-financral effects on the Group
are not sigrificant

with regards the merger operation for the incorporation of Reply Deutschland AG in Reply

Sp A the assessment procedures foreseen in the measures of Article 122 of
Umwandlungsgesetz find application — German law on extracrdinary operations — with
reference to the exchange ratio and the corresponding amount in cash

Within three months from the registration of the merger i the Tunn Companies Register, each minority

shareholder was able to present a petitron for the purpese of commencing, iIn compliance with German law,

before a Judge qualified in Germany — who shall have exclusive junsdiction — the assessment inherent in the
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Share Swap ratio and the corresponding amount in cash All shareholders of Reply Deutschland will have the
nght to benefit from a possible increase in the exchange ratio determined by the Judge or on the basis of an
agreement between the parties, and that 1s to say independently of their participaiion 0 the evaluation
procedure

On the contrary, from the posstble increase of the corresponding amount in cash determined by the Judge
or on the basts of an agreement between the parties only the sharehclders who verbally annotated therr
disagreement in the general meeting in respect of conditions of the taw can benefit

Inthe case where evaluation procedures include a modificatton of the exchange ratio, every single difference
shall be regulated i cash

Al present, some minorty shareholders have commenced the aforementioned procedures

With specific reference to the request to obtain the corresponding ameunt in cash, the time limit for exerting
such an authonty shall expire starting from the shortest tme mit between the day following it expiring from
the two months subsequent to the final ruling of the qualified court or the publication of a binding agreement
between the parties During the sald perod, the former Reply Deutschland shareholders can freely decide
cn whether to obtain the corresponding amount in cash or whether to remain shareheclders of Reply

Contingent lrabilities

As an international company, the Group 1s exposed to numerous legal risks, particularly in the area of product
hability, environmental nsks and tax matters The outcome of any current or future proceedings cannot be
predicted with certainty It 1s therefore possible that legal judgments could give nse 1o expenses that are not
covered, or not fully covered, by insurers’ compensation payments and could affect the Group financial
position and results

Instead, when it 1s probable that an overflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle obhgations and this amount can be reliably estmated, the Group recognizes specific provision for this
purpose

NOTE 38 - Events subsequent to 31 December 2015

No significant events have occurred subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2015

NOTE 39 - Approval of the Consolidated financial
statements and authorization to publish

The Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2015 were approved by the Board of Directors on
March 15, 2016 which authorized the publication within the terms of law
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Consoclidated Income Statement prepared pursuant to Consob Resolution No. 15519 of

27 July 2006

of which of which

related related
{thousand euros) 2015 parties % 2014 parties %
Revenues 705,601 - - 632,184 14 -
Other income 15 643 - - 17 085 - -
Purchases (14 049) - - {12 227) - -
Personnel {349,721) {8.083) 23% {308 452} (8 464) 27%
Services and cther costs {256 137) (1146) 04% (239 220} {1080] 05%
Amortization _depreciation and wnte downs 9,37 - - {8021) - -
Other unusual {cost¥income (1408) - - (686) - -
Operating Income 90,558 - - 80,663 - -
(Loss)gain on investments 440 - - - - -
Financial income/(expenses) (2 067} - - {1356) - -
Income before taxes 88,930 - - 79,267 - -
Income taxes (31,502) - - (30 646) - -
Net income 57,428 - - 48,621 - -
Non-controling interest {680} - (712} - -
Group net result 56,748 - - 47,909 - -
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Consolidated Statement of financial position prepared pursuant to Consob Resolution

No. 15519 of 27 July 2006

of which of which
related retated
{thousand Euros) 31272015 parties % 322014 partles %
Tangible assets 17,022 - 14 976 - -
Goodwill 133376 - 126 763 - -
Ctherintangible assets 9,696 - - 6,545 - -
Equity Investments 9105 391 - -
Other financial assets 5629 44H -
Deferred tax assets 17339 - 15052 -
Non-current t 192,167 - - 7722 - -
Work in progress 57529 - 40 801 - -
Trade recevables 302 250 3 00% 285465 48 00%
Cther current assets 40973 - 27661 - -
Financial assets 2289 - 2245 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 105 137 - B8 813 - -
Current assets S08 577 - 444 990 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 700,745 - 616712 - -
Share capital 4863 - 4863 -
COther reserves 233814 - 199135 - -
Group net iIngcome 56748 - - 47909 - -
Group Shareholder's equity 295425 - 251,908 - -
Non-controling interest 653 - 336 -
SHAREHOLDER 5 EQUITY 296,079 - 252,843 -
Payables to minority shareholders and corporate
transachions 19,746 - 13,306 - -
Financial habilt es 33869 - 31030 - -
Employee benefits 25 B66G - - 24454 - -
Deferred tax labilites 21471 - 15630 -
Provisions 18 849 - 14772 - -
Non-current llabilltles 119,801 - - 99,191 - -
Financial labiities 46 280 - 45092 . -
Trade payables 77686 8 00% 83360 218 03%
Other cument labelties 160 640 3924 24% 135 202 4348 32%
Prowistons 260 - - 1024 -
Lurrent Itabiliti 284,865 - - 264 678 -
Total liabllities 404,666 - - 363,869 -
TOTAL SHAREHOLDER S EQUITY AND LIABILITES 700,745 - 616 7112 - -
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REPLY

List of companies at 31 December 2015

Company name

Headquarters

Group interest

Parent company

Reply Sp A

Tunn — Corso Franc:a, 110 - ltaly

Companies consohdated on a ine-by-kine bases

@logistcs Reply Sri Tunn ltaly 100 00%
@logistics Reply GmbH Munich, Germany 100 00%
4prands Reply GmiH & CO KG (™) Mingden Germania 5100%
ArReply Srl (1) Tunn laly 85 00%
Aslanis Reply Srl Tunn, laly 100 00%
Adanis Reply AG Potsdam, Germany 100 00%
Aktive Reply Srl Turin Italy 100 00%
Atlas Reply Sr! Tunn taly 100 00%
Avantage Reply Ltd {***) London Umited Kingdom 100 00%
Avantage Reply (Belgium) Sarl Brussels Belgium 100 00%
Avanlage Reply (Luxembourg) Sart Itzig Luxembourg 100 00%
Avanlage Reply (Netherlands) BV Amsterdam, Netherland 100 00%
Avvio Reply Ltd London Uniled Kingdom 100 00%
Bitmama Srl Tunn, Raly 5100%
Blue Reply Sl Tunn haty 100 00%
Bndge Reply Srl Tunn haly 60 00%
Business Reply Sl Tunn, laly 100 00%
Breed Reply Ltd (™) London United Kingdom 100 00%
Breed Reply investment Ltd London United Kingdom BO 00%
Cluster Reply Srl Tunn, laly 100 00%
Cluster Reply GmbH & CO KG (*) Munich Germany 100 00%
Cluster Reply Informatica LTDA (%) San Paolo Brazd 76 00%
Concepl Reply GmbH Munich, Germany S0 00%
Consorzic Reply Energy Turn, ltaly 100 00%
Consorzic Reply Public Sector Turin, ltaly 100 00%
Data Reply GmbH (*) Munich Germany 7000%
Discovesy Reply S Tunin lialy 100 00%
e*finance consuling Reply S Tunn Naly 100 00%
Ekip Reply Sl Turin laly 100 00%
ECS Reply Sl Turin ltaly 100 00%
Forge Reply Sri Tunn Itaby 100 00%
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France Repty Ltd (%) London United Kingdom BCO 00%
Hermes Reply Sr1 Tunn kaly 100 00%
Hermes Reply Polska zo o Katowice, Poland 100 00%
InEssence Reply GmbH Dusseldorf Germany 70 00%
InsCube Reply S p A Tunn haly 100 00%
Juice Reply Sl Tunn kaly 100 00%
Leadvise Reply GmbH Darmslad Germany 100 00%
Lem Reply Sl Tunn laly 100 00%
Like Reply Srl Tunn ltaly 100 00%
Live Reply GmbH Dusseldorf Germany 100 G0%
Macros Reply GmbH Munich Germany 100 00%
Open Reply Sr! Tunn, Italy 100G 00%
Pay Reply 51l Tunn ltaly 180G 00%
Portaltech Reply Ltd London, United Kingdem 160 00%
Ponaltech Reply Srl Tunn lialy 85 00%
Portaltech Reply GmbH (%) Gutersich Germany 68 00%
Power Reply Sri Turnn ltaly 100 00%
Power Reply GmbH & CO KG (* Munich Germany 100 00%
Profondo Reply GmbH Gutersloh Germany 100 00%
Reply Consulting Srl Tunn ltaly 100 00%
Reply AG Gulersioh, Germany 100 00%
Reply do Brasil Sistemas de Informatica Lida Bele Horizonte Brazil 100 00%
Reply Inc Michigan USA 100 00%
Reply Ltd London Urited Kingdom 100 00%
Reply Belgium SA Mont Saint Guibert Netherland 100 00%
Reply France Sarl Pans France 100 00%
Reply Luxembourg Sarl Sandweiler Luxembourg 100 00%
Reply Services Sl Tunn ltaly 100 00%
Ringmaster Sl Tunin, Kaly 50 00%
Risk Reply Ltd {***} London United Kingdom 80 00%
Riverland Reply GrabH Munich Germany 100 00%
Santer Reply Sp A Milano, ltaly 100 00%
Secunty Reply 5rl Tunn lialy 100 0O%
Sohdsoft Reply Sl Tunn lialy 100 00%
Solidsoft Reply Lid London United Kingdom 100 00%
Square Reply Sl Tunn Maly 100 00%
Storm Reply Sl %) Turin, ltaly B0 00%
Storm Reply GmbH (%) Gutersloh Germany 80 00%
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Syskoplan Reply Sri Tunn haly 100 00%
Syskoplan Reply GmbH Zunch Switzerland 100 00%
Syskoplan Reply GmbH & CO KG (**) Gutersloh Germany 100 00%
Sytel Reply Roma St Tunn, ltaly 100 00%
Sytel Reply 511 Tunn lialy 100 00%
Target Reply Srl Tunn, haty 100 00%
TamTamy Reply St Tunn, faly 100 0C%
Technology Reply Sl Tunn italy 100 00%
Technology Reply Srl Bucharest Romania 100 0%
Tool Reply Gmbh Gutersloh, Germany 100 0%
Trplesense Reply GmbH Frankfurt, Germany 100 00%
Twice Reply Sl Tunn ntaly 98 00%
Twrce Reply GmbH Munich, Germany 100 0%
Whitehal! Reply Sl Tunn, ltaly 100 00%
Xuccess Reply GmbH Munich Germany 100 00%
Companies carried at fair value

Cocoon Alarm Ltd England 22 09%
inova Design Ltd England 222%
Sensona Inc USA N37%
Xmetncs Sport Lid England 30 0%
Zeeta Networks Lid England 15 83%
Companies carned at cost

Spark Reply St Tunn ltaly 85 0%
Triplesense Reply Srl Tusin ltaly 100 0%

") For these companies an cption exists for the acquisition of therr minority shares the exercise of such option in future reporting periods 15 subject o the
achievement of profitability parameters The accounting reflects Management s best estimate as at the closing date cof the Annual Financlal Repont

{ *} These companles are exempt from filing statutory financial statements In Germany under the German law § 2640 HGB

{***} As permitted under English [aw these subsidiary companies have claimed audit exemption under Companies Act 2006 section 479A with respect to
the year ended 31 December 2015 Reply Sp A has gven a statement of guarantee under Companies Act 2006 section 479C whereby it will guaraniee
alt outstanding llabllities to which these subsidiaries are subject as at 31 December 2015 The companies are Avantage Reply Ltd {registration no
05i77605) Breed Reply Lid (regrstration no 09074975} France Reply Lid (registration no 08823238) and Risk Reply Ltd (registration no 09030959}
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Information in accordance with Article 149-duodecies i1ssued by Consob

The following table, prepared in accordance with Art 149-duodeciesof Consob’s Regulations for Issuers
reports the amount of fees charged tin 2015 for the audit and audit related seraices prowvided by the
Independeni Auditors and by entifies that are part of the Independent Auditors” netwark

{thousand euros) Service provider Group entity Fee 2015
Audit Reconta Ernst & Young Sp A ga;?t company - Reply 28
Reconta Ernst & Young Sp A Subsidianes 197
Ernst & Young GmbH Subsidianes 158
Ernst & Young LLP Subsidianies 19
Ergsl & Young Auditores Independentes Subsidianes 9
Total 5
Audit related Parent company - Reply
services Reconta Ernst & Young S p A SpAD 1
Reconta Ernst & Young Sp A Subsidiaries® 15
Total 16
537
Total

[0 Signed tax forms (Modello Unice IRAP and Form 770)
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Attestation of the Consolidated Financial Statements In
accordance with Article 154-bis of Legislative Decree 58/98

The undersigned, Mario Rizzante, in his capacity as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and Giuseppe
Veneziano, Director responsible for drawing up Reply S p A's financia! statements, hereby attest, pursuant
to the provisions of Article 154-bis, paragraphs 3 and 4, of Legislative Decree no 58 of 24 February 1998

= sudability wath respect to the Company’'s structure and

s the effectrive application

of the administration and accounting procedures applhed in the preparation of the Consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 2015

The assessment of the adequacy of administrative and accounting procedures used for the preparation of
the statutory financial statements at 31 December 2015 was ¢armed out on the basis of regulations and
methodologies defined by Reply prevalently coherent with the internal Control — Integrated Framework
model 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsorng Organisations of the Treadway Commission, an internationally-
accepted reference framework

The undersigned also certify that

31the Consclidated Financial Statement

» have heen prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as
endorsed by the European Union pursuant io Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 of the European
Parliament and Council, dated 19 July 2002 as well as the measures 1ssued to implement Article
9 of Legisiative Decree no 38/2005,

e correspond to the amounts shown In the Company's accounts, books and records, and

« provide a fair and correct representation of the financial conditions, results of operations and
cash flows of the Company and its consolidated subsidianes

32 the report on operations includes a reliable operating and finanoial review of the Company and of the
Group as well as a description of the main risks and uncertamties to which they are exposed

Tunn, 15 March 2016

1/ Mano Rizzante /s/ Gluseppe Veneziano

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director responsible of drawing up the
accounting documents

Mario Rizzante Gluseppe Veneziano
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REPORT OF THE STATUTORY AUDITORS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING RELATED TO THE
FINANCIAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors I1s submitting to you the Consolidated Financial Statemenis as at 31 December 2015
prepared i conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRST), i1ssued by the
international Accounting Standards Board {"IASB"), which compnises the Consolidated Income Statement,
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
Consolidated Changes In Shareholders’ Equity Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, and the Notes to the
Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2015 present a consolidated Shareholders’ equity
amounting te 296,079 thousand Eures, including a consolidated profit of £6,748 thousand Euros

The Report on Operations adequately illustrates the financial, economic and earnings position, the trend, at
a consolidated level, of Reply S p A and its subsidianes dunng the financial year and after its end, as well as
the sub-division of the volumes of assets of the principal business lines and the consolidated results

The consolidation area 15 determined in such context, which included as at 31 December 2015 in addition to
the Parent Company, eighty-two companies and two consortrums, all conselidated on a line-by-line basis
The controls made by the Independent Auditer Reconta Ernst & Young S p A concluded that the amounts
reported in the Consclidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2015 are supported by the Parent
Company's accounting records, in the financial statements for the reporting penod of the subsidianes, and In
the information that they have formally communicated

Such financial statements transmitted by the subsidiaries te the Parent Company, for purpeses of the
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements, prepared by the respective competent corporate
bodies, have been reviewed by the bodies and/or persons in charge of the audit of the iIndwvidual companies
according to their respective legal systems, and by the Independent Auditor in the context of the procedures
followed for the audn of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Statutory Auditors did not audit the financial statements of such companies

Reconla Ernst & Young S p A, the company entrusted with the audit of Reply’s Consolidated Financial
Statements, has issued its reporn on today’s date, in which it confirms that, in its opimion, the Consolidated
Financial Statemenis of the Reply Group as at 31 December 2015 conform to the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) endorsed by the European Union, as well as to the measures issued to implement
Article 9 of Legisiative Decree 38/2005 and, therefore, they were prepared with clanty and represent a true
and farr view of the financial and economic position, the economic result and the cash flows of the Reply
Group as at such date, and further, the Report on Operations and the nformation pursuant to Article 123-brs,
paragraph 4 of Legislative Decree 58/1998 presented In the Report on Corporate Governance and
Ownership Structure are consistent with the Consolidaied Financial Statements
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On the basis of the audits and controls carmed out, we certify that

The consohdation area has been determined in correct manner,
The consolidation procedures adopted conform to legal requirements and have been properly applied,

The review of the report on Operations demonstraied that it 1s consistent with the consolidated Financial
statements,

All the information used for the consolidation refers to the entire administrative penod represented by the
financial year 2014,

The measurement critena are homogeneous with those used for the previous reporting pernod,
Changes in the consolidation compared to 31 December 2014 consist of the inclusion of the following
companies

¢  Consorzio Reply Energy (in 2014 held at cost),

. Data Reply GmbH,

. Leadvise Reply GmbH,

. Like Reply S,

. Technology Reply S¢l {Romania)

While Inscube Reply SA was no longer consolidated {iquidated in 2015}

Tunn, 30 March 2016

THE STATUTORY AUDITORS
(Prof Cnstiano Antonelit)

{Dott ssa Ada Alessandrag Garzino Demo)
(Dott Poolo Claretta Assandri}
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Reconta Ernst & Young S p A Tel +39 011 5161611
Via Meucct 5 Fax +39 011 5612554
10121 Tonno ey com

Building a better
working world

Independent auditor's report
In accordance with art 14 and 16 of Legislative Decree n 39, dated January 27, 2010
(Translation from the original Italian text)

To the Shareholders of Reply Sp A

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying conselidated financial statements of Reply Group, which comprise
the consolidate statement of financial posttion as at December 31, 2075, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory infermation

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors of Reply S p A are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union as well as with the regulations 1ssued to implement art 9 of
Legislative Decree n 38, dated February 28, 2005

Audttor’s responsibiity

Our responsibility IS to express an opimon on these consohdated financial statements based on our
audit We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italhia)
implemented in accordance with art 11, paragraph 3 of Legislative Decree n 39, dated January 27,
2010 Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtamn reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consclidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s professional
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of maternial misstatement of the consoldated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polictes used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinicn

Optnion

In our optmion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of Group Reply as at December 31, 2015, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the

Reoonta Emst & Youwg Sp A

Sede Legale Via Po 32 00138 Roma
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year then ended 1n accordance with International Financiat Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and with art 9 of Legislative Decree n 38, dated February 28, 2005

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Optnion on the consistency with the consolidated financial statements of the Report on Operations and
of specific information of the Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership Structure

We have performed the procedures required under audit standard SA ltalia n 720B in order to express
an opinion on the consistency of the Report on Operations and of specific information of the Report on
Corporate Governance and Ownership Structure as prowvided for by art 123-bis, paragraph 4 of
Legislative Decree n 58, dated February 24, 1998, with the consolidated financial statements, as
required by the law The Directors of Reply S p A are responsible for the preparation of the Report on
Operations and of the Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership Structure in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations In our opinion the Report on Operations and the specific
information of the Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership Structure are consistent with the
consohdated financial statements of Reply Group as at December 31, 2015

Turin, March 30, 2015
Recenta Ernst & Young S p A

Signed by Lwigi Conti, partner

This report has been transiated into the English language solely for the convenence of international readers




Income statement (%)

{Euros) Note 2015 2014
Revenue 5 326,911,581 291,648,805
Other income 3 6120,821 6,659,301
Purchases 7 (8,741,850) 4,982,858}
Personnel 8 (17 994 188) (17 702 836)
Services and cther costs 9 (304 748 471) (276 B3S 606)
Amortization_depreciation and wrte-downs 10 471681 1671 513)
Other unusual operating iIncome/(expenses) il (3750 000) (2988,997)
Operating income {2,673,788) 14,877,604)
Gain/(loss) on equity investments 12 37 937 457 27 491426
Financial ncome/{expenses} i3 3,407,322 2526409
Income before taxes 38,670,992 25,140,231
Income taxes 14 (1,756,577 {1208,521)
Net income 36,914.414 23,931,709
Net income per share 15 395 2,56
Diluted net mcome per share 15 395 256

{ ) Pursuant tc Consob Regulation No 15519 of 27 July 2006 the effects of related party transactions on the Income Statement are reported in the

annexed Tables and further described in Note 34
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Statement of comprehensive iIncome

(Euros) Note 31/12/2015 31112/2014

Profit of the period (A} 36,914,414 23,931,709

Other comprehensive ncome that will not be reclassified
subsequenily 1o profil or loss

Actuanal gains/iosses) from employee benefit plans 26 17.617 (33 636]

Teotal Other comprehensive income that will not be rectassified
subsequently to profit or loss, net of tax {B1) 17,617 {33,636}

Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified
subsequently 1o profit or loss

Garns/(losses) on cash low hedges 26 3612 119 974

Total Other comprehensive Income that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss, net of tax (82) 3,612 119,974
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax

(B) = (B1) + (B2) 21,229 86,338
Total comprehensive income [A)HB) 36,935,643 24,018,047
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Statement of financial position (%)

{Euros) Note 341212015 NN272014
Tangible assets 16 764,619 1095038
Goodwill 37 86,765 86,765
Other intangible assets i8 1,498,954 B66 734
Equity invesimenis available for sale 19 133,585,730 13008131
QOther financial assets 20 52112144 42 486 824
Deferred tax assets 21 1234 BO7 1521,880
Non-current assets 189,253,019 176,138,552
Trade receivables 22 259 856,229 221291693
Other recervables and current assels 23 33158 420 31666601
Financial assets 24 58 522,084 50,808 755
Cash and ¢ash equivalents 25 55,745,286 40,913,939
Current assets 407,282,018 344,680,988
TOTAL ASSETS 596,575,038 520,819,540
Share Capital 4 863 486 4 863,486
Other reserves 151,128,813 135140 323
Net income 36 914,414 23931709
SHAREHCLDERS' EQUITY 26 192,906,713 163,935,517
Due to minority sharehotders 27 4468 788 3,686,707
Financial iabilites 28 32,605 828 29,668,015
Employee benefits 29 416 302 435 868
Deferred tax liabilities 30 1105 248 911232
Provisions 33 7 398 00O 3,921,700
Non-current lrabiliies 45,994,165 38,623,522
Finangial habihities 28 86 803962 69 873787
Trade payables kil 252 342 479 222959775
Other current habiliies 32 16 501713 23360939
Provisions 33 2026000 2 066 000
Current habilities 357,674,160 318,260,501
TOTAL LIABILITIES 403,668,324 366,884,023
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 596,575,038 520,819,540

{ ) Pursuant to Consob Reguiation No 15519 of 27 July 2006 the effects of ielated party transactions on the Statement of Financral Positlon are reported
in the annexed Tables and further gescribed in Note 34




Statement of changes in

equity

Cash flow Reserve for
Share Treasury Capital Earning hedge actuarial
(Euros) capital shares reserves reserves reserve  gans/{losses) Total
Balance at 1 January
2014 4,840,086 (9127) 58,246,746 B2527,838 (123 586) 21,555 145,503,511
Share capital increase 23400 - 936,855 - - - 960,255
Dividends distnbuted - - - [6 546 295) - - {6,546,295)
Total profit - - - 23931709 119,974 (33,636} 24,018,047
Balance at 31
December 2014 4,863,486 {9,127} 59,183,600 99,913,252 {3.612) {12,081) 163,935,518
Cash flow Reserve for
Share Treasury Capital Eaming hedge actuanal
(Euros) capital shares reserves reserves reserve gains/(losses) Total
Balance at 1 January
2015 4,863,486 (9,127) 59,183,600 99,913,252 {3.612) (12,081} 163,935,518
Dividends distnbuted - - - (7,949 073} - - {7.949,073)
Change n treasury
shares - {15,375) 20 000,000 {20,000 000Q) - - (15.375)
Total profit - - - 36914 414 3612 17,617 36,935,643
Balance at 31
December 2015 4,863,4B6 {24,502) 79,183,600 108,878,593 - 5,536 192,906,714
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Statement of cash flows

{Euros) 31122015 311272014
Result 36 914,414 23931709
Income taxes 1756 577 (1208521
Amortization and depreciation 471681 671513
Other non-monetary expenses/iincome) {747 557} 7,059 460
Change in trade recelvables {38 564 536) (24 387 545)
Change In trade pavables 29,382,704 27 857 564
Change in other assets and llabiliies 4 034 321) 4 Q39635
Income tax paig {208 5210 624 358
Interest paid {966 951 (1,476,674)
Net cash flows from operating activities (&) 23,003,490 37,111,500
Payments for tangible and intangible assels (773,483 (1132 961)
Paymenis for financial assets {9625,32Q) (10123 234)
Payments for the acquisitan of subsidianes net of cash acquired (1984 781 (1922 922)
Net cash flows from investment activities (B) (12,383,583) {23.179.117)
Shares ssued 960255
Dividends pald {7 949 073) {6 546 299)
in payments from treasury shares 28418 972 15 540 266
Paymeni of Instalments {21 291041} {16 206 083)
Other changes 5,854 86 337
Net cash flows from flnancing activities (C) [815,287) (6,165,520}
Net cash flows (D] = (A+B+C) 9,804,619 7,766,862
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of perlod 28133 468 20 366 606
Cash and cash equivalents at period end 37938 08B 28133468
Total change In cash and cash equlvalents (D) 9,804,619 7.766.862
Detail of cash and cash equivalents

(Euros) 3112/2015 31/12/2014
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of perlod 28,133,468 20,366,606
Cash and cash equivalents 40913939 28321938
Other 959 812 669,342
Transaction accounts _swplus 49 B49,243 42 873980
Transaction accounts - overdraft {26 868 340) {19 562 205)
Bank overdrafts (36 720 BB6) (31,936 449)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 37,938,088 28,133,468
Cash and cash equivalents 55745,286 40 913939
Other 743 560 959 512
Transaction accounts - surplus 57778 523 49 849,243
Transaction accounts - overdraft 141140 870) (26 B68,340)
Bank ovesdrafts {35188 412} {36 720 886)
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NOTE 1 - General information

i

Reply [MTA, STAR REY] s specialized in the implementation of solutions based on new communication and
digital media Reply, consisung of a network of specialized companies, assists important European
industries belonging to Telco & Media, Manufacturing & Retall, Bank & Insurances and Public Administration
sectors, in defining and developing new business models utilizing Big Data, Cloud Computing, CRM,
Mobile, Social Media and Internet of Things paradigms Reply's services include consulting, system
Integration, application management and Business Process Outsourcing {www reply eu)

The company mainly carries out the operational coordination and technical management of the Group and
also the administration, financial assistance and some purchase and marketing activiies
Reply alsc manages business relations for some of its main clients

NOTE 2 - Accounting principles and basis of consolidation

Compliance with International accounting principles

The 2015 Financial Statements have been prepared (n accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {"IFRS") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board { IASB™) and endorsed by the
Eurcpean Union, and with the provisions implementing Articie 9 of Legislative Decree No 38/2005

The designation “IFRS” also includes all valid Internatiocnal Accounting Standards (*IAS”), as well as all
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretaitons Committee {“IFRICT), formerly the
Standing Interpretations Committee (*SIC")

In comphance with European Regulation No 1606 of 19 July 2002, beginning in 2005, the Reply Group
adopted the International Financial Reporting Standards {"IFRS”) for the preparation of its Consolidated
Financial Statements On the basis of national legisiaticn implementing the aforementicned Regulation,
those accounting standards were also used to prepare the separate Financial Statements of the Parent
Company, Reply S p A, for the first tme for the year ended 31 December 2006

It 1s hereby specified that the accounting standards applied conform to those adopted for the preparation of
the initial Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at 1 January 2005 according to the IFRS, as well as for the
2005 Income Statement and the Statement of Assets and Liabiities as at 31 December 2005, as re-
presented according to the IFRS and published in the special section of these Financial Statements

General principles

The Financial Statemenis were prepared under the historical cost conventton, modified as required for the
measurement of certain financial instruments The cnterion of far value was adopted as defined by [AS 39
The consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the going concern assumption In this
respect, despite operating In a difficult economic and financial environment the Group’s assessment is that
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no matenal uncertainties (as defined in paragraph 25 of IAS 1) exist relative to its ability to continue as a
going concern

These Financtal Statements are expressed In Euros and are compared to the Financial Statements of the
previous year prepared in accordance with the same principles

These Financial Statements have been drawn up under the general principles of continuity, accrual based
accounting, coherent presentation, relevancy and aggregation, prohibition of compensation and
comparability of information

The fiscal year consists of a iwelve (12) month penod and cioses on the 31 December each year

Financial statements

The Financial Statements include statement of iIncome, statement of comprehensive income, statement of
financial posiion, statement of changes in shareholders equity, statement of cash flows and the explanatory
notes

The income statement format adopted by the company classifies costs according to their nature, which 1s
deemed to preperly represent the company’s business

The Statement of financial position 1s prepared according to the distinction between current and non-current
assets and habilties The statement of cash flows s presented using the indirect method

The most significant tems are disclosed in a specific note in which details related to the composition and
changes compared to the previous year are provided

It 1s further noted that, to comply with the indications provided by Consob Resolution No 15519 of 27 July
2006 “Prowisions as to the format of Financial Siatements”, n addition to mandatory tables, specific
supplementary Income Statement and Balance Sheet formats have been added that report significant
amounts of positions or transactions with related parties indicated separately from their respective items of
reference

Tangible assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Goods made up of components, of significant value, that have different useful lives are considered separately
when determining depreciation

In compliance with 1AS 36 — Imparment of assets the carrying value 15 iImmediately remeasured to the
recoverable value, if lower

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, over therr estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, cn the following bases

Equipment 30%
Plant and machinery 40%
Hardware 40%
Furniture and fitings 24%

Ordinary mamtenance costs are fully expensed as incurred Incremental maintenance costs are allocated to
the asset to which they refer and depreciated over their residual useful lives
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Improvement expenditures on renied property are allocated to the related assets and depreciated over the
shorier between the duration of the rent contract or the residual useful lives of the relevant assets

The gain cr toss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and I1s recognized in Income

Goodwill

Goodwill 1s an intangible asset with an indefinite Iife, denving from business combinations recognized using
the purchase method, and i1s recorded to reflect the positive difference between purchase cost and the
Company's interest at the time of acquisition of the fair vaiue of the assets, habihties and dentfiable
contingent Labilities attributable to the subsidiary

Goodwill 1s not amortized, but 1s tested for impairment annually or more frequently if specific events or
changes in arcumstances indicate that it might be impaired After imtial recognition, goodwill 1s measured at
cost less any accumulated impairmeni losses

Impairment losses are recognized iImmediately as expenses that cannot be recovered in the future
Goodwilt deriving from acguisiions made prior to the transition date to IFRS are maintained at amounts
recognized under Itahan GAAP at the time of applicaticn of such standards and are subject to impairment
tests at such date

Other intangible assets

Intangible fixed assets are those lacking an identifiable physical aspect, are controlled by the company and
are capable of generating future economic benefits

Other purchased and internally-generated intangible assets are recognized as assets in accordance with I1AS
38 - Intangible Assets, where It IS probable that the use of the asset will generate future economic benefits
and where the costs of the asset can be determined reliably

Such assets are measured at purchase or manufacturing cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, If these assets have finite useful lives

Other intangible assets acquired as part of an acquisition of a busmess are capitalized separately from
goodwiitl if their foir value can be measured rehably

In case of Intangible fixed assets purchased for which availability for use and relevant payments are deferred
beyond normal terms, the purchase value and the relevant habilities are discounted by recording the impheit
financial charges in their original price

Expenditure on research activiies I1s recogntzed as an expense In the pernod in which it 1s incurred
Development costs can be capttalized on condition that they can be measured rehably and that evidence 1s
provided that the asset will generate future economic benefits

An internally-generated intangible asset ansing from the company’'s e-business development (such as
informatics solutions) Is recognized only If all of the following conditions are met

* An asset is created that can be identified (such as software and new processes),
= ltis probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits,

* The development cost of the asset can be measured reliably
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These assets are amortized when launched or when available for use Until then, and on condition that the
above terms are respected, such assets are recognized as construction In progress Amoruzaton 1s
determined on a straight hne basis over the relevant useful ives

When an internally-generated intangible asset cannct be recorded at balance sheet, development costs are
recognized to the statement of ncome in the perrod in which they are incurred

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives consist principally of acquired trademarks which have no legal,
contractual, competitive, economic, or other factors that mit therr useful ives Intangible assets with indefinite
useful Iives are not amortized, as provided by IAS 36, but are tested for imparrment annually or more
frequently whenever there 1s an indication that the asset may be impaired Any imparment losses are not
subject to subsequent reversals

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such
indication exists the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any) Where it 1s not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset
the Company estimates the recoverable amouni of the cash generating unii to which the asset belongs

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful Iife 15 tested for impairment annually or more frequently,
whenever there s an Indication that the asset may be mpaired

The recoverable amount of an asset I1s the higher of farr value less disposal costs and 1ts value In use In
assessing iis value In use, the pre-tax estimated future cash flows are discounted to therr present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nisks
specific to the asset Its value In use 15 determined net of tax in that this method produces values largely
eqguivalent to those obtained by discounting cash flows net of tax at a pre-tax discount rate derived, through
an iteration, from the result of the post-tax assessment The assessment s carned out for the individual asset
or for the smallest identifiable group of cash generating assets denving from ongoing use, (the so-called
Cash generating unit) With reference to goodwiil, Management assesses return on investment with reference
to the smallest cash generating unit including goodwitl

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) 1s estimated {0 be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognized as
an expense immediately When the recognition value of the Cash generating unit, nclusive of goodwill, 15
higher than the recoverable value, the difference 1s subject to impairment and atinbutable firsily to goodwill,
any exceeding difference i1s attnbuted on a pro-guota basis to the assets of the Cash generating unit

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assel, (or cash generating um),
with the exception of goodwill, 1s increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount that would have been determined had no imparment loss been recognized for
the asset A reversal of an imparmeni loss 1s recognized as income immediately, unless the relevant asset s
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carred at a revalued amount, In which case the reversal of the impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation
Increase

Equity investments

Investments in subsidianies and assoclated companies are valued using the cost method As implementation
of such method, they are subject to an imparrment test if there 1s any objective ewvidence that these
nvestments have been impaired, due to one or more events that occurred after the intal measurement If
such events have had an impact on future cash flows, thus inhibiting the distnbution of dividends Such
evidence exists when the subsidiery’s and associate's operating margins are repetitively and significantly
negative If such i1s the case, Impairment I1s recognized as the difference between the carrying value and the
recoverable value, nermally determmed on the basis of fair value less disposal costs

At each reporting period, the Company assesses whether there 1s objective evidence that a write-down due
to impairment of an equity Investment recognized in previous periods may be reduced or derecognized
Such ewvidence exists when the subsidiary’s and associate’'s operating margins are repetitively and
significantly positive In this case, the recoverable value 1s re-measured and eventually the investiment 1S
restated at imtial cost

Equity investments in cother companies, comprising non-current financial assets not held for trading, are
measured at far vaiue, If It can be determined Any subsequent gains and losses resulting from changes

in fair value are recogmized directly in Shareholders’ equity until the investment i1s sold or impaired, the total
recognized In equity up to that date are recogrized in the Income Statement for the pernod

Minor investments in other companies for which fair value 1s not avallable are measured at cost, and adjusted
for any impairment losses

Dividends are recognized as financial income from investments when the nght to collect them 1s established
which generally coincides with the shareholders’ resolution If such dividends anse from the distnbution of
reserves prior to the acquisition, these dividends reduce the imitiat acquisition cost

Current and non-current financial assets

Financial assets are recognized on the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument

investments are recognized and written-off the balance sheet on a trade-date basis and are initially measured
at cost, including transaction costs

At subsequent reporting dates, financial assets that the Company has the expressed intention and ability to
hoid to matunty (held-to-matunty secunties) are measured at amortized cost according to the effective interest
rate method, less any imparment loss recognized to reflect irrecoverable amounts, and are classified among
non-current financial assets

Investments other than held-to maturity securities are classified as either held-for-trading or avalable-for-sale,
and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at farr value Where financial assets are hetd for trading
purposes, gains and losses arising from changes in far value are included in the net profit or loss for the
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penod For avallable-for-sale investments, gains and 1osses arising from changes in jair value are recognized
directly in eguity, until the security 1s disposed of or I1s determined to be iImparwred, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized In equity 1s ncluded in the net profit or loss for the penod This item 1s
stated in the current financial assets

Transfer of financial assets
The Company derecognizes financial assets from its Financial Statements when, and only when, the
contractual nghts to the cash flows denving fram the assets expire or the Company transfers the financial
asset Inthe case of transfer of the financial asset
» Ifthe entity substantially transfers all of the nisks and benefits of cwnership associated with the
financial asset, the Company derecognizes the financial asset from the Financial Statements
and recognizes separately as assets or liabilities any rights or obligations criginated or
maintained through the transfer,
+ Ifthe Company maintains substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership associated with
the financial assets, it continues to recognize 1it,

e Ifthe Company does not transfer or maintain substantially all of the nsks and benefits of
ownership associated with the financial asset, it determines whether or not it has maintained
control of the financial asset In this case,

s |fthe Company has not maintaned control, it derecognizes the financial asset frem its Financial
Siatements and recognizes separately as assets or labilities any nghts or obligations
originated or maintained through the transfer,

« Ifthe Company has maintained control, it continues to recegnize the financial asset to the
extent of its residual involvement with such financial asset

At the time of removal of financial assets from the batance sheet, the difference between the carrying value
of assets and the fees received or receivable for the transfer of the asset 1s recognized in the income
statement

Trade payables and receivables and other current assets and habilities

Trade payables and recevables and other current assets and liabilities are measured at nominal value and
eventually written down to reflect their recoverable amount

Write-downs are determined to the extent of the difference of the carrying value of the recervables and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows

Recelvables and payables denominated in non EMU currencies are stated at the exchange rate at period
end provided by the European Central Bank

Cash and cash equvalents

The item cash and cash equivalents includes cash, banks and reimbursable deposits on demand and other
short term financial Investments readily convertible in cash and are not subject to significant nsks in terms of
change In value
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Treasury shares
Treasury shares are presented as a deduction from equity Al gains and losses from the sale of treasury
shares are recorded i a spectal Shareholders’ equity reserve

Financial liabilties and equity investments

Financial habihties and equity nstruments 1ssued by the Company are presented according to their substance
ansing from therr contractual obligations and in accordance with the definitions of financial habilities and
equity Instruments The latier are defined as those contractual ebhgations that give the right to benefit in the
residual interests of the Company's assets after having deducted its liabilities

The accounting standards adopted for specific financial habilities or equity Instruments are outhned below

Bank borrowings
. interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of

direct 1ssue costs and subsequently stated at its amortized cost, using the prevailing market
nterest rate method

Equity instruments
«  Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group are stated at the proceeds receved, net of direct

1Issuance costs

Non-current financial labihties
. Liabilities are stated according to the amortization cost

Dernvative financial instruments and other hedging transactions

The Company's activities are primarly subject to financiaf risks associated with fluctuations in interest rates
Such interest rate rsks anse from bank borrowings, In order to hedge such risks the Company’s policy
consists of converting fluctuating rate liabilibes in constant rate habilities and treating them as cash flow
hedges The use of such instruments 15 disciphned by written procedures 1n line with the Company nsk
strategies that do not contemplate derivative financial instruments for trading purposes

In accordance with IAS 39, denvatve financial instruments qualify for hedge accounting only when at the
mnception of the hedge there 15 formal designation and sufficient documentation that the hedge 1s highly
effective and that s effectiveness can be reliably measured The hedge must be highly effective throughout
the different financial reporting penods for which it was destgnated

All derivative financial instruments are measured 1in accordance with 1AS 39 at farr value

Changes n the fair value of dernvative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of
future cash flows relating to Company commitments and forecasted transactions are recognized directly in

Shareholder’s equity, while the ineflective portion 1s immediately recorded in the Income Statement If the
hedged company commitment or forecasted transaction results in the recognition of an asset or labihty, then,
at the time the asset or hability 1s recognized, assodiated gamns or losses on the denvative that had previously
been recognized in equity are included w the initial measurement of the asset or hability

121




For hedges that do not result in the recognition of an asset or a hability, amounts deferred In equily are
recognized in the income statement in the same penod in which the hedge commiiment or forecasted
transaction affects net profit or loss, for example, when the future sale actually occurs

For effective hedging against a change in foir value, the hedged item 1s adjusted by the changes In foir value
attributable to the nsk hedged with a balancing entry In the Income Statement Gains and losses arnsing from
the measurement of the derivative are also recognized at the income statement

Changes in the fair vaiue of denwvative financial instrumenits that no longer qualify as hedge accounting are
recognized in the income Statement of the pernod in which they anse

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised
of no longer quallfies for hedge accounting At that time, any cumulative gai or loss on the hedging
nstrument recognized in equity 1s retained in equity until the forecasted transaction 1s no longer expected to
occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognized in equity 15 transferred to the net profit or foss for the penod
Embedded dernvatives included in other financial instruments or in other contractual obhgations are treated
as separate dervatives, when their nsks and charactenstics are not closely related to those of the financial
instrument that houses them and the latter are not measured at fair value with recognition of the relative gains
and losses In the Income Statement

Employee benefits

The scheme underlying the employee severance indemnity of the ltallan Group companies (*TFR”) was
classified as a defined benefit plan up until 31 December 2006 The legislation regarding this scheme was
amended by Law No 296 of 27 December 2006 {the “2007 Finance Law"} and subsequent decrees and
regulations 1ssued 1n the first part of 2007 In view of these changes, and with specific reference to those
regarding companies with at least 50 employees, this scheme only continues to be classified as a defined
benefit plan In the Financial Statements for those benefits accruing up to 31 December 2006 (and not yet
settled by the balance sheet date), while after that date the scheme 15 classified as a defined contrnibution
plan

Employee termination indemnities (“TFR”) are classified as a “post-employment benefit”, falling under the
category of a “defined benefit plan , the amount already accrued must be projected in order to estimate the
payable amount at the time of employee termination and subseguently be discounted through the projected
unit credit method’, an actuarial method based on demographic and finance data that allows the reasonable
estimate of the extent of benefits that each employee has matured in relation to the time worked Through
actuanal measurement, interest cost 1s recognized as financial gains or losses and represents the figurative
expenditure that the Company would bear by secunng a market loan for an amount corresponding to the
Employee Termination Indemnities {"TFR")

Actuarial income and losses that reflect the effects resulting from changes in the actuanal assumptions used
are directly recognized in Shareholders’ equity
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Share-based payment plans -

The Company has applied the standard set out by IFRS 2 “Share-based payment”

Share-based payments are measured at fair value at granting date Such amount 1s recegntzed 1n the Income
Statement, with a balancing entry in Shareholders’ equity, on a straight-lne basis and over the (vesting
period) The fair value of the option, measured at the granting date, 1s assessed through actuarial caiculations,
taking into account the terms and conditions of the options granted

The stock options resolved In the previous financial years have been exercised and therefore the Company
does not have existing stock option plans

Provisions and reserves for nsks

Frovisions for rnisks and habilities are costs and llabilities having an established nature and the existence of
which s certain or probable that at the reporting date the amount cannot be determined or the occurrence
of which s uncertain Such provisions are recognized when a commitment actually exists ansing from past
events of legal or contractual nature or ansing from statements or company conduct that determine vahd
expectations from the persons involved {implicit obligations)

Provisions are recogmized when the Company has a present commitment ansing from a past event and 1t 1s
probable that it will be required to fulfil the commitment Provisions are accrued at the best estmate of the
expenditure required to settle the lability at the balance sheet date, and are discounted when the effect I1s
significant

Revenue recognition
Revenue I1s recognized If it Is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be measured reliably

Revenue from sales and services 15 recognized when the transfer of all the nsks and benefits ansing from the
passage of title takes place or upon execution of a service

Revenues from services include the actvibes the Company carries out directly with respect to some of its
major cltents in retation to their businesses These activities are also carned out in exchange for services
provided by other Group companies, and the costs for such services are recognized as Services and other
costs

Revenues from saltes of products are recognized when the nisks and rewards of ownership of goods are
transferred to the customer Revenues are recorded net of discounts, allowances, settlement discounts and
rebates and charged against profit for the period in which the corresponding sales are recognized

Interest iIncome 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable that represents the discounted interest rate of the future estimated proceeds
estimated over the expected life of the financial asset in order to bring them to the accounting value of the
same asset

Dividends from investments 1s recognized when the shareholders’ nghts to receive payment has been

established
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Financial iIncome and expenses

Financial iIncome and expenses are recognized and measured in the income statement on an accrual basis

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit defers from the profit as
reported In the income statement because it excludes ems of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible

Current income tax 1s entered for each indvidual company based on an estimate of taxable income In
compliance with existing legislation and tax rates or as substantially approved at the peried closing date in
each country, considering applicable exemptions and tax credit

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount
of assets and habilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation
of taxable profit, and 15 accounted for using the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax labilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and tax assets are recognized to the exient that it
15 probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which deductible temporary differences can be
utiized Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arses from goodwill or from
the inal recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and habilities in a transaction that
affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments In subsidianes
and associates and interests arnising in joint ventures, except where the Group 1s akle to control the reversat
of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets I1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it 15 no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaitable to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered

Defeired tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the liability 1s settled
or the asset realized Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement, except when It relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, iIn which case the deferred tax s also dealt with in equity
Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authonty and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and babihities on a net basis

In the event of changes to the accounting value of deferred tax assets and habilities denving from a change

in the applicable tax rates and relevant legisiation, the resulting deferred tax amount I1s entered 10 Income
statement, unless it refers to debited or credited amounts previcusly recognized to Sharehaolders' equity
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Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated with reference to the profit for the penod of the Group and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding dunng the year Treasury shares are excluded from this
calculation

Diluted earnings per share I1s determined by adjusting the basic earnings per share to take account of the
theoretical conversion of all potential shares, being all financiat instruments that are potentially convertible
into ordinary shares, with diluting effect

Use of estimations

The preparaton of the Financial Statements and relative notes under IFRS requires that management makes
estimates and assumptions that have effect on the measurement of assets and habilities and on disclosures
related to contingent assets and habilities at the reporting date The actual results could differ from such
estimates Estimates are used to accrue prowvisions for risks on receivables, to measure development costs,
to measure contract work In progress, employee benefits, income taxes and other provisions The estimations
and assumptions are reviewed perodically and the effects of any changes are recognized immediately in
nceme

Changes in estimations and reclassifications
There were no changes of estimates or reclassifications during the 2015 reporting penod

Accounting principles, amendments and interpretations adopted from 1 January 2015

Amendments to |IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans Employee Contributions

IAS 19 requires an entity to consider contnbutions from employees or third parties when accounting for
defined benefit plans Where the contributions are iinked to service, they should be attributed to periods of
service as a negative benefit These amendments clarnfy that, if the amount of the contributions 15
independent of the number of years of service, an entity 1s permitted to recognize such contributions as a
reduction In the service cost In the period In which the service 1s rendered, instead of allocating the
contributions to the penods of service This amendment s effective for annual perniods beginning on or after
i July 2014 This amendment 1s not relevant to the Company, since hasn't defined benefit plans with
contributions from employees or third parties

IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 2115 effective for annual perods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and 15 applied retrospectively It
Is applicable to all levies imposed by governments under legislation, other than outflows that are within the
scope of other standards {e g, IAS 12 Income Taxes) and fines or other penalties for breaches of legislation

The interpretation clanfies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy no earlier than when the activity that
tnggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs It also clarnfies that a levy liability 1s
accrued progressively only If the activity that trnggers payment occurs over a period of time, in accordance
with the relevant legislation For a levy that 1s tiggered upon reaching a mimmurm threshold, no tiabilty is
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recognized before the specified mimimum threshold is reached The interpretation requires these same
principles to be applied in intenm financial statements

This amendment 1s effective for annual periods beginming on or after 1 July 2014, and 1it1s not relevant to the
Company

Annual improvements to IFRS- cycle 2010-2012

These improvements have been in force since July 1, 2014 and the Cormpany has applied them for the first
tme In these ntenm consolidated financial statements The improvements are related to a series of
amendments to IFRS 1IN response to eight topics discussed dunng the cycle from 2010 to 2012 They relate
largely to clanfication, and their adoption had no matenal impact on the interim consolidated financial
statements

Annual improvements to IFRS- cycle 2011-2013

These improvements have been i force since July 1, 2014 and the Company has applied them for the first
tme n these intenm consolidated financial statements The improvements are related to a senes of
amendments to IFRS, in response to four topics discussed dunng the cycle from 2011 to 2013 They relate
largely te clanficaton, and ther adoption had no material impact on the intenm consoldated financal
statements

Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are 1ssued, but not yet effective, up to the date of Issuance of the
Reply’s financial statements are disclosed below The Company intends to adopt these standards, if
applicable when they become effective

{FRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB 1ssued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9 IFRS 9 brings together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments project classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accouniing IFRS 9 1s effective for annual perods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with early application permitted Except for hedge accounting, retrospective application s required
but providing comparative information 1s not compulsory For hedge accounuing, the requirements are
generally applied prospectively, with some Iimited exceptions The Company plans to adopt the new
standard on the required effective date Overall, the Company expects no significant impact on its balance
sheet and equity The Company will assess possible changes related to the accounting for the time value of
options, forward points or the currency basis spread in more detall in the future

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued i May 2014 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue ansing from
contracts with customers Under IFRS 15, revenue Is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferrnng goods or services to a cusicmer
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The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recogrihon requirements under IFRS Either
a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application 1s required for annual penods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 Early adoption 1s permitted The Company plans 1o adopt the new
standard on the required effective date using the full retrospective method Preliminary evaluation of the
effects of IFRS 1515 currently in progress

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

The amendments to IFRS 11 mainly require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an interest
In a joint operation, In which the actvity of the joint operation constitutes a business, must apply the
relevant IFRS 3 prninciples for business combinations accounting

The amendments prospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after t January 2016, with early
adoption permitted These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company

Amendments to IAS 16 and |IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amertization

The amendments clanfy the principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic
benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset 1s part) rather than the econonuc
benefits that are consumed through use of the asset As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used
to depreciate property plant and equipment and may only be used in very imited circumstances to
amortize intangible assets The amendments are effective prospectively for annual perntods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted These amendments are not expected to have any
impact to the Company given that Reply has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate Its non-
current assets

Amendments to 1AS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for iInvestments in subsidiarnies,
Jjoint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements Entittes already applying IFRS and
electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial statements will have tc apply that change
retrospectively

For first-time adopters of IFRS eleciing to use the eguity methed in its separate financial statements, they
will be required to apply this method from the date of transition to IFRS The amendments are effective for
annual pencds beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted These amendments will
not have any impact on the Company's financial statements

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a
subsichary that 1s sold or contributed to an associate or joint veniure The amendmentis clarfy that the gain
or loss resulting from the sale or contnbution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3,
between an investor and its associate or joint venture, 15 recognized i full Any gam or loss resulitng from
the sale or contribution of assets that do not constitute a business, however, 1s recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate or joint venture These amendments must be
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apphied prospectively and are effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early
adoption permitted These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
These improvements are effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, and no impact
on the Company s expected

Amendments to 1AS 1 Disclosure Initiative
The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements are effective for annual penods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016, and no impact 1s expected on the Company

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities Applying the Consolidation Exception
The amendments address issues that have ansen in applying the investment entities exception under IFRS
10 The amendments to IFRS 10 clanfy that the exempiion from presenting consolidated financial statements
applies to a parent entity that 1s a substdiary of an Investment entity, when the investment entity measures
all of its subsidianes at fair value

Furthermore, the amendments to IFRS 10 clanfy that only a subsidiary of an investment entity that 1s not an
investment entity itself and that provides support services 1o the investment entity 1s consolidated All other
subsidiaries of an investment entity are measured at farr value The amendmenits to IAS 28 allow the
investor, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the investment
entity associate or joint venture to its interests In subsidiaries

These amendments must be applied retrospectively and are effective for annual penods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted These amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the Company

NOTE 3 - Risk management

Reply Sp A operates at a world-wide level and for this reason its activities are exposed to various types of
financial nsks market nsk {broken down In exchange nisk, interest rate nisk on financial flows and on “fair
value™ price nsk) credt nsk and hquidity nsk

To minimize nisks Reply utilizes derivative financial instruments At a central level it manages the hedging of
principle operations Reply S p A does not detain denvate financial instruments for negotiating purposes

Credit Risk

For business purposes, specific policies are adopted in order to guarantee that clients honor payments
With regards to financial counterparty nsk, the company does not present significant nsk in credit-worthiness
or sclvency For newly acquired clients, the Company accurately venfies theirr capability in terms of facing
financial commitments Transactions of a financial nature are undersigned only with primary financial
nstitutions
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Liquidity nsk

The group 15 exposed to funding nsk if there is difficulty in obtaining finance for operations at any given point
n time

The cash flows, funding requirements and iquidity of Group companies are monitored and managed on a
centralized basis through the Group Treasury The aim of this centralized system Is to optimize the efficiency
and effectiveness of the management of the Group’s current and future capital resources (maintaining an
adequate level of cash and cash equivalents and the availability of reserves of quidity that are readily
convertible to cash and committed credit)

The difficulties both in the markets and in the financial markets require special attention to the management
of lguidity sk, and In that sense particular emphasis is being placed on measures taken to generate
financial resources through operations and on maintaining an adequate level of avallable lquidity The
Company therefore plans to meet its requirements to settle financial habihties as they fall due and to cover
expected capital expenditures by using cash flows from operations and avallable liquidity, renewing or
refinancing bank loans

Risks associated with fluctuations in currency and interest rates

As the company operates mainly in a3 “Euros area” the exposure to currency risks 1s imited

The exposure to interest rate nisk anses from the need to fund operating activities and M&A investments, as
well as the necessity to deploy available iquidity Changes in market interest rates may have the effect of
either increasing or decreasing the Company’s net profit/(loss), thereby indirectly affecting the costs and
returns of financang and investing transactions

The interest rate nsk to which the Coempany 1s exposed derives from bank loans, to mitigate such risks, Reply
S p A uses denvative financial instruments designated as “cash flow hedges” The use of such instruments
Is disciplined by wntten procedures in line with the Company’s sk management strategies that do not
contemplate denvative financial instruments for trading purposes

NOTE 4 — Other information

Exception allowed under paragraph 4 of Article 2423 of the Italian Civil Code
No exceptions allowed under Article 2423, paragraph 4, of the ltalian Cwvil Code were used in drawing up
the annexed Financial Statements

Fiscal consohdation

The Company has decided to enter inte the National Fiscal Consolidation pursuant to articles 1174129 of the
TUIR

Reply Sp A, Parent Company, acts as the consolidating company and determines just one taxable income
for the Group companies that adhere to the Fiscal Consclidation and will benefit from the possibility of
compensating taxable income having fiscal losses in Just one tax return

129




Each company adhering to the Fiscal Conschdanon transfers to Reply Sp A its entire taxable income,
recognizing a liabiity with respect to the Company corresponding {0 the payahle IRES, The compames that
transfer fiscal losses can register a receivable with Reply, corresponding to IRES on the part of the loss off-
set at a Group leve! and remunerated according to the terms established in the consoltidation agreement
stipulated among the Group companies

NOTE 5 - Revenue

Revenues amounted to 326,911,581 Euros and are detalled as follows

(Euros) 2015 2014 Change
Revenues from services 279 688,517 250,782 488 28,906,029
Rovyalues on "Reply” trademark 19,540,814 14,761519 4789294
Intercompany services 18 815 682 17,837,146 978,535
Other inlercompany revenues 8,866,569 B 27775} 588 818
Total 326,911,581 291,648,905 35,262,676

Reply manages business relationships on behalf of some of its major clients Such activities were recorded
In the item Revenues from services to third parties which increased by 28 906,029 Euros

Revenues from Royaltes on the “Reply” trademark refer to charges to subsidianies, correspending to 3% of
the subsidiaries’ turnover with respect to third parties

Revenues from Intercompany services and Other intercompany charges refer to actvities that Reply Sp A
carries out for the subsidianes, and more specifically

* operational, co-ordination, technical and quality management,
« administration, personnel and marketing activities,
« sirategic management services

NOTE 6 - Other income

Other revenues that as at 31 December 2015 amounted to 6,120,821 Euros (6,659,301 Euros at 31 December
2014) mainly refer (o expenses incurred by Reply S p A and recharged to the Group companies and include
expenses for social events, telephone and training courses

130




NOTE 7 - Purchases

Detall 1s as follows R

(Euros) 2015 2014 Change
Sofiware licenses for resale 5,838,205 2357017 3481189
Hardware for resale 2477880 2164421 33459
Other 425 765 461,421 (35 656)
Totat 8,741,850 4,982,858 3,758,992

The items software and hardware licenses for resale refer to the costs incurred for software licenses for
resale to third parties carried out for the Group companies

The item Other includes the purchase of supplies, e-commerce matenal, stationary and printed materials
(155,442 thousand Euros) and fuel (213,354 thousand Euros)

NOTE 8 — Personnel expenses

Personnel costs amounted to 17,994,188 Euros, with an increase of 291,352 Euros and are detalled in the
following table

(Euros) 2015 2014 Change
Payroll employees 13,698 901 13,215794 484107
Directors 4,294 287 4,487042 {192 755)
Total 17,984,188 17,702,836 23,352

Detail of personnel by category Is provided below

(number) 2015 2014 Change
Directors 56 52 4
Managers 8 i0 {2)
Staff 23 34 )]
Total 87 96 (9

The average number of employees in 2015 was 91 (in 2014 93)
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NOTE 9 — Services and other costs

Service and other costs comprised the following

(Euras) 2015 2014 Change
Commercial and technical consulting 2,488,978 262321 (134 233}
Travelling and training expenses 1,718,375 1,625,187 83178
Professional services from group companies 275 855 541 247,981 603 27,874,538
Marketing expenses 2 466 410 1555,958 910,452
Administrative and legal services 1321,899 987618 334 281
Statutory auditors and Independent auditers fees 144 14C 148,012 {3,872)
Leases and rentals 889 648 875,337 14 312
Office expenses 2,851,088 3,487 085 (645 998}
Other services fram group companies 7 616 783 8 251160 {634 377)
Expenses incurred on behall of group companies 4,682,000 4,640 689 41312
Other 4,713 609 4654336 59 273
Total 304,748,411 276,839,606 27,908,865

Professional Services from Group companies, which changed during the year by 27,874,538 Euros, relate to
revenues from services to third parties

Reply S p A carnes out commercial fronting activities for scme of its major clients, whereas delivery 1s camed
out by the operationat companies

Office expenses include services rendered by related parties in connection with service contracts for the use
of premises, legal domicile and secretanal services, as well as utility costs

NOTE 10 — Amortization, depreciation and write-downs

Depreciation of tangible assets was calculated on the basis of technical-economic rates determined in
relation to the residual useful lives of the assets, and which amounted 1n 2015 to an overall cost of 320,772
Euros Detalls of depreciation are provided at the notes to tangible assets

Amortization of intangibie assets amounted in 2015 to an overall cost 0of 150,208 Euros Details of depreciation
are provided at the notes to intangible assets

NOTE 11 — Other unusual operating iIncome/(expenses)

Other unusual operating income/{expenses) amounted to 3,750,000 Euros and refer to accruals to risk and
expense provisions (4,000,000 Euros) and to the fair value adjustment of liabilities to minornity shareholders
(250,000 Euros)
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NOTE 12 - Gain/{losses) on equity investments

Detall ts a follows

{Eurocs) 2015 2014 Change
Dividends 39 577 457 34,851,226 4,626,232
Loss on equrty investments (t 640 GO0) (7,459,800) 5,819,800
Total . 37,937,457 27,491,426 10,446,032

Dividends include proceeds from dividends received by Reply S p A from subsidiary companies during the
year

Detall 15 as follows

(Euros) 3112/2015
@logisucs Reply Sr i 80,000
Arlanis Reply Sri 230.000
Aktive Reply Sri 1,325,000
Bitmama 5r1 322830
Blue Reply Sl 4455000
Bridge Reply S 78 0OO
Business Reply Sr# 580 000
ClusterReply Sl 3930000
Reply Consuling 51 380000
Discovery Reply 5 145 000
Eos Reply Srl 213882
E*finance Consuiting Sl 1180,000
Hermes Reply Sl 1635000
Juice Reply 5rl 90000
Inscupe Reply Sp A 1,870,000
Pay Reply Srl 440 000
Power Reply Srl 2 385000
Ringmaster Srl 650 000
Santer Reply Sp A 4 200000
Secunty Reply Srl 285,000
Syskoplan Reply S| 220000
Sytel Reply Rema Sri 4,600,000
SytelReply Sl 2885 000
Target Reply S 1440 000
Technology Reply Sri 3/ 000
Whitehall Reply Sl 540,000
Reply AG 1502 745
Total 39,577,457

Losses on equity Investments refer to write-downs and the year-end losses of several subsidiary companies
that were prudentiaily deemed as non-recoverable with respect 1o the value of the investment
For further detaills see Note 19 herein
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NOTE 13 - Financial income/(expenses)

Detall 1s as follows

(Eurgs) 2015 2014 Change
Interest income from subsidianes 3183172 2673846 509 325
Interest income on bank accounts 6,672 15 288 (8 616)
Inlerest expenses (966,851 (1,538130 571,186
Other 1184 430 1375412 (190,983)
Total 3,407,322 2,526,409 880,913

Interest income from subsidiaries refers to the interest yielding cash pooling accounts of the Group

companies Included in the centralized pooling system

Interest expenses refer to the interest expenses on the use of credit facilities with Intesa Sanpaolo and

Unicredit

The item Other Includes a loss on exchange rate differences amounting to 402 thousand Eures and a gain

on exchange rate differences amounting to 1718 thousand Euros ansing from the transtation of balance sheet

items not recorded in Euros

NOTE 14 — Income taxes

The detalls are provided below

{Euros) 2015 2014 Change
IRES 1011488 231541 779948
IRAP 264 000 520,000 (256 000)
Current taxes 1,275,488 751,541 523,948
Deferred Lax habilibes 194 016 442,079 {248 063)
Deferred tax assets 287073 14,902 272171
Deferred taxes 481,089 456,981 24,108
Total Income taxes 1,756,577 1,208,521 548,056
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IRES theoretical rate

The following tabie prowvides the reconcihiation between the IRES theoretical rate and the fiscal theoretical

rate

{Euros) Amount Taxation
Result before taxes 38,670,991
Theoretical tax rate 275% 10,634,523
Temgporary differences net (34 D06 473)
Taxable income 3,764,519 1,035,244
Total IRES 1,040,000
Benelfit anging from the Natonal Fiscat Consaolidation 28,512

1,011,488

Totat current IRES

Temporary differences, net refer to

+« deductible differences amounting to 45,018 thousand Euros arising mainty from the nan-taxable

share of the diwdends recewved i the financial year (37,599 thousand Euros),

+ non-deductible differences amounting to 10,112 thousand Euros owing mainly to the write-down of
equity investments (1 640 thousand Euros), Directors' fees to be paid (2,400 thousand Euros) and

non-deductible provision for nsks {4,000 thousand Euros)

Calculation of taxable IRAP

(Euros) Amount Taxation
Difference between value and cost of production {2.673,788)
IRAP net 8,907 663
Taxable IRAP 6,233,875
Total IRAP 264,000

Temporary differences, net refer to

*» non-deductible differences amounting to 9,568 thousand Euros mainly due to personnel expenses

+ deductible differences amounting to 660 thousand Euros due to income components not relevant

for tax purposes

NOTE 15 - Earnings per share

Basic earnings and diluted earnings per share as at 31 December 2015 was calculated with reference to the
net profit which amounted to 36,914,414 Euros (23,931,709 Euros at 31 December 2014) divided by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding as at 31 December 2015, net of treasury shares, which

amounted t0 9,351,850 (9,351,380 at 31 December 2014)

{Euros) 2015 2014
Net profit of the year 36 914,414 23931709
Weighted number of shares 9,351,380 9,351,380
Basic earnings per share 395 256
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NOTE 16 — Tangible assets

Tangible assets as at 31 December 2015 amounted to 764,619 Euros are detailed as follows

(Eurcs) 31212015 3112/2014 Change
Plant and machinery 299,310 378995 (79 685)
Hardware 140 995 13165 30830
QOther tangible assets 324315 605878 (281,564)
Total 764,619 1,095,038 (330,418)

The item Other mainly includes office equipment, furniture and costs for improvements 1o leased assets

Change Iin Tangible assets during 2015 15 summarized below

Plant and

{Euros) machinery Hardware Other Total
Historical cost 1,629,947 1463161 2,393,030 5 486137
Accumulated depreciation 1,250,952) {1352 996) (1,787 151 4 391300)
31112/2014 378,995 110,165 605,878 1,095,038
Histoncal cost

Increases 24913 108133 138 570 271616
Disposals - ¥ 529 {548 650} {556 171)
Accumulated depreciation

Cepreciation (104 598) (77304) {138 870} (320772)
Disposals - 7521 267,386 274908
Histoncal cost 1654 860 1,563,774 1982 950 5 201583
Accumulated depreciation {1 355 550) (1422 779) (1,658 635) (4 436 964)
31/12/2015 299,310 140,995 324,315 764,619

Durning the year under review the Company made mnvestments amounting to 271,616 Euros, which mainly refer
to hardware (108 thousands Euros), improvements to third party assets for the new office located in Via del
Glorgione 59 in Rome (67 thousands Euros)

The disposals amounting to 556,171 Euros mainly refer to the transfer of lease contracts to Reply Services

(501 thousands Euros) and to the disposal of the assets of the office in Rome (Via Regina Margherita 8) no
longer in activity
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NOTE 17 - Goodwill

Goodwill as at 31 December 2015 amounted to 86,765 Euros and refers to the value of business branches
(consulting activities related to Information Technology and management support) acquired in July 2000

Goodwili recognized 1s deemed adequately supported in terms of expected financial results and related cash
flows

NOTE 18 — Other intangible assets

Intangible assets as at 31 December 2015 amounted to 1,498,954 Euros (866,734 Euros at 31 December 2014)
and are detalled as follows

Net book value at
Accumulated

(Euros) Historical cost depreciation 3112/2015
Software 5455135 (4,492,245) 962,390
Trademark 536,064 - 536,064
Total 5,991,199 (4.492,245) 1,498,954

Change in intangible assets in 201515 summarnzed in the table below

Net book value at Net book value at
{Euros) 3111274 Increases Disposals Depreciation 322015
Software 330 670 847 039 {63 910) {150 908) 962 890
Trademark 536 064 - - - 536 064
Total 866,734 847,039 (63,910) (150,908) 1,498,954

The item Softwore 1s related mainly to software licenses purchased and used internally by the company
(amounting to 751 thousands Euro)

The item Trodemoark expresses the value of the “Reply” trademark granted to the Parent Company Reply
SpA (before Reply Europe Sarl) on 9 June, 2000, in connection to the Company's share capstal increase
that was resclved and undersigned by the Parent Company Alister Holding SA Such amount I1s not subject
to systematic amortization, and the expected future cash flows are deemed adeguate

137




NOTE 19 — Equity investments

The item Equity investments at 31 December 2015 amounted to 133,595,730 Euros, with an increase of
3,514,420 Euros compared to 31 December 2014

Balance at Acquisitions and Balance at

_[Euros) 322014 subscriptions Disposals Write downs Qther 311272015 Interest
@logisucs Reply Sr | 1049 167 1049 167 1000 %
Ai Reply Sr| 98,500 280,000 378,500 B50%
Akuve Reply Sl 512 696 512,696 1000%
Aranis Reply GmbH 25000 {25 000) - 1000 %
Arans Reply AG 1005 000 1005 000 1000 %
Ariams Reply Sl 588,000 588 000 1000%
Atlas Repty Srl 356 575 356,575 1000 %
Avaniage Lid 9 483 484 9483 484 1000 %
Brmama Srl N7018 217019 S10%
Bhe Reply Sl 527 852 £27,892 1000 %
Breed Reply Lid 12 477 12477 1000 %
Breed Reply Investments Ltd 103 103 800 %
8rdge Reply 51 6 000 6000 600 %
Business Reply Sl 268 602 26B 602 160 0 %
Centro Sviluppo Realtd Virtuale 200,000 200 000 1000 %
Cluster Reply Sr1 2610 032 2 610 032 1000 %
Concept Reply GMBH 25 000 25000 1000 %
Consorzio Reply Public Sector 32 500 32 300 376%
Consarzic Reply Energy 1000 1000 250%
Discovery Reply Sl 1311 669 1311669 1000 %
e finance Consuling Reply Srl 3076 389 3076385 1000 %
Tamiamy Reply St (ex Engage

_ReplySr1) 248500 1500 251000 000 %
Ekip Reply Srl 30000 30000 1000 %
EQS Reply Srl 155,369 155,369 807 %
Forge Repty Srl 12,000 1220,000 {1220 000) 12 000 1600 %
Hermes Reply Polska zoo 10,217 0207 1000 %
Hermes Reply S 159,500 199,500 1000 %
InEssence Reply GmbH 17500 17 560 700%
lnsCube Reply Sp A 6 724,852 6724952 1000 %
Juice Reply §r1 140 000 14G 000 000 %
LemRepty Sl 400 012 70,000 {70,000} 400 012 000 %
Like Reply Sl - 10,000 120 000 130 000 000 %
Live Reply GmbH 27 500 25000 52 500 000 %
Open Reply Sr i 1,417,750 1417 750 925%
Pay Reply St 10 000 10 000 1000 %
Porialtech Reply Sri 304 500 195000 {195,000) 104 500 850%
Portalech Reply GmbH {7) 17 000 2,000 000 2 017 000 680%
Power Reply Sl 25008%0 2 500 850 1000 %
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Balance at Acquishtions and Balance at

_{Euros) 2111272014 subscriptions Disposal Write downs Other 3122015 Interest
Reply Censulting Sl 3,518,434 3518434 1000%
Reply AG 41302722 {25000) 4277722 1000%
Repty do Brasil Sistemes de
Irformatica Lida 206 816 206 816 985%
Rephy Inc 40 596 40 596 1000%

_Replylid 13,657,767 1657767 i000%
Reply Senaces Sri 10 000 100 000 pi(s]ee[e} 1000 %
Ringmaster Sri 5000 5000 500%
Rweriand Repty GmbH 10,269 989 10265989 1000%
Santer Reply Sp A 11386 966 11 386 966 10C0%
Security Reply Si1l 392 866 392 866 1000 %
Sersona lnc 3 887432 3887432 214%
Soldsoft Reply Srt 225500 1500 195,000 {195 00Q) 227 000 1000%
Spark Reply Sri 8500 8500 850%
Square Reply Srl 100 000 10G 000 1000 %
Storm Reply Si11 ) 188 Q00 798,000 986 000 800%
Syskoplan Reply Sr 949 571 949 571 10600 %
Sytel Reply Roma St 894 931 894,931 1000 %
Sytel Reply S| 4991829 4991829 1000 %
Target Repty Sri 778 000 778000 1000%
Technology Repty Sl 216,658 216658 W00 0%
Technology Reply Srl
{Romania) 9913 9919 000%
Taplesense Reply Srl 10000 10 000 1W000%
Triplesense Replty GmbH 5153.07¢ 5153070 1000%
Twice Reply Sl 521202 521202 SBO%
Whitehall Reply S 11 60,211 160211 1200%
Tota! 130,081,310 216 419 2,180,000 {1580 000) 2798 000 133 595 730

{") For these companles an option exists for the acquisition of thesr minonty shares the exerclse of such option in future reporting perods 15 subject to the

achievement of profilability parameters The accounting of such options reflect management s best estimaie al the ¢losing date
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Acquisitions and subscriptions

Centro Sviluppo Realta Virtuale Sr

In December 2015 Centro Sviluppo Realta Virtuale S rl was acgquired by Reply S p A that holds 100% of the
share capital The company specializes in developing interactive simulations of vinual realty and 3D
multimedia content {(video and rendenng) and rental of virtual reality display media

Tamtamy Reply S.rl {ex Engage Reply Srl)
In the month of February 2015 Reply acquired the remaining 15% of the share capital at nominal value

Like Reply St

In June 2015 Like Reply S r | was constituted, a company in which Reply S p A holds 100% of the share capital
Like Reply Is the social media consulting services company of Reply and provide Consulting, Creative, System
Integration and Analytics services The mission 15 to invent, builld and implement Internet services helping
brands to engage people in new and disruptive ways

Solhdsoft Reply Srl
In the month of December 2015 Reply acquired the remaining 15% of the share capital at nominal value

Spark Reply Srl

in December 2015 Spark Reply S rl was constituted, a company in which Repiy S p A holds 85% of the share
capital The company specializes in corporate innovation and strategic design and provides rapid prototyping
capabilkties for validation and acceleration of innovative solutions and processes

Technology Reply Srl {Romania)
In July 2015 Technology Reply Srl, incorporated under Romanian law was constituted, company In which
Reply S p A holds 100% of the share capital

Triplesense Reply Srl
In Cctober 2015 Triplesense Reply St was constituied, a company in which Reply S p A holds 100% of the
share capital The company specializes in Digital Marketing services

Financial loan remission

The amounts are referred to the wawer of financial loan recevables from some subsidiaries in order to
increase their equity position

Write-downs

The amounts recorded reflect losses on some equity Invesiments that are deemed not to be recoverable
Other

Portaltech Reply GmbH and Storm Reply Sl
The amounts represent the best estimate for the purchase of the remaining minorty shares
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The list of equity investments in accordance with Consob communication no 6064293 of 28 July 2006 1s
included in the attachments

The negative differences arnsing between the carrying value of the investments and the corresponding
portion of their shareholders’ equity are not related to permanent impairment of value, as the carrying value
15 supported by positive economic and financial forecasts thst guarantee the recoverable amount of the
investment

NOTE 20 = Non current financial assets

Detall 1s as follows

{Euros) 3112/2015 31112/2014 Change
Guarantee deposits 162 066 188 066 {26 000}
Loans to subsidianes 51950 078 42 298 758 9,651320
Total 52,112,144 42,486,824 9,625,320

Guarantee deposits are mainly related to deposits on lease contracts

Financial recevables from subsidianes are referred to loans granted to the following companies

Company Amount
Al Reply Sl 300 0G0
Arlanis Reply AG 800 000
Breed Reply Invesiments Lid 6 B3700%
Breed Reply Lid 1,634 989
Concept Reply GmbH 450 000
Hermes Reply Polska Sp Zoo 520,716
InEssence Reply Gmbh 200,000
InEssence Reply Gmbh - faha 350,000
Cluster do Brasil {ex Mind Services Informatica LTDA) 1,215 000
Portaltech Reply Gmbh 650 000
Reply do Brazil Sist De Inf Ltda 1724156
Reply Inc 229632
Reply Ltd 34 218577
Soldsoft Reply St 300 000
Storm Reply Srl 120,000
Technology Reply Romania 100 000
Triplesense Reply Gmbh 400 000
Total 51,950,078
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NOTE 21 — Deferred tax assets

This item amounted to 1,234,807 Euros at 31 December 2015 (1,521,880 Euros at 31 December 2014), and
included the fiscal charge corresponding to the temporary differences on statutory income and taxable

income related to deferred deductible tems

Temporary deductible differences Taxable Tax
Total deferred tax assets at 31/12/2014 5,402,215 1,521,880
Accrued 2744935 667 850
Uuhzaton (3 240748) {954,923)
Total deferred assets st 31/12/2015 4,906,402 1,234,807
of which

- Direclors fees and employee bonuses accrued but not yet paid 3 000 000 741,000
- unrealized foreign exchange losses 1724 000 450 030
- depreciation and amarbization deductible in future years 182,402 43777
Total 4,906,402 1,234,807

The decision to recognize deferred tax assets I1s taken by assessing critically whether the conditions exist for

the future recoverability of such assets on the basis of expected future results

There are no deferred tax assets on losses carned forward

NOTE 22 — Trade receivables

Trade receivables at 31 December 2015 amounted to 259 856,229 Euros and are all collectible within 12

months

Detall 15 as follows

{Euros) 3212015 H22014 Change
Third party trade recevables 166 995 031 148 040 319 18 954,712
Credit notes to be issued - (31,660) 31660
Allowance for doubtiul accounts (251 285) {262 030) 10745
Third party trade receivables 166,743,745 147,746,629 18,997,117
Recevables from subsidiasies 93,111,017 73543421 19 567 596
Recewvables from Parent Company 1467 1644 {177
Trade recewvables from subsidanes and Parent

Company 93,112,484 73,545,065 19,567,419
Total trade receivables 259,856,229 221,291,693 38,564,536
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Reply manages business relationships on behalf of some of its major clients This activity 1s reflected in the
item Third Party Receivables which increased by 18,997,117 Euros

Recesvables from subsidianes are related to services that the Parent Company Reply Sp A carmes out in
favor of the subsidiary companies at normal market condiions

Trade recevables are all due within 12 months and do not include significant overdue balances

In 2015 the prowision for doubtful accounts was written off by 10,745 Euros following a specific nsk analysis
of all the trade recevables

Assignment of receivables

The Company assigns part of its trade receivables through factoring operations

The assignments of recevables can be with or without recourse, some assignments without recourse can
include deferred payment clauses (for example, payment by the factor of a8 minor part of the purchase price
15 subordinated on the collection of the total amount of the recewvables), require a deductible from the
assignor, or require mantaning significant exposure to the cash flow trend dertving from the assigned
recelvables This type of operation does not comply with the requirements of IAS 39 for the elimination of the
assets from the Financial Statements, since the risks and benefits related to therr collection have not been
substantially transferred

Consequently, all receivables assigned through factorning operations that do not satisfy the requirements for
elimination provided by IAS 39 continue to be recognized in the Company s Financial Statements, even
though they have been legally assigned and a financial hability for the same amount is recognized in the
consolidated Financial Statements as Liabities for advance payments on assignments of receivables Gamns
and losses related to the assignment of these assets are only recognized when the assets are derecognized
from the Company’s financial-economic position

As at 31 December 2015 the assignment of recevables through factoring cperations with recourse amounted
to 15,884 thousand Euros

The book value of the assets assigned without recourse as at 31 December 2015 amounted to 7,100 thousand
Euros, with an increase of available liquidity of 6,356 thousand Euros net of advances received amounting to
2 974 thousand Euros

The carrying amount of Trade recevables in line with 1its fair value
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NOTE 23 — Other receivables and current assets

Detall is as follows

{Euros) 31/12/2015 3112/2014 Change
Tax recevables 5359 875 3848614 151,260
Diher receivables from subsidianes 20 914,569 20,643,219 271,350
Other recewvables 1,078,809 74,144 1004 665
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 5805168 7100624 (1295457
Total 33,158,420 31,666,601 1,491,818

The tem Tax receivables includes VAT receivables net (3,693,942 Euros) and IRAP and IRES tax prepayments
{440,184 Euros)

Other recelvables from subsidiary companies refer to IRES receivables which are calculated on taxable
ncome, and transferred by the ltalian subsidianes under national fiscal consohdation

Accrued income and prepaid expenses refer to prepaid expenses ansing from the execution of services,
lease contracts, insurance contracts and other utility expenses, which are accounted for on an accrual basis
The carrying value of Other receivables and current assets 1s deemed to be in ine with its fair value

NOTE 24 — Current financial assets

This item amounted to 58,522,084 Euros (50,808,755 Euros at 31 December 2014) and refers to

+ the total of interest yielding cash pooling accounts of subsidianes included in the centralized
pooling system of the Parent Company Reply S p A for 57,778,523 Euros, the interest yield on
these accounts I1s 1N line with current market condttions,

* recevables from factoring companies for 743,560 Euros, referring to credit for the sale of
Involces without recourse net of advances received

NOTE 25 - Cash and cash equivalents

This item amounied {0 55,745,286 Euros, with an increase of 14 831,347 Euros compared to 31 December
2014 and 1s referred to cash at banks and on hand at year-end
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NOTE 26 - Shareholders’ equity

Share capial
As at 31 December 2015 the fully subscrnibed paid-in share capital of Reply Sp A, amounted to 4,863,486
Euros and 1s made up of no 9,352,857 ordinary shares hawving a nominal value of euro 0 52 each

Treasury shares
The value of the Treasury shares, amounting to 24,502 Euros, refers to the shares of Reply S p A that at 21
December 2015 were equal to no 1,007

Capital reserves
At 31 December 2015 amounted to 79,183,600 Euros, and included the following
¢+ Share premium reserve amounting to 23,302,692 Euros
s Treasury share reserve amouning to 24,502 Euros, relating to the shares of Reply Sp A which at
31t December 2015 were equal to no 1,007

» Reserve for the purchase of treasury shares amounting to 49,975 498 Euros that was constituted
through withdrawal from the Reserve for treasury shares on hand, following the reseolution made by
the General Shareholders’ meeting of Reply S p A on 27 Apnl 2015 which re-authonzed, pursuant
to the Italhan Civil Code, the purchase of a maximum of 50 milhon Euros of ordinary shares,
corresponding to 20% of the share capital, in a lump sum sotution or in several solutions within 18
months of the resolutton

*+ Reserves ansing from the merger operation of Reply Deutschland AG in Reply S p A, and include
. Share swap surplus reserve amounting to 3,445,485 Euros,

+  Surplus annulment reserve amounting to 2,902,479 Euros

Earnings Reserve
Earning reserves amounted to 108,873,593 Euros and were comprised as follows
e The Legal reserve amounting to 972,697 Euros (972,697 Eurcs at 31 December 2014),
¢ Extraordinary reserve amounting t¢ 68,168,781 Euros (72,186,144 Euros at 31 December 2014),
¢ Retained earnings amounting to 2,822,701 Euros (2,882,701 Euros at 31 December 2014),
e Net result totaling 36,914,414 Euros (23,931,709 Euros at 31 December 2014)
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Other comprehensive iIncome
Other comprehensive income can be analyzed as follows

(Euras) 3112/2015 3112/2014

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or joss

Actuanal gans/(losses) from employee benefit plans 17,617 (32 636)
Total Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss, net of tax (B1) 17.617 {33,636)
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

Gains/{losses) on cash flow hedges 3612 119 974

Total Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss, net of tax (B2) 3.612 119,974

Total Other comprehensive income, net of tax (B) = (BY) + (B2) 21,229 86,338

NOTE 27 - Payables to minority shareholders

Payables to minonty shareholders and for operations (earn-out} at 31 December 2015 amounted to 4,468,788
Euros (3,686,707 Euros at 31 December 2014} and are detalled as follows

Falr value
{Euros) 3112/2014 Increases adjustments Payments 3112/2015
Payables lo minonty shareholders 828758 2798000 2443 831207 2798 000
Payables for Earn out 2857949 - (250.000) {9371861) 1670788
Total payables to minonty
shareholders and earn-out 3,686,707 2,798,000 (247,557) {1,768,362) 4,468,788

The increase of the item Payables to minornty shareholders amounting to 2,798,000 Euros reflects the best
estimate in relation to the acquisition of the remaining minority shares that expire in future financial years

The item Farr value adjustments in 2015 amounted to 247,557 Euros with a balancing entry in Profit and foss,
reflects the best estmate In relation to the deferred consideration onginally posted at the time of acquisition

Total payments made amounted to 1,768,362 Eures and refer to the consideration pard in relation to the
onginal contracts signed at the time of acquisitron
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NOTE 28 - Financial liabilities

Detall 15 as follows

(Euros) 31112/2015 3111212014
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total

Bank overdrafts 35 188,412 - 35188412 36,720,886 - 36,720886
MEA loans 10552 913 32 605828 43 158,741 5966666 29801215 35767881
Loans from third paries - - - 67,872 191,445 259 317
Transaciion accounts 41140,870 - 41140,870 26 868 340 - 26868340
Other (78 233) - (78 233} 250023 {324,644) (74,621)
Total financial liabiliies 86,803,962 32,605,828 119,409,790 69,873,787 29,668,015 69,541,802

The future out payments of the financial liabilities are detailled as follows

(Euros) 31/12/2015 3112/2014
Due in 12 Fromite 5 Dueni2 From1to 5

manths years Total months years Total
Bank averdraits 35,188,412 - 35188 412 36,720 886 - 36720886
M&A loans 10552913 32605828 43158 741 5 966 666 29,801 215 35,767.881
Transaction accounts 41,140 870 - 41140,870 26,868,340 - 26,868 340
Cther (78 233) - {78 233) 317 895 {133,199) 184 696
Total 86,803,962 32,605,828 119,409,790 69,873,787 29,668,015 99,541,802

M&A loans refers 1o credit ines to be used for acquisition operations carrned directly by Reply Sp A or via
companies controlled directly or indirectly by the same

Following and summanzed by main features the ongoing contracts entered into for such a purpose

On 19 September 2012 Reply S p A signed a ine of credit with Unicredit S p A for a total amount of
15,000,000 Euros The loan was fully retmbursed in advance in the first half of 2015

On 25 September 2012 Reply S p A signed a contract with Intesa Sanpaolo Sp A for 2,500,000
Euros Instalments were paid on a half-year basis and expired on 25 September 2015, 50 as at 31
December 2015 the loan was fully reimbursed

On 24 December 2012 Reply S p A signed a contract with Intesa Sanpaolo Sp A for 1500,000
Eurcs The loan was reimbursed on a half-year basis commencing 30 June 2013 and was fully
reimbursed as at 31 December 2015

On 13 November 2013 Reply S p A undersigned a line of credit with Intesa Sanpaoclo Sp A for a
total amount of 20,000,000 Euros to be used by 31 December 2015 The loan was fully reimbursed
in advance in the first hatf of 2015

On 25 November 2013 Reply S p A entered into a line of credit with Unicredit Sp A for a total
amount amounting to 25 000 000 Euros to be used by 31 December 2015 The [can will be
reimbursed on a half-year basis deferred to commence on 31 May 2016 and will expire on 30
November 2018 Such credit line was used for 18,159 thousand Euros at 31 December 2015

Cn 31 March 2015 Reply S p A entered into a line of credit with Intesa Sanpaolo S p A for a total
amount of 30,000,000 Euros detaited as follows
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o Tranche A, amounting to 10,000,000 Euros, entirely used for the reimbursement of the
credit ine dated 13 November 2013 The toan will be rembursed on 10 half-year basis
deferred to commence on 30 September 2015 The residual loan amounted to 9,000

thousands Euros at 31 December 2015

o Tranche 8, amounting to 20,000,000 Euros, to be used by 31 December 2016 The 1can

will be reimbursed on a half-year basis deferred to commence on 31 March 2017 Such
credit ine was used for 4,500 thousands Euros at 31 December 2015
* On 8 Aprl 2015 Reply S p A entered Into a line of credit with Unicredit S p A for a total amount of
10,000,000 Euros entirely used for the resmbursement of the credit ine dated 19 September 2012
The loan wilt be rembursed on a half-year basis deferred to commence on 31 October 2016 The

residual lean amounted to 10,000 thousand Euros at 31 December 2015

»  On 30 Sepiember 2015 Reply Sp A entered into a line of credit with Unicredit S p A for a total
amount of 25,000,000 Euros to be used by 30 September 2018 The loan will be reimbursed on a
half basis deferred to commence on 31 May 2019 and wili expire on 30 November 2021 Such

credit ine was used for 1,500 thousands Eurcs at 31 December 2015

As contractually defined, such ratios are as follows
» Net financial Indebtedness / Equity

» Net financial Indebtedness / EBITDA

At the balance sheet date, Reply fulfilled the Covenants under the vanous contracts
The carrying amount of financial labilities 1s deemed to be in line with its far value

Net financial position

In comphance with Consob regulaton issued on 28 July 2006 and in accordance with CESR's
"Recommendations for the consistent implementation of the European’s regufation on Prospectuses” issued
on 10 February 2005 the Net financial position at 31 December 2015 was as follows

(Euros) 31112/20n5 3M2rma Change
Cash and cash equivalents 55745286 40513939 14 831348
T:ansaction accounts, asset 57778523 49 849 243 7929280
Receivables from faclor 743560 959 512 (215 952)
Total current financial 114,267,370 91,722,694 22 544 676
Guaraniee deposils 162 066 188 066 {26 000)
Loans lo subsidiaries 51950 078 42298758 9651320
Total non-current financial assets 52112144 42,486,824 9,625,320
Total financial assets 166,379,514 134,209,518 32169996
Due to banks {45 663 092) {43,005 447) {2 657 645)
Transaction accounts {41140 870} {26 B68 340) {14 272 530)
Current financlal liabllittes (86,803,962 (69,873,787) {16,930,175)
Due to banks (32 605 828) {29 668 015) (2937 812)
Non current financial llabilities (32,605,828) {29,668 015) (2.937.812)
Total financial liabllities (119,409,790} {99,541,802) {19,867.988)
Total net financial position 46 969,724 34,667,716 12,302,008
of which related parties 68 587,731 65 279 661 {2 308 070)

For further details with regards to the above table see Notes 20, 24 and 25 as well as Note 28
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NOTE 29 - Employee benefits

The Employee severance indemnity represents the obligation to employees under Italian law (amended by
Law no 296/06) accrued by employees up to 31 December 2006 which will be paid when the employee
leaves the company In certain circumstances, a portion of the accrued liability may be given to an
employee dunng bis working hife as an advance This 1s an unfunded defined benefit plan, under which the

benefits are almost fully accrued, with the sole exception of future revaluations
The procedure for the determination of the Company’s obligation with respect to employees was carried out

by an independent actuary according to the following stages

s Projection of the Employee severance indemmity already accrued at the assessment date and of the

portions that will be accrued until when the work relationship 1s terminated or when the accrued

amounts are parhialty paid as an advance on the Employee severance indemnities,

» Discounting, at the valuation date, of the expected cash flows that the company wilt pay in the future

to its own employees,

« Re-proportioning of the discounted performances based on the senonty accrued at the valuation

date with respect to the expected senionty at the time the company must fulfil its obhigations

Reassessment of Employee severance indemnities in accordance with IAS 19 was carnied out “ad personam”
and on the existing employees, that 1s analytical calculations were made on each employee in force in the
company at the assessment date without considerning future work force

The actuanal valuation model is based on the so called technical bases which represent the demographig,
economic and financial assumptions underlying the parameters included in the calculation

The assumptions adopted can be summarnzed as follows

Demographic assumptions

Mortality RG 48 survival tables of the Italian population
Inabilty INPS tables divided by age and gender
Retrement age Fulfilment of the mimmum requisites provided by the General Mandatory

Insusance

Advances on Employee severance
indemnities

Annual frequency of agvances and employee turnover were assumed from
historicai daia of the company

frequency of advances in 2015 2 50%

frequency of urnover in 2015 10%

Economic and financial assumptions

Annual discount rate

Conslant average annual rate equal to 150%

Annual growth rate of the Employee
saverance indemnities

Calculated with reference 1o the valualion date of pnmary shares on the stock
market in which the company belongs and with reference to the market yield
of Federal bonds

The annual discount used for 2015 was 2 03%

Annualincrease in salanes

The employee severance indemnities (TFR) are revalued on an annuat basis
equal to 75% of the inflation rate plus a spread of one and a half percentage
point |

Annual inflation rate

The annual increase of salanes used was calculated in function of the |
employee qualifications and the Company s market segment net of inflation
from 10% to 150%
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In accordance with 1AS 19, Employment severance indemnities at 31 December 2015 15 summanzed in the

table below
31/12/2014 435,868
Actuanial (gainsplosses (17 617)
Interest cost 7522
Indemnities pad (30 763)
Transiers 21293
31/12/2015 416,302

NOTE 30 ~ Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilties at 3t December 2015 amounted to 1,105,248 Euros and are referred mainly to the fiscal
effects ansing from temporary differences between the statutory income and taxable income

Temporary taxable differences Taxable Tax
Balance at 3112/2014 3225237 911,232
Accruals 1,478,354 354 805
Utihzation {199 607} {160 789)
Total at 31/12/2015 4,503,984 1,105,248
- deductions allowance for doubtful accounts 718,805 172 513
- different goodwill measurements 6522 828 173769
- gains on unrecognized differences 3162 351 758 965
Total at 31/12/2015 4,503,984 1,105,248

NOTE 31 - Trade payables

Trade payables at 31 December 2015 amounted to 252,342,479 Euros with an increase of 29,382,704 Euros

Detall 1s as follows

[Euros) 311272015 3112/2014 Change
Due to suppliers 16 959933 15 253,895 1706037
Due to subsidianes i66 034822 157 589 662 8 445160
Advance payments [rom customers - asset 69,347,724 50 116 218 19,231506
Total 252,342,479 222,959,775 29,382,704
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Due to supphers mainly refers to services from domestic suppliers (15,797,914 Euros) |

Due to subsidiary compantes recorded a change of 8,445,160 Euros, and refers to professional services n
connection to third party agreements with Reply Sp A

Reply S p A carnes out commercial fronting activities for some of its major chents, whereas delivery 1s carned
out by the operational companies

Advance payments from custiomers include advances received from customers for contracts subcontracted
to subsidiary compantes, which at the balance sheet date were not yet completed
The carrying amount of trade payables 1s deemed to be in ine wiih its fair value

NOTE 32 - Other current liabilities

Detall 1s as follows

{Euros) 31/12/2015 3112/2014 Change
Income tax payable B71,779 3026992 {2 155 213)
Withholding 1ax and other 785709 1922 328 (1,136,619)
Total payable to tax authonties 1,657,488 4,949,320 (3,291,832)
INPS {Nauonal lalian insurance payable) 812 927 844 069 (31142)
Other 274,390 256 206 18183
Total social security payable 1,087,316 1,100,275 (12,959)
Employee accruals 1,442,349 1359345 83 004
Payable to subsidiary companies 3754 469 6 301517 (2 547,048)
Miscellaneous payables 3,280323 3451517 {171194)
Accrued expenses and deferred income 5279774 6198 965 (919 19Y)
Total other payables 13,756.914 17.311.344 (3.554,429)
Total other current liabilities 16,501,719 23,360,939 {6,859,220)

Due to tax authorties mainly refers to payables due for withholding tax on employees and free lancers’

compensatton

Due to social security authonties 1s related to both Company and employees contnbution payables

Employee accruals mainly include payables to employees for remunerations due but not yet paid at year-
end

Due to subsidiary companies represents the hability on tax losses recorded by subsidianes under national
tax consolidation for 2015 and for the tax credits that subsidiaries transferred 1o Reply Sp A as part of the

tax consolidation
The carrying amount of the item Other current habihties 15 deemed to be in iing with its fair value
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NOTE 33 — Provisions

The item Prowvisions amounting to 9,424,000 Euros 1s summarized as follows

{Euros) 3MN2/2014 Accruals Utilized Reversals 311272015
Prowiston for risks 3,921,700 4 000 000 (523 700} - 7,398,000
Prowiston for tosses on equily Investments 2 066 000 924000 - (964 0C0) 2026000
Total 5,987,700 4,924,000 (523,700) (964,000} 9,424,000

The item Provision for risks reflects the best estimate of contingent liabiites denving from ongoeing legal
htigations and contractual nsks and at 31 December 2015 was accrued for 4,000,000 Euros

NOTE 34 - Transactions with related parties

With reference to CONSOB communications no DAC/RM 97001574 of 20 February 1997 and no DAC/RM
898015375 of 27 February 1998 concerning relations with related parties, the economic and financial effects
on Reply S p A's year ended 2015 Financial Statements related to such transactions are summarized below

Transactions carried out by Reply S p A with related parties are considered ordinary business and are carred
out at normal market conditions

Financial and busness transactions among the Parent Company Reply Sp A and s subsidianes and
assocliate companies are carried out at normal market conditions
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Reply S.p.A. main economic and financial transactions

With
With subsldiary and subsidiary With
associate With related  and assoclate related
{thousand Eurgs) companies parties companies parties Nature of transactlon
Financlal transactions 311212015 3112/2014
Financial recevables 51950 - 42 299 - Financial loans
Guarantee deposits - BC 80 Guarantee deposits
Transaction accounts held by the Parent
Transachion accounts net 16 638 - 22981 - company
Trade recevables and Royalies administration semices marketing
other 114 026 1 94187 2 quality management services and office rental
Services carried out in relation to contracts
signed by the Parent company and subsequently
Trade payables and other 169 687 - 162 689 - committed to subsidiary companies
Compensation paid to Directors and Key
Other payables - 2400 2600 Management
Economic transactions 2015 2014
Licensing of the "Reply” trademark consisting in a
Revenues from Royalties 95641 - 14 752 - 3% fee on third party revenues
Administrations services marketing qualily
Revenues from senvices 26854 7 29544 13 management and office rental
Revenues from
management services 7129 - 5872 - Strategic management services
Services carned out in relation to contracls
Costs for professional signed by the Parent company and subseguently
services 292140 - 261162 9 committed t¢ subsidiary companies
Services related to office rental and office of the
Other services 1214 420 1010 350 secretary
Personnel 5276 - 5461 Emoluments to Direciors and Key Management
Interest on financial Joans 3 month Eunbor +
Interest income net 3183 2674 - spread of 3 percentage points

In accordance with Consob Resolution no 15519 of 27 July 2006 and Consob communication no
DEM/G6064293 of 28 July 2006, in the annexed tables herein, the Statement of iIncome and the Statement of
financial position reporting transactions with related parties separately, together with the percentage
incidence with respect to each account caption has been provided

Pursuant to art 150, paragraph 1 of the ltalan Legislative Decree n 58 of 24 February 1998, no transactions

have been carried out by the members of the Board of Directors that might be 1n potential conflict of iInterests
with the Company
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NOTA 3% - Additional disclosure to financial instruments and risk

management policies

Types of financial nsks and corresponding hedging activities

Reply S p A has determined the guide lines in managtng financial risks In order o maximize ¢osts and the
resources Reply Sp A has centralized all of the groups nsk management Reply Sp A has the task of
gathering all iInformation concerning possible nsk sitvations and define the corresponding hedge

As descnbed in the section “Risk management”, Reply S p A constanily monitors the financial nisks to which
it 1s exposed, in order to detect those nsks In advance and take the necessary action to mitigate them

The following section provides qualitative and quantitative disclosures on the effect that these nisks may have
upon the company

The guantitative data reported in the following do not have any value of a prospective nature, In particular
the sensmivity analysts on market risks, Is unable to reflect the complexity of the market and is related
reaction which may result from every change which may occur

Credit risk
The maximmum credit nisk to which the company 1s theoretically exposed at 31 December 2015 s represented
by the carrying amounts stated {or financial assets in the balance sheet

Balances which are objectively uncollectible either in part or for the whole amount are written down on a
specific basis if they are individually significant The amount of the write-down takes inio account an estimate
of the recoverable cash flows and the date of receipt, the costs of recovery and the fair value of any
guarantees recewved General provisions are made for recevables which are not written down on a specific
basis, determined on the basis of historical expenence

Refer to the note on trade receivables for a quantative analysis

Liquidity risk

Reply Sp A 15 exposed to funding nsk if there 1s difficulty in obtaining finance for cperations at any given
point In time:

The two main factors that determine the company's liquicity situation are on one side the funds generated
by or used In operating and investing activities and on the other the debt lending penod and its renewal
features or the liquidity of the funds employed and market terms and conditions

As described in the Risk management section, Reply S p A has adopted a senes of policies and procedures
whose purpose 1s to optimize the management of funds and to reduce the hquidity risk, as follows

« Centralizing the management of receipts and payments, where it may be economical in the
context of the local cwvil, currency and fiscal regulations of the countrnies in which the company is
present,

¢ Mamntaining an adequate levet of available hquidity,
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«  Momtoring future hquidity on the basis of business planning

Management beleves that the funds and credit ines currently available, in addiion to those funds that will
be generated from operating and funding activities, will enable the Group to satisfy its requirements resuliing
from its investing activities and its working capital needs and to fulfil its obligations to repay iis debts at their
natural due date

Currency nsk
Reply S p A has a imited exposure to exchange rate rnsk, therefore the company does not deem necessary
hedging exchange rates

Interest rate risk

Reply S p A makes use of external funds obtained in the form of financing and invest in monetary and finarcial
market instruments Changes in market interest rates can affect the cost of the vanous forms of financing,
including the sale of recevables, or the return on investments, and the employment of funds, causing an
impact on the level of net financial expenses incurred by the company

In order to manage these nsks, the Reply S p A uses interest rate derivative financial instruments, mainly
interest rate swaps, with the object of mitigating, under economically acceptable conditions, the potential
variabity of interest rates on the net result

Sensitivity analysis

in assessing the potential impact of changes N interest rates the company separates fixed rate financial
mstruments (for which the impact 1s assessed in terms of far value) from floating rate financial instruments
{for which the impact s assessed in terms of cash flows)

Floating rate financial instruments include principaily cash and cash equivalents and part of debt

A hypothetical, unfavorable and instantaneous change of 50 basis pomts in short-term interest rates at 31
December 2015 applied to floating rate financial assets and liabilthes, operations for the sale of recervables
and dernvatives financial instruments, would have caused ncreased net expenses before taxes, on an annual
basis, of approximately 314 thousand Euros

This analysis 1S based on the assumption that there 1s a general and instantaneous change of 50 basis points
N Interest rates across homogeneous categornes A homogeneous category 1s defined on the basis of the
currency in which the financial assets and habilities are denominated

Fair value hierarchy levels

Evaluation technigques on three levels adopted for the measurement of fair value Far value hierarchy
attributes maximum prionty to prices quoted (not rectified) In active markets for identical assets and fiabilities
{Level 1 data) and the non-observable mimimum input prionty (Level 3 data) In some cases, the data used to
assess the far value of assets or labilities could be classified on three different levels of the fair value
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hierarchy In such cases, the evaluation of fair value 1s wholly classified on the same level of the hierarchy in
which input on the lowest level 1s classified, taking account its iImportance for the assessment
The levels used in the hierarchy are
+ Level 1inputs are prices quoted (not rectified) in markeis active for identical assets and
habilites which the entity can access on the date of assessment,
* Level 2 inputs are vanable and different from the prices quoted included in Level 1
observable directly orindirectly for assets or habilities,

* Level 3 inputs are vanable and not observable for assets or habilities

The following table presents the assets and habiliies which were assessed at farr value on 31 December
2015, according to the farr value hierarchical assessment level

[thousands Euros) Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial securiies - - B
Total Assets B - .
Liabives to minonty shareholders and earn out 27 - - 4469
Total Liabiitles - - 4,469

The fair value of Liabiliies to minority shareholders and earn out was determined by Group managemeni on
the basis of the sales purchase agreements for the acquisiiron of the company’s shares and on economic
parameters based on budgets and plans of the purchased company As the parameters are not observable
on stock markets {directly or indirectly) these habilittes fall under the huerarchy profite in Level 3

As at 31 December 2015, there have not been any transfers within the hierarchy levels

NOTE 36 - Significant non-recurring transactions

Pursuant to Consob communication no 6064293 of 28 July 2006, there were no significant non-recurmng
transaction during 2015

NOTE 37 - Transactions resulting from unusual and/or abnormal operations

Pursuant to Consob communication no 6064293 of 28 July 2006, in 2015 Reply Sp A has not taken part in
any unusual and/or abnormal operations as defined i that Commurnucation, under which unusual and
abnormal transactions are those which because of therr significance or importance the nature of the parties
involved the object of the transaction the means of determining the transfer price or of the iming of the
event (close of the year end) may give nse to doubts regarding the accuracy/completeness of the information
In the Financial Statements, conflicts of interest, the safeguarding of the entity's assets or the protection of
minonty Interests
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NOTE 38 - Guarantees, commitments and contingent liabilities

Guarantees

Guarantees and commitments where existing, have been disclosed at the item to which they refer

Commitments
It 1s reported that
s The Domination Agreement contract undersigned in 2010 between Reply Deutschland AG,
dominated company, and Reply S p A, dominating company, ceased to exist from the date of
legal efficacy of the merger for incorporation of Reply Deutschland AG in Reply S p A and with
this, the obligations taken on by Reply It i1s reported that the judgment of the qualified German
Court 15 still pending for deciding on the suitability of the strike value of the acquisition opilon of
shares on request of the minonty shareholders of Reply Deutschland AG at a pre-determined
price (8 19 euro) Currently iti1s not possible to foresee the outcome of the said judgment but
Management believes that any future economic-financial effects on the Company are not
significant
s with regards the merger operation for the incorporation of Reply Deutschland AG in Reply Sp A
the assessment procedures foreseen in the measures of Article 122 of Umwandlungsgesetz find
application — German law on extraordinary operations — with reference to the exchange ratio and
the corresponding amount In cash
Within three months from the registration of the merger in the Tunn Companies Register, each minority
shareholder was able to present a petition for the purpose of commencing, in comphance with German law,
before a Judge qualified 1n Germany — who shall have exclusive jurnisdiction — the assessment inherent in the
Share Swap ratio and the correspaonding amount In cash All shareholders of Reply Deutschland wili have the
right to benefit from a possible increase in the exchange ratio determined by the Judge or on the basis of an
agreement between the parties, and that 1s to say independently of therr paricipation in the evaluation
procedure On the contrary, from the possible increase of the corresponding amount in cash deterrmined by
the Judge or on the basis of an agreement between the parties only the shareholders who verbally annotated
therr disagreement in the general meeting in respect of conditions of the law can benefit
In the case where evaluation procedures incluge a modification of the exchange ratio, every single difference
shall be regulated in cash
At present, some minority shareholders have commenced the aforementioned procedures

With specific reference to the request to obtain the corresponding amount in cash, the tme Irmit for exerting
such an authonty shall expire starting from the shortest time mit between the day following it expiring from
the two months subsequent to the final ruling of the quakfied court or the publication of a binding agreement
between the parties During the said penod, the former Reply Deutschland shareholders can freely decide
on whether to obtain the corresponding amount in cash or whether to remain shareholders of Reply
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Contingent liabilities

As an international company Reply 1s exposed to numerous legal nsks, particularly in the area of preduct
habilty, environmental nisks and tax matters The outcome of any current or future proceedings cannot be
predicted with certainty It s therefore possible that legal Judgments could give rise to expenses that are not
covered, or not fully covered, by insurers” compensation payments and could affect the Company financial
position and results

Instead, when 1t Is probable that an overilow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle obligations and this amount can be reliably estimated, the Company recognizes specific provision for
this purpose

NOTE 39 - Emoluments to Directors, Statutory Auditors and Key
Management

The fees of the Directors and Statutory Auditors of Reply Sp A for carrying out their respective functions,
including those in other consolidated companies, are fully explained in the Annual Report on Remuneration
annexed herein

NOTE 40 - Events subsequent to 31 December 2015

No significant events have occurred subsequent to 31 December 2015

NOTE 41 - Approval of the financial statements and authorization to publish

The financial statements for the year-ended 31 December 2015 were approved by the Board of Directors on
March 15, 2016 which approved therr publication
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REPLY S.p.A.

Statement of Income pursuant to Consob Resolution no, 15519 of 27 July 2006

of which with of which with
{Euros) 2015 related parties % 2014 related parties %
Revenue 326,911,581 49,399,565 151% 291648 905 45,353 689 156%
Other (ncome 6120821 4 871450 796 % 6 659 301 4827,392 725%
Purchases (8 741850) {8158152) 933% (4982 858) (4521438) 907 %
Personnel {17 $94188) {5,276 000) 293% (17702 836) {5 461000) 308%
Services and olher costs (304,748 471) (289 788,209) 95 1% (276 839606)  (258,009,583) 93 2%
Amaortization and depreciation {471681) (671513)
Non recuring incomef{expensas) (3 750 000} (2988 997
Operating income (EBIT) (2,673,788) (4,877,604)
Gain/{loss) on equity Investments 37937457 27 491426
Financial Income/(loss) 3,407,322 3183172 934% 2526,409 2673846 105 8%
Income before taxes 38,670,992 25,140,231
Income taxes {1756 577} (1,208,521)
Net income 36,914,414 23,931,709
Carniings per shore 385 2 56
Diuted earnings per share 395 256
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REPLY S.p.A

Statement of financial position pursuant to Consob Resolution no. 15519 of 27 July

2006
of which with of which with

_{Euros) 31/12/2015  related partres % 31/12/2014 related parties %
Tangible assets 764 619 1095,038
Goodwill 86 765 86 765
Other intangie assets 1498 954 B66 734
Eguity investments 133 595 730 130 08131
Cther financial assels 52 12144 51950078 99 7% 42,486,824 42298458 996%
Deferred tax assets 1,234 807 1,521,880
Non-current assets 189,293,019 176,138,552
Trade recewvables 259856 229 92,942,484 358% 221291693 73545065 332%
Other recevables and current
assets 33,158,420 20914 569 631% 31,666 601 20,643,219 652%
Financial assets 58 522,084 57,778 523 98 7% 50 808 755 49,849,243  S81%
Cash and cash equivalents 55745286 40,913,539
Current assets 407,282,018 344,680,988
TOTAL ASSETS 596,575,038 520,819,540
Share Capital 4 B63 486 4,863,486
Cther reserves 151128 813 135,140,323
Net income 36914 414 23931709
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY 192,906,713 163,935,517
Due to minority shareholders 4,468 788 3686707
Financial habihties 32605 828 29668 015
Employee benefits 416 302 435,868
Deferred lax liabilites 1105,248 911232
Provisions 7 398 000 3921700
Non-current habiliies 45,994,165 38,623,522
Financial liabilities 86 803 962 41,140 870 47 4% 69 873,787 26,868,340  385%
Trade payables 252 342 479 166,034 822 658% 222959775 157088852  707%
Other current isbiliies 16 50171 3857513 23a% 23,360,939 8189652 351%
Provisions 2026 000 2 066 D00
Current habilities 357,674,160 318,260,501
TOTAL LIABILITIES 403,668,324 356,884,023
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 596,575,038 520,819,540
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REPLY S.p.A

Equity investments in subsidiaries with additional information required by Conscb

{communication no. 6064293 of 28 July 2006)

Total Carrylng
shareholders value at
Comparny Registered office  Currency  Share capital equity Net result interest 311272015
@logistics Reply St Turn € 78 000 1612 410 1033235 1000 % 1049167
ArReply Sl Tunn € 10000 15 842 _(275019) 850% 378500
Arlanis Reply Sl Tunn € 10 000 372 385 232 868 1000% 588 000
Arlanis Reply AG Potsdam € 70000 300151 240 874 1000% 1005000
Aktive Reply Sl Turin € 10 000 2539548 1779 456 1008 % 512 696
Atlas Reply Sl Tunn € 1C 000 893 250 360362 1000 % 356 575
Avantage Reply Lid Londan GBP 5086 5733 587 (344 333) 1008 % 9483484
Bimema Srl Turnn € 29407 542 891 345926 S10% 217018
Blue Reply 511 Turin € 10 GO0 6 952 240 5 806 923 1000 % 527892
Breed Reply Lid London GBP 10 000 (1 278 B76} (833037 1000% 12477
Breed Reply Investments Ltd Landon GBP 100 {151 888) (151 988) 800 % 103
Bridge Reply 511 Tunn € 10000 191 985 169527 600 % 6000
Business Reply S Tunin € 78 000 1913 764 1328226 1000% 268602
Centro Sviluppo Realta Vintuale Tunn [ 50000 (245 530} - 1000 % 200000
Cluster Reply S 11 Tunin € 132116 8320 091 7 243184 10C0 % 2610032
Concept Reply GmbH Germany € 25 000 (332 275} {331139) 1000 % 25000
Consorzic Reply Public Sector Turnin € 86 500 19 069 749 IE% 32500
Consorzio Reply Energy Turnin € 4000 3951 {49) 250% 1000
Discovery Reply S ri Tunn € 10 000 652 834 631350 1000 % 1311669
e*finance Consulting Reply Sr | Tunn € 34 000 3870489 3173154 100 0% 3076385
Ekip Reply Sri Turin [ 10480 36 833 26779 1000 % 30000
Tamtamy Reply Srl jex Engage
ReplySrl) Tunn € 10 000 15 655 {2352) 1000% 251C00C
Eos Reply Sl Tunn € 4 000 773 463 369972 BO7% 165369
Forge Reply Srl Tunn € 12000 15 655 (1216 273) 000% 12 000G
Hermes Reply Polska zoo Kalowice ZLT 40 000 3546103 1812428 W00% 10 217
Hermes Reply Sl Tunn € 10 0C0 25456 749 2 200 659 000% 199500
InEssence Reply GmbH Dusseldorf € 25000 (2 244 462) (798 156) 700% 17 500
InsCube Reply Sp A Turn € 651735 4426 812 3513382 000 % 6724952
Juice Reply Sl Tunn € 10 000 64141 50182 Wo0% 140000
Lem Reply Sl Tunn € 47 370 17778 {103629) 1000% 400012
Like Reply Sl Turin € 10 000 15 364 (9 530) 1000% 130000
Live Reply GmbH Dusseldorf € 25000 4198 561 222659 1000% 52500
Open Reply Srl Turin € 10 000 7832334 2813891 925% 1417750
Pay Reply Srl Tunn € 10000 1344 695 1330 864 1000% 10 000
Portaltech Reply GmbH Guterslah € 25 000 (75 647) 407 116 680% 2017000
Portaltech Reply S| Turin € 10000 16 108 (190171 850% 104 500
Power Reply 51 Tunn € 10000 5 617 840 3100 265 1000% 2500850
Reply Consuling Srl Turn € 10 000 2145 784 132136C 1000% 3518434
_Reply AG Guterstoh € 100000 25 414 591 (1024124 1000% 41277722




Total Carrying
shareheiders value at
Company Registered office Currency Share capital equity Net result |Interest 3112/201%
Reply Senvices Sr1 Turin € 10 000 228738 8773 000 % 110 000
Reply nc Michigan % 50000 453442 195 889 1000% 40 596
Reply Ltd London GBP 54175 2196294 208831 {000 % 1657 767
Reply do Brasil Sistemas de
Informatica Lida Belo Harizante R$ 650 C00 4494082 {650 926} 385 % 206 816
Ringmaster Srl Turnn € 10 CCO 1590756 1504 531 500% 50C0
Riverland Reply GmbH Munich € 25000 7 B46 287 1587 081 1000% 10 269989
Santer Reply Sp A Milan € 2209500 13765973 3171016 000% 11386 966
Secunty Reply Sri Tunin < 50000 2359694 2297647 000% 392 866
Sensena Inc Washington 3 - - 200% 3887432
Square Reply Sl Tunn € 10 CCH 204639 154 832 1000% 00 000
Spatk Reply Sl Tunn € 10 G0 - - 850% 8500
Solidsoft Reply S 11 Tunn € 10 000 184 {193 285) 000 % 227000
Storm Reply S 11 Turnn € 10 000 1708138 1030568 8C0% 986 CCO
Syskoplan Reply Sl Tunin € 32942 739 868 628373 1000 % 549 571
Sytel Reply 511 Tunn € 115 046 8533180 6195 498 1000 % 4991829
_Sytel Reply Roma Sl Turin € 10 000 6881530 5 082 390 WC0% 894 531
Target Reply Sl Turnin € 10000 2620485 1800 672 1000 % 778 000
Technology Reply S Turin € 79743 6344192 5455 481 100 0 % 216 658
Technology Reply St {Remania) Romania RON 44 000 {1067 812) 1111 812} 1000 % 9 519
Triplesense Reply Sr | Turin € 10 000 000 % G000
Triplesense Reply GmbH Frankfurt € 51000 1101789 3 N2 100 0% 5153070
Twice Reply Srl Turin € 10 000 3847636 12 946) 98 0% 521202
Wiitehall Reply 51l Turin € 21224 1714 326 1604 B25 100 0% 160 211
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Details of shareholders’ equity stated according to origin, possibility of utilization,
possibility of distribution, availability and the utilization in the previous three fiscal

years.

Summary of the amounts used 1n the
prior three fiscal years

Possibility of For coverage of

Nature/description Amount ubhzation Available losses Other
Capital 4 863 486
Capital reserve
Reserve for treasury shares 24502
Share premium 23302692 ABC 23 302 692
Reserve for purchases of
treasury shares 29990 873 AB,C 29990 873
Income reserves
Legal reserve 972697 B
Extraordinary reserve €8168,781 ABC 68168 781
Surplus merger reserve 6 347 963 AB,C 6 347 963
Retamed earmings 674 740 ABC 674 740
Reserve for purchases of
treasury shares 19984 625 ABC 19984 625
Total 148,469,674
Non available amount -
Residual avallable amount 148,469,674
Reserves from transitron to
1AS/IFRS
FTA reserve 303,393
Retained garmings 2 147 961
Reserve for cash flow hedge
IAS reserve (12,080)
Accounting expenses
according to 1AS 32 {770 448)

1,668,826

Legend

A for share capital increase
B for coverage of losses

C distnbution te sharehelders
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Disclosures pursuant to Article 149-duodecies by Consob

The following table, prepared in accordance with Art 149-duocdecies of the Regolamento Emittent! 1Issued by
Consob, reports the amount of fees charged in 2015 for the audit and audit retated services provided by the
Audit Firm and by entities that are part of the Audit Firm network There were no services provided by entities

belonging to its network

_(Euras) Service provider 2015 Fees
Audit Reconta Ernst & YoungSp A 28000
Audit related services Reconta Ernst & YoungSpA ® 1400

29,400

Total
{1 Attestaticn of tax forms {tax return IRAP and Form 770}
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Attestation of the Financial Statements In
accordance with Article 154-bis of Legislative
Decree 58/98

The undersigned, Mano Rizzante, in his capacity as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and Giuseppe
Veneziano, Director responsible for drawing up Reply S p A's financial statements, hereby attest, pursuant
to the prowisions of Article 154-bis, paragraphs 3 and 4, of Legisiative Decree no 58 of 24 February 1998

s suitabihty with respect to the Company's structure and

= the effective application

of the administration and accounting procedures apphied in the preparation of the financial statements for the
year ended 2015

The assessment of the adequacy of administrative and accounting procedures used for the preparation of
the statutory financial statements at 31 December 2015 was carned out on the basis of regulations and
methodologies defined by Reply prevalently coherent with the Internal Control — Integrated Framework
model issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission, an internationally-
accepted reference framework

The undersigned alsc certify that
31the Financiai Statements
+ have been prepared In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as endorsed by
the European Union pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and
Council, dated 19 July 2002 as well as the measures 1ssued to implement Article 9 of Legislative
Decree no 38/2005,
+ correspond Lo the amounts shown in the Company’s accounts, books and records, and
+« provide a fair and correct representation of the financial conditions, resuits of operations and cash
flows of the Company

32 the report on operations includes a rellable operating and financial review of the Company and of the
Group as well as a description of the main nsks and uncertainties to which they are exposed

Tunn, 15 March 2016

/s/ Mario Rizzante s/ Giuseppe Veneziano
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director in charge of signing the financial statements
Mano Rizzante Guuseppe Veneziano
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REPORT ON THE STATUTORY AUDITORS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING PURSUANT TC ARTICLE
153 OF THE LEGISLATIVE DECREE 58/1998 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Dear Shareholders,

pursuant to Article 153 of Legislative Decree No 58/1998, as well as in compliance with ocutstanding laws and
regulations, the Board of Statutory Auditors 1s reporting to the Shareholders” meeting on the supervisory
actvity performed, and any omissions or censurable acts that emerged and can make proposals with respect
to the approval of the Financial Statements

During the course of the financial year ended 31 December 2015, we complied with the duties set forth in
Article 149 of Legislative Decree No 581998 and we are providing the following information with reference
to the recommendations contained n the Consob communications 1ssued up to the present day concerning
the Regulations for Issuers

1 The most significant operations from an economig, financial and earmngs standpoint

We obtamned timely and adequate information from the Directors with respect to the most significant

operations from an economic, financiat and earnings standpoint carmed out by the Company and/or by its

subsidianes in 2014 or subsequent to the end of the financial year, among which we note

¢ In March 2015, Reply GmbH & Co KG (now Reply AG) acquired, at 35 mullion Euros, 100% of the share
capital of the German company Leadvise Reply GmbH (ex Leadwse Region Mitte GmbH,

+ The acquisiticn in April 2015 of the 7 5% of the share capital of Open Reply Srl1 at 831 thousand euros,
Reply S p A now holds 100% of the share capial,

+ In the month of July 2015, the company recrganization plan concerning the merger of Live Reply GmbH
In Arlams Reply GmbH, which subsequently changed tts name to Live Reply was concluded,

» [n the month of September 2015, the company reorganization project concerning the partial spin-off of
the company Reply Services Srlin favor of the companies TamTamy Reply Srl (formerly Engage Reply
Srl)and Like Reply Srl was concluded Both companies are wholly owned by Reply Sp A,

¢« The completion, in the month of October 2015, of the transformation of Reply GmbH & Co KG (imited
parnnership) in Reply AG ( public Iimited company),

¢ In the month of December 2015 Reply S p A acquired 100 % of the share capital of the company Centro
Swiluppo Realtd Virtuale Srl at the price of 200 thousand Euros,

* The launch in the month of December 2015 of the company reorganization project concerning the partial
spin-off of the company Cluster Reply Sl in favor or Cluster Reply Roma Sl (formerly Solidsoft Reply
Srl)both wholly owed by Reply Sp A,

* The investment made on several occasions over the 2015 by the English company Breed Investments
Ltd, in start -ups operating within the * 10T " - "Internet of Things " {Cocoon Alarm Lid , Xmetncs Sports Litd
, Greeniant BV , Inova Design Lid , Zeetta Networks Ltd , EnModus Ltd  Gymcraft SL) , through the
acquisition of minorty shareholdings or the granting of convertible loans, for a total of 6,241 thousand
Euros,
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» Inthe month of January 2016 Reply S p A sold, to its German subsidiary Reply AG, the equity investments
In Arlanis Reply AG, Live Reply GmbH, Riverland Reply GmbH and Triptesense Reply GmbH,

& |n the month of March 2016, the company reorgamization project concerning the partial spin-off of Target
Reply Srt in favor of Data Reply S rt was launched, both companies are wholly owned by Reply Sp A

During 2015 Reply Sp A also signed three loans / lines of credit with the followings banks and for the
following amounts
* 30,000,000 Euros with Intesa Sanpaclo Sp A of which
o Tranche A, amounting to 10,000,000 Euros, entirely used for the reimbursement of the
2013 credit ine The residual lcan amounted to 9,000,000 Euros at 31 December 2015
o Tranche B, amounting to 20,000,000 Euros, to be used by 31 December 2016 Such credit
iine was used for 4,500,000 Euro at 31 December 2015
« 10,000,000 Euros with Unicredit S p A entirely used for the reimbursement of the 2012 credit hne At 31
December the residual loan amounted to 10,000,000 Euros
« 25000,000 Euros to be used by 30 September 2018 At 31 December the credit ine was used for
1,500,000 Euros

2 Any unusual and/or atypical transactions, including intra-group or with related parties

On the basis of meetings with the Directors and with representatives of the independent Auditor, it did not
appear that any atypical or unusual transactions occurred during the financial year, nor after it ended

= With reference to intra-group transactions, we advise that

= Reply SpA obtained professional services from Group companies related 1o revenues connected to
contracts stipulated with major clients

+« Reply Sp A gave bank guarantees, payable on first request, to subsidiaries,

* Reply Sp A granted the following subsidianes loans without restrictions on use, amed at supporting their
activity

o OpenReplySri, Storm Reply Srl, Air Reply S+ and Solidsoft Srl - non-interest bearing
loan,

o Reply Ltd, Hermes Reply Polska Sp Zoo, Reply do Brasd Sistemas de Informatica Lida, Live
Reply Gmbh, Arlanis Reply GmbH, Concept Reply GmbH, Arlanis Reply AG, Portaitech
Reply GmbH, InEssence Reply Gmbh, InEssence GmbH ltalian branch, Reply Inc, Cluster
Brasile Ltda {formerly Mind Services Informatica Ltda), Triplesense Reply GmbH, Breed
Investments Ltd, Breed Reply Ltd and Technology Reply S rl (Romania)— interest bearing
loans,

*» Reply Sp A provided subsidianies with management admimstrative, commercial and marketing services,
the lease of premises, as well as services to manage the corporate internet network, electronic mail and
web,

e Reply S p A centrally managed the Group’s treasury by means of correspondence bank accounts held by
the individual subsidianies,
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s Reply Sp A granted Group companies the use of the “REPLY” trademark that it owns,

- Reply Sp A acquired "office services” (general services and the avallability of office space} from Reply
Services Srt and from Santer Reply Sp A

Transactions with related parties in 2015, which took place in accerdance with market conditions, are related

to Emoluments to Directors and Key Management and to “office senices, in particular to the office situated

in Corso Francia, 10 Turnin, provided by Allka Stl, Reply S p A 's direct parent company For these operations

the Procedure for Related party transactions was not applied as these transactions are exempt as defined by

art 41and 4 4 of the Procedure

Such situation also exist as at the date of this report

It 1s to be noted that as of May 2015, the Group's consolidaled revenues in 2013 and 2014 exceeded Euro

500 million, the Committee for transactions with related parues, identified in the control and nsk committee,

has taken steps to drafting the amendments deemed necessary to update the "procedure for transactions

with related parties " adopted by the Group so as to comply with the prowisions of Consob Regulation adopted

by resolution no 17221 of March 12, 2010

The Procedure for transactions with related parties, as integrated above, has been subject to approval by the

Board of Directors at its meeting held on 14/05/2015

3 Information provided in the Report on the operation on atypical and/or unusual transactions,
including intra-group transactions and those with related parties

The information provided by the Directors in the Report on Operations accompanying the Financial
Statements as at 31 December 2015 and in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Reply
Group and to the Financia!l Statements as at 31 December 2015 regarding the most significant transactions
fram an economic, financial and earmings standpoint, as well as transactions with subsidiaries, assoclated
companies and related parties, are adequate

The Report does not reveal that any atypical and/or unusual transactions occurred during the year or after it
ended

4 Comments and proposals on the notes and requests for information contained in the Report of the
Independent Auditor

Reconta Emst & Young Sp A, the company entrusted with the audit of the Financial Statements and
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2015, 1ssued its Report on today's date, in which 1
confirms that the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2015 of Reply Sp A conform to the International
Financial Reporting Standards endorsed by the European Unicn, as well as to the measures 1ssued in
implementation of Article 9 of Legislative Decree 38/2005, and were therefore prepared with clanty and
represent in a true and fair manner the economic and financial sitiuation, economic result and cash flows of
Reply S p A for the financial year ended on such date, and {further

the Report on Operations and the information set forth in Article 123-tis paragraph 4, of Legislative Decree
58/1998 presented 1n the Report on Corporate Governance and the Ownership Structure are consistent with
the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2015
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5 Complaints pursuant to Article 2408 of the Italian Civil Code
No complaints have been acknowledged pursuant to Article 2408 of the Italian Civil Code in 2014 and at
present

6 Filed complaints/lawsuits
The Company's Directors did notl advise us of any complaints filed against them in the financial year, nor
subsequent to the date it ended

7  The granting of any further appointments to the Independent Auditor and relative costs
Dunng 2015, In addition to the appointment to audit the Financial Statements as at 31 Becember 2015,
Reconta Ernst & Young S p A received the following appomntments
» The signing of Reply S p A’s vanous tax forms (Modell Unico, IRAP, 770)
The consideration for such appointment was 1thousand Euros,
= The signing of varous tax forms of Reply S p A’s ltalian subsidiaries (Modell Unico, IRAP, 770)
The consideration for such appointment was 15 thousand Euros

8 Any appointments of parties connected to the Independent Auditor by ongoing relationships, and
the relative costs

No further professional appointments were granted to parties connected to Reconta Ernst & Young Sp A by
ongotng relationships and/or by parties belonging to its network

9. Indication of whether opinions were Issued In accordance with law duning the financial year
During the financial year the opinions requested by the Board of Statutory Auditars were 1ssued as provided
by law

10 Indication of the frequency and number of meetings of the Board of Directors, Executive
Committee and Board of Statutory Auditors

During the financial year, the Board of Directors met 4 times, and the Board of Statutory Auditors 6 times
The Internal Control and Risk Management Committee met 4 times, the Remuneration Commiitee met twice,
and the Committee for Related Party Transactions met once

The Board of Statutory Auditors attended the meetings of the Board of Directors, and through its Chairman,
those of the Internal Control and Risk Management Committee and the Remuneration Commitiee
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" Instructions given by the Company to subsidianes pursuant to Article 114{2) of Legislative Decree
58/1998

The instructions given by Reply Sp A to subsidiaries, pursuant to the second paragraph of Article 114 of
Leqislative Decree 58/1998 appear to be adequate, similarly, the subsidianes provided the Parent Company
with the necessary information for its imely knowledge of the business situation

We adwvise you that in order to guarantee the timely communication of the information requested, Mr Daniele
Angeluccl, Executive Director and Finance and Control Manager of Reply Sp A, also acted as advisor within
all of the administrative bodies of the ltalian subsidiaries, with the exclusion of the company Ringmaster S
as well as Director in numerous foreign subsidianes

We further advise you that the Chairman of Reply Sp A's Board of Directors, Mr Mario Rizzante, 1s the
Director of the English subsidianes Reply Lid, Portaliech Reply Ltd, Avantage Reply Ltd, Breed Reply Ltd,
Breed Reply Investments Ltd Tatiana Rizzante, Chief Executive Officer 1s Director of the English subsidiaries
Avantage Reply Lid and Reply Ltd and i1s the Managing Director of the German subsidiaries, InNEssence Reply
GmbH, Portaltech Reply GmbH and Reply AG Filippo Rizzante, Executive Director holds office as Vice
President of Ringmaster Srl

12 Significant issues that emerged during the meetings held with the Independent Auditor pursuant
to Article 150(3) of Legislative Decree 58/1998

Dunng the meetings held with representatives of the Independent Auditors, no significant Issues emerged
that are worthy of mention

13 The Company's compliance with the Corporate Governance Code of the Listed Companies’
Corporate Governance Committee

Commencing from 2000, the Company adheres to the Corporate Governance Code promoted by Borsa
ltahiana S p A, and revised In July 2015

On 15 March 2016 the Board of Directors approved the annual Report on Corporate Goverance and
Ownership Structure prepared pursuant to Article 123 bis of Legislative Decree 58/1998

14 Final considerations on the supervisory activity carned out, as well as with respect to any
omissions, censurable events or irregulanties discovered dunng such activity
The Board's supervisory activity was carned out through

* Activities aimed at controlling compliance with laws and the by-laws,
» Participation at the meetings of the Company’s governing bodies,

» Acquining information dunng penodic meetings with the Independent Auditor concerning both the activity
it performed as well as any nsks related to its independence,

= Acquinng information during meetings with members of the Board of Statutory Auditors of the subsidianes
to exchange information on the Group's activities and coordinate control and supervisory activities
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« Gatherning additional informaticn dunng meetings with the Charman of the Company, the Director
responsible for drawing up the Company's Financial Statements, the Person in charge of internal control
and the Superviscry Body,

* Participation at the meetings of the Internal Control and Risk Management Committee and the
Remuneration and Nominating Committee,

+ The analysis of any new provisions of law or Consob communications of interest to the Company

The Board confirmed that the organizational requirements were met 1o comply with the relevant Company

by-laws, laws and regulations, in the constant evolution and search for improvement

In particular, we advise the Shareholders that

* We have monitored the conformity of the Procedure for Transactions with Related Parties, approved by
Reply SpA's Board of Directors on 11 November 2010 and subsequently approved on 4 May 2015,
according to the standards indicated in the Regulations approved by Consob by means of Resolution No
17221 of 12 March 2010 and subsequent modifications, as well 3s comphance with tt,

+ We controlled the correct application of the critena adopted by the Board of Directors i evaluating the
existence of the conditions of independence of the “independent Directors”,

« We monitored, when requested, compatitiity with legal restnictions on services other than the audit of
the annual and consolidated accounting records provided by the Independent Auditor to Reply Sp A and
to Its subsidianes,

+ We controlled complance with the imit on the accumulation of appointiments pursuant to Ardicle 144-
terdecies of the Consob Issuers' Regulation No 11971 as well as whether the members of the Board of
Statutory Auditors possess the same pre-requisites of independence required for Directors,

« We did not receive any reports of the Supervisory Body's violation of the Organizational and Management
Model pursuant to Legislative Decree 231701,

+ We vertfied complhance with the laws on “Market abuse™ and “Protection of savings™ in matters of
corporate discltosures of iInformation and “Internal Dealings”

On the basis of the principles mentioned and the information acquired during the audits and participation at
meetings with the persons responsible for administration and the internal control, we reached the following
conclusions
1) ADMINISTRATION
The Board of Statutory Auditers, having participated at the meetings of the Board of Directors, on the basis
of the information obtained at such time, acknowledges that it has venfled, with the exclusion of control of
the ments of the opportunity and economic convenience of the choices made by such body, that the
transactions performed and being carned out by the Company are based on pnnciples of proper
admrrustration, conform to law and the By-laws, do not conflict with the resolutions of the Shareholders’
meetings or compromise the integrty of the Company's assets
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2) ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Within the scope of the responsibihties bestowed on us by the rules set forth in Legislatuve Decree 58/1998
and in comphance wiih the Governance Rules of the Board of Statutory Auditors, we met penodically with the
Directors of the Independent Auditer and the organizational department, to gather the necessary information
This allowed the Board of Statutory Auditors to thoroughly supervise the Company's organizaticnal structure
and to arrive at a Judgment of overall adeguacy with respect to its size

3) INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

within the Board of Directors there 1s a8 Committee for Internal Control and Risk Management a Remuneration
and Nominating Committee, and a8 Committee for Transactions with Related Parties, whose actwities are
carmed out according to a program in line with the needs of the Company

The participation of the Director in charge of the Internal Control, as well as our paricipation at the meetings
of the Internal Control and Risk Management Commitiee, allowed us to coordinate our functions as the
Internal Control and Audit Committee, assumed pursuant to Article 19 of Legislative Decree 39/2010, with the
activittes of the Internal Control and Risk Management Commiitee, and, In particular, to carry out the
superviscry activities provided by Article 19 of Legistative Decree No 39/2010

On the basis of our analysis and the audits conducted the overall system appears to be substantially fair and
religble

We received from Reconta Ernst & Young S p A the notice issued pursuant to Article 17(9)a) of Legislative
Decree 38/2010, as well as the report set forth in Article 19(3) of Legislative Decree No 39/2010 which states
that no fundamental 1ssues emerged duning the audit, nor significant gaps in the Internal Control System in
relation to the financial reporting process

On the basis of our analysis and the audits conducted, the overall system appears to be substantially fair and
reliable

4) ADMINISTRATIVE- ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

Our assessment of the administrative-accounting procedures s positive, and they also appear to be imposed
on the compantes belonging to the Group

We therefore deem that the admimistrative-accounting system 15 suitable to represent and monitor
management, the presentation of the data for the reporting period the dentficabon prevention and
management of financial and operational nsks, and any fraud that could damage the Company

The Charman and the Director in charge of drawing up the Company’s Financial Statements have 1ssued,
pursuant to Arucle 8i-ter of Consob Regulation No 11971/1899 and subsequent modifications and
supplements, the attestation required by Article 154-bis(5) of TUF (Legislative Decree 58/1998)

15 Any proposals to make to the Shareholders' meeting pursuant to Article 153 of Legislative Decree
58/1998

In relation both to the prowvision of the second paragraph of Article 153 of Legislative Decree 58/1998 and the
general supervisory obhgation pursuant to Arucle 149(1) of such Decree, as well as the agenda of the
Shareholders’ meeting which includes discussion of the Financial Statements for the reporing penod, the
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Board of Statutory Auditors states that it has supervised compliance with the procedural rules and law with
respect 1o thew preparation

We note that the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2012 were prepared in compliance with European
Regulatron No 1606/2002 of 19 July 2002, in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IAS/IFRS)

On the basis of the controls made directly and the informatton exchanged with the Independent Auditor, and
also in view of the latter's report pursuant to Article 14 of Legislatve Decree 39/2010 which expresses a
Jjudgment without reservations, the Board of Statutory Auditors has no comments or proposals with respect
to the Financial Statements or Report on Operations and the proposals set forth theren, which it consequently
considers, to the extent of its specific expertise, should meet your approval

Similarty, with specific reference to the provision of the second paragraph of Article 163 of Legislative Decree
581998, the Board does not have any proposals to make with respect to the other matters within its scope
of expertise

With reference to the point on the agenda concerning the purchase and disposal of treasury shares, recaliing
disclosures made by the Directors, the Board states that the resolution proposed I1s in accordance with articles
2357, 2357-ter of the Itallan Civil Code, In accordance with Article 132 of Legislative Decree 58/1998, as well
as those of Art 144-bis of Consob’s Issuers Regulation no 1971 of 14 May 1999

With reference to the point on the agenda related to the resolution to revoke the delegation granted to the
Board of Directors dated 28/04/201 pursuant to art 2443 of the Civil Code and the simultaneous allocation
of delegates to the current Board of Directors to increase the paid-in share capital by a maximum nominal
amount of € 312,000 for a maximum penod of five years by way of contnbution of shares in capital companies
subject similar or akin to that of Reply S p A, with share premium and the exclusion of option nghts pursuant
to art 2441, ¢ 4 of the Cwvil Code , amending art 5 of the Bylaws , considenng disclosures made by the
Directors, the Board acknowledges that the proposed resolution 1s in conformity with the provisions of the
Cwvil Code , the Legislative Decree no 58/1998 and the contents of which the Consob Regutation adopted
with reselution no 119711999

Tunn, 30 March, 2016
The Statutory Auditors
(Prof Cristiano Antonell)

(Dott ssa Ada Alessandra Garzino Demo}
(Dott Paolo Claretta Assandri)
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Reconta Ernst 8 Young S p A Tel +39 011 5161611
Via Meuccet, 5 Fax +39 011 5612554
10121 Tonno ey com

Building a better

workmg world

Independent auditor’s report
In accordance with art 14 and 16 of Legislative Decree n 39, dated January 27, 2010
(Translation from the original Itahan text)

To the Shareholders of Reply Sp A

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Reply S p A . which comprise the statement
of financial position as at December 31, 2015, and the Income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flow for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and cther explanatory notes

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Directors of Reply S p A are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union as well as with the regulations issued to implement art 9 of Legislative Decree n 38,
dated February 28, 2005

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility I1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia) implemented in
accordance with art 11, paragraph 3 of Legislative Decree n 39, dated January 27, 2010 Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing precedures te obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor's professional judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting pohcies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We beleve that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinton

Opinion

In our opimion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Reply S p A
as at December 31, 2015, and of its financtal performance and 1ts cash flows for the year then ended
In accordance with Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and
with art S of Legislative Decree n 38, dated February 28, 2005
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinton on the consistency with the financial statements of the Report on Operations and of specific
information of the Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership Structure

We have performed the procedures required under audit standard SA ltalla n 720B 1n order to express
an opinion on the consistency of the Report on Operations and of specific information of the Report on
Corporate Governance and Ownership Structure as provided for by art 123-bis, paragraph 4 of
Legislative Decree n 58, dated February 24, 1998, with the financial statements, as required by the
law The Directors of Reply S p A are responsible for the preparation of the Report on Operations and
of the Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership Structure in accordance with the applicable
laws and regulations In our cpinion the Report on Operations and the specific information of the
Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership Structure are consistent with the financial statements
of Reply S p A as at December 31, 2015

Turin, March 30, 2016
Reconta Ernst & Young Sp A
Signed by Luigi Conti, partner

This report has been translated into the English language solely for the convertence of international readers
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SYSTEM

The Corporate governance system adopted by the company, that 13, the set of laws and bylaws adopted
in order to ensure the efficient and transparent functioring of the corporate bodies and of the control
systems, adheres to the Corporate Governance Code i1ssued by Borsa ltaltana in March 20086, updated in
July 2015 (hereinafter “the Code")

The Company Is Incorporated under Italian law and listed on the stock exchange on the MTA market, STAR
segment The governance structure of Reply Sp A — based on the tradittonal model, 1s made up of the
following bodies The General Shareholders’ meeting, the Board of Directors (that carries out its function
through Executive Directors and 1s advised by an Internal Control and Risks Commuittee and a Remuneration
and Nomination Committee), the Board of Statutory Auditors and Independent Auditors

The General Sharehotders’ meeting 1s the corporate body, which expresses the requests of the
sharehotlders through its resolutions Resolutons passed In compliance with the law and the by-laws are
binding on all shareholders independently whether they agree or disagree unless the latter draw out, In
the cases allowed The Shareholders are convened according to the rules set out for isted companies
The Board of Directors has the function to define and approve the company's strategic, operating and
financial plans In addition to the corporate structure it heads The Board 1s investied with the broadest
powers of management of the company In order to perform all the actions held to be most appropnate In
the pursuit of the company object, with the exception of those reserved te the Shareholders’ meeting
The Board of Statutory Auditors 1s responstble for the supervision of compliance with the law and by-laws
and more specifically

+  Supervision of proper management by verfying
o The respect of good management principles,

o The adequate structure of the company,

o The mplementation of the rules of corporate governance,

o The adequacy of information disclosed by the subsidianes in relation to mandatory
information to the market and concerning privileged information

e Role of commrttee for internal control and audit responsible for overseaing
o The finanaial reporting process,
o The effectiveness of the internal control, internal audit and risk management systems,
o The audit of the annual separate and consclidated accounts,
o The independence of the independent audiors

The Board of Statutory Auditors 15 not responsible for the legal audit which 1s a function performed by an
independent company appointed by the Shareholders’ meeting

The independent audit firm 1s responstble for checking that the company's accounts are properly kept and
that managenal operations are correctly reflected in the accounting records The auditors also venfy that
the separate and consolidated accounts correspond to the accountng records and to verfications
performed and that they are in compliance with the applicable regulations The Independent Auditors can
also perform other services upon request of the Board of Dtrectors, If not Incompatible with the legal audit
engagement

Governance also includes the Internal Control System, the Organizational and management Modei
pursuant to Article 6 of Legislative Decree no 231201 and the structure of the powers and proxies, as
presented herein

The following Report - and where it 15 deemed necessary in Report on Remuneration- inciudes the
governance structure examined by the Board of Directors on 15 March 2016 and it accounts for the
recommendations of the Code that the Board of Directors has decided not to adopt, providing related
motivattons and/or, where pertinent, the alternative recommendations adopted
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The Report on Corporate Governance, that 1s an integral part of the Report on Operations, along with the
company's by-laws, are avallable on the company's website (wwwreply eu — Investors — Corporate

Governance)

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE (ex Art. 123-bis, paragraph 1, of Italian

Legislative Decree. 58/1998) at 15 March 2016

Capital structure

The share capital structure of Reply Sp A 1s summanzed below

The share capital fully paid and subscribed at 15 March 2016, amounts to 4,863,485 64 Euros, divided in
9,352,857 ordinary shares having nominal value of O 52 Euros- no other form of shares exist

At present, the stock cption plans, no longer exist as the stock options have been entirely exercised

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Ordinary % with respect to Listed/mon-Iisted | Rights and oblhgations
shares 5C
Ordinary shares 9,352,857 100% Listed ex law

Plural voting share

Limlted voting share

Non voung share

Other

Restrictions on the transfer of shares

The by-laws do not foresee restrictions on the transfer of shares

Significant shareholders

According to the Shareholders' Ledger, to the notifications received in compliance to the laws and
according to other available information as at 15 March 2016, the shareholders that directly or indirectly
hold stakes greater than 2% of the share capital having the nght to vote are the following

Shareholder

Direct Shareholder

Ownership % over share capital

Ownership % over voting

Segregabon

capital

Rizzante Mario AlkaSrl 527775 527775
Rizzante Mano 01080 01080

Total 52 8855 52 BB5S

Goldman Sachs Segregation Goldman Sachs 39057 39957
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Shares granting special rights

No shares have been 1ssued that grant special rights of control

Employee shareholdings mechanism exercising voting rights

In the case of employee shareholdings, a system by which the voting nght can be exercised directly by
someone else does not exist

Restrictions on voting rights

The company by-laws have not established restnctions on voting nghts

Agreement with shareholders

At present, the Company has the following lock-up agreemenis in compliance to art 122 of Legislative
Decree n 581998, in which shareholders have more than 2% of the share capital
Agreement dated 9 November 2004, tacitly renewed for a further three year perniod and until 9 November
2010, and tacitly renewed for a further three-year penod until 9 November 2013, by which the shareholders
of Alika Srl, with headquarters in Torino Corse Francia no 10, share capital of 90,600 00 Euros entirely
called up, fiscat code and Teorina company reqgistration no 07011510018, for a stake of 46,206 00 Euros
equivalent to 51% (fifty-one percent) of the share capital and more specifically
¢ Mr Mano Rizzante holder of 5,706 00 Euros, equivalent to approximately 6 3% (six point three
percent) of the share capital,
s Mrs Marna Graziella Paglha holder of 17,100 00 Euros equivalent to approximately 18 87% (eighteen
point etghty-seven percent) of the share capntal,
e Mrs Tatiana Rizzante holder of 11,700 00 Euros equivalent to approximately 12 91% (twelve point
ninety-one percent) of the share capital,
« Mr Flippo Rizzante holder of 11,700 00 Euros equivalent to approximately 12 91% {twelve peint
ninety-one percent) of the share capital,
have signed a lock up agreement according to ex Article 122 of TUF for a three year period and renewable
for equal periods as long as one of the shareholders does not communicate the canceltation with a six
months written notice hawving the nght to vote 1n the company Allka S|, holding of Reply Sp A

Change of control and statutory rulings in public tender offices

With reference to agreements that could be cancelled in relation to a change of control in Reply Sp A | the
following 1s noted

FINANCING CONTRACTS
Reply Sp A, has entered into the following loan agreement with Intesa San Paolo

« On 31 March 2015 a contract was signed for 30 milhon Euros
Reply S p A, has entered Into the following loan agreements with Unicredit SpA

. On 8 Apnl 2015 a contract was signed for 10 millon Euros,

«  On 30 September 2015 a contract was signed for 25 million Euros
These contracts, having the scope of financing the Group for acguisitions onthe tahan or European market,
allow the funding banks the faculty to call off the coniract in case of a change of control directly or indirectly

in Reply S p A, in accordance with Art 2359 of the {talian Civil Code
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BUSINESS AGREEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
Within some business agreements and contracts undersigned by Reply S p A 1115 mandatory to notify the

change of control the Company has also undersigned contracts n which the clause “Change of control”
implies iImmediate cancellation of the contract

Such agreements, which are not very sigrificant when compared to the whole of Group actmties, are
subject to confidentiality clauses

PUBLIC OFFICES
Reply's by-laws do not provide any regulations in relation to the passmvity rule provided for by art 104

paragraph 1and 2 of TUF nor does it foresee the applicaton of the neutralization rules contemplated in art
104-bis, paragraphs 2 and 3 of the TUF

Proxies to increase share capital and authorization to buy treasury shares

The General Shareholders’ meeting has given proxy to the Board of Directors to increase the share capital,
pursuant to Article 2443 of the civil code
The informaticn regarding the current proxies is detalled in the table below

Amount Proxy executed
Resolulion
Proxy
Euros Shares The
The General General
Shareholder Proxy Expiry date Sharehold Proxy
s meeting ers
meeting
28/04/2011  The Board of Direciors has the proxy to 28/04/206 312 000 600 000 - -

in¢crease the share capital with the
exclusion of pre-empiive rights payable
in different forms and to be executed
separately against payment in shares of
enterprnses having the same business
scope  or instrumental to  the
development of the Company's
actvitres

On 28 April 201 the Company resolved to grant the Board of Directors, pursuant to Article 2443 of the Cwil
Code, the powers to increase the share capital in one or more tranches for a penod of five years pursuant
to art 2441 paragraph 4, for a maximum nominal value of 312,000 Euros through the issue of 600,000
Reply S p A ordinary shares with a par value of 0 52 Eurcs each, to be executed in one or more tranches
and therefore separable for a maximum five year pernod,

The new shares will be 1ssued separately against payment in shares of enterprises having the same
business scope or instrumeantal to the development of the Company s activities

The Board of Directors pursuant to Article 2441, paragraph 6 of the Civil Law shall determine the pnce of
the shares with reference to the trend of the stock market for the operation in the increase of share capital,
and subordinated to the best practice methods of evaluation at an international level that take into
consideration the market multphers of comparable compantes and to financial economic models
commonly recogrized and used in the respect of the mimimum share price calculated as the single value
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of the share of the consolidated net equity resulting in the most recently approved Financial Statements
by the Board of Directors pnor 10 the resolution of the increase in share capial

The Shareholder’s, following resclution passed on 16 April 2015, have authonized the acquisition of treasury
shares In accordance with art 2357 of the ltahan Civil Code as follows

number of shares considering the treasury shares already held by the Company at the said date, a
maximum number of 1,869,564 ordinary shares at 0 52 Eurcs, correspanding to 19 9892% of the existing
share capital within the maximum spending it of 30,000,000 Euros,

duration for a penod of 18 months, that I1s from 16 Apnd 2015 to 16 October 2015, in substitution of the
previous authonzation resolved by the Shareholders’ meeting of 23 April 2013,

mmimym purchase price nominal value of the ordinary shares {presently 0 52 Euros),

maximum purchase price not greater than the official trade pnice on the MTA Market the day pnior to the
purchase applying a spread of 15% and a disbursement of maximum 50,000,000 Euros,

authonization to sell {Ijon the market or in blocks, through a public bid, (1) sale, transfer, or trade of shares
for investment acquisitions or negotiations with strategic partners (1) following agreements made with
individual Directors, employees and or coltaberaters of the Company or with directly orindirectly controlled
comparies, that do not meet the requirements of Stock granting pursuant to ex Art 114 tis of the TUF (v)

against payment in kind pursuant to the regulations of the Stock Granting plans

At the reporting date the company held 1 007 treasury shares

It 1s to be noted that
s« The information requested by art 123-bis, first paragraph letter |) of TUF is disclosed in the Directors’
report at the paragraph disclosing Director’s remuneration

« Theinformation requested by art 123-bus, first paragraph letter [y of TUF 1s disclosed in the Directors’
report at the paragraph disclosing information on the Board of Directors

MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION ACTIVITIES

Reply Sp A s not subject to management and coordination activities pursuant to Article 2497 and
subsequent of the civil code

The Parent company does not exercise contral and coordination activities over Reply S p A in as much as
it qualifies as a holding, lacking an autonomous organizational structure and consequently does not carry
out management activities for Reply Sp A

All the Itaban subsidianes held, directly or indirectly, by Reply S p A have accurately disclosed the control
and coordination to which they are subject by Reply S p A in accordance with art 2497 — bus of the ltalian
Civil Code

COMPLIANCE (ex Art 123-bis, para 2, letter a, TUF)

The Report heremn reflects and ilustrates the corporate govemance structure that the Company has
adopted In compliance to the requiements of the Code, available on Borsa ltallana's website
hitp //www borsaitaliana st/borsaitaliana/regolamentycorporategovernance/codice?2d15 pdf and to which

the Company has adhered
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The Board of Directors is always inclined at evaluating any new views and onentations that the Corporate
Governance Code could consider and eventually integraie and amend the Company's Corporate
Governance only if, and compatible with the company’s reality, and that such integration enables the
Company to {urther strengthen its reliabiity with investors

Reply Sp A and its key strategic subsidianes, to the Board of Directors knowledge are not subject to
foreign laws that have an influence on the corporate governance structure of the Issuer

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NOMINATION AND SUBSTITUTION OF DIRECTORS
The nominatron and substitutton of Directors 1s disciplined by art 16 (Nomination of Directors) of the by-

laws, and I1s avalable on the Company's website (wwwreplyeu under — Investors — Corporate
Governance)
Art 16 of the Company by-laws, regulates that

« The hist of candidates running for Director, shall be deposited at the company's registered office
twenty-five days pricr to the date of the first call for the Annual General Shareholders’ meeting, at
least twenty-one days pnor to the Shareholders’ meeting, the list together wath the information and
declarations required, shall be made avalable to the public

» Only those shareholders that alone or together with others represent 2 5% of the crdinary voting
shares have the nght to present the lists or the mimimum minonty voting share required In
accordance with binding laws or regulations,

» The lists that do not reach the percentage of votes equivalent to at least half of those required for
the presentation of the same, cannot be considered when apportioning the Directors to be
elecied,

+ The hst presenting candidates equivalent or supenor to three shall be composed by candidates
from both genders so as the number of candidates in accordance to the regulations of the Report
belong also to the less represented genders {it shall be rounded up to the next number if In
excess),

* The voting mechanism appoints the Directors from the hst having obiained the majority votes by
the shareholders and following the order on the list, five sevenths of the Directors will be selected
from the eligible candidates, while the remamning Directors will be setected from the other lists,
guaranteeing In any case, that at least one candidate has been voted by the minonty list that has
recewed the most number of votes and that 1s not connected in any way, not even indirectly, to
the shareholders that presented or voted the list that reached the greatest number of votes,

* In the case where the mimmum number of Independent Directors have not been nominated
according to the procedure mentioned above the last candidate elected from each list which has
been nominated by at least one Director and who has received the most votes will be substituted
by the candidate iImmediately following until the minimum number of Independent Directors have
been elected

+ As to represent a balance in the genders, the last candidate elected froem the section of the list
that obtained the most votes belonging to the most represented gender shall lapse and shall be
replaced by the {irst candidate not elected from the same hst and the same section belonging to
the least represented gender Otherwise, the Shareholders Meeting shall make up the number of
the Board of Statutory Auditors with the majonities required by law, ensuring that the requirement
1s complied with
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» The company by-laws regulate that Independent Directors not only must meet the requirements
estabhshed for Statutory Auditors In accordance with art 148, paragraph 3, of Legislative Decree
24 February 1998 no 58, but must also meet requirements estabhshed by the Corporate
governance code adopted by the Company

Considenng the current composition of the Board of Directors and the participation of various members, a
succession plan for Executive Directors has not been adopted also in light of the fact that the business
management Is guaranteed through a prompt substitution of executives

MEMBERS
The Company's Board of Directors 1s made up of a vanable number of members froma minimum of 3to a

maximum of 11 The number of members 1s resclved by the Annual General Shareholders’ meeting

As reguired by the Corporate Governance Code, the Board of Directors 1s made up of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors, the number, competence, authority and time availlability of Non-Executive Directors
shall be such as to ensure that ther judgment may have a significant impact on the taking of board's
decisions

At present the Board of Directors 1s made up of nine (9) Directors of which six (6) Executive

- Mr Mano Rizzante Chairman and Chuef Executive Officer
- Ms Tabana Rizzante Chief Executive Officer

- Mr Oscar Pepino Executive Director

- Mr Claudio Bombonato Executive Director

- Mr Daniele Angelucci Executive Director

- Mr Fillippo Rizzante Executive Director

- Dott Filippo Rizzante Executive Director

and three (3) Non-Executive and Independent Directors

- Mr Fausto Forti {Lead Independent Director)
- Mrs Mana Letizia Jacchen
- Mr Ennco Maci

The Directors operate and take decisions in an informed and unconditioned matter, pursuing the primary
objective of creating value for the shareholders They hold office with the awareness of being abie to
dedicate the necessary time 1n order 10 carry out their actions diigently

The members above were nominated through the Annual Shareholders’ resolution on April 23, 2015 based
on the hst presented by the majonty shareholder Alka S ri Office for the above members terminated with
the approval of the 2017 financtal statements

The Charman coordinates the activities and conducts the Board of Directors Meetings and takes the
necessary actions so as to inform the members well in advance on significant points and useful tems in
order to participate in a profitable manner with the exception of urgent and confidential matters

The Charrman furthermore by means of the operational members of the company, makes sure that the
Directors participate in initiatives aimed at increasing knowledge of the company reality and its evolution
and that they are informed about the major new legislation and regulations that concern the Company and
Its governing bodies

With regard to the application of the cnitenon of appertionment in relation to the election of Directors,
pursuant to Art 147 ter, paragraph 1 ter of the TUF, the Company has applied ¢ as from the renewal of the
corporate bodies that took place in 2015
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Following I1s a brief description of personal and professicnal charactenstics of the members of the Board
of Directors of the Company

Mano Rizzante (Chawrman, Chief Executive Officer and founder of Reply Sp A )

Mr Rizzante recerved a graduate in Science of Informasics at the University of Tunn In the 70's, within the
Fiat Group, Mr Rizzante worked on severai projects for manufacturing automation In 1981 Mr Rizzante left
Fiat and founded Mesarieam S p A, a System Integration company that in a few years became one of the
leading ltahan companies in the ICT sector In 1990 Mesarteam was sold to Shgos, company belonging to
the Group Crédit Lyonnais and Mr Rizzante contrnibuted as Chairman and strengthened relations with
important international clients In 1994 Mr Rizzante joined Digital {(now HP), as Scuthern Europe Terntory
Manager of System Integration and Consulting In June 1996, together with other partners Mr Rizzante
decided to undertake a new entrepreneur endeaver constructing a system integration and consuling
company specialized n new internet technologies Reply comes to life Within only four years since its
constitution, in December 2000, Mr Rizzante leads Reply to the Stock market, listing it on the market In
Milan in 2015 he was nominated Cavaliere del Lavero” (Historian of the Workforce)

Tatiana Rizzante (Chief Executive Officer of Reply Sp A}

Tatiana Rizzante receved a Bachelor degree in Informatics Engineering at the Polytechnics of Turnn
Immediately after having graduated, In 1995 Mrs Rizzante begins working in the field of experimental and
research activities on the Internet in collaboration with the Polytechnics of Turin and Cselt In 1996 within
Technoloegy Reply Srl, she participates actively in projects involving the realization of Intranet websties,
network computing and information retrieving She continues her career within the Reply Group covernng
the role of Technical Director In Sytel Reply Srl with the task of developing a competence center related
to Internet services for Telecommunication cperators In 2002 Mrs Rizzante was appointed Senior Partner
of Reply with the mission of pursuing the business iine Technological Architectures and Portals, atong with
marketing, communication and partinership activities In 2003 Mrs Rizzante was appointed Director of the
Board of Directors of Reply and carrnes out Sales & Marketing activities in ltaly for the entire Group From
April 2011 to April 2015 she held the position as Independent Director at Anssido Sts S p A (Finmeccanica
Group company} She was a member of the Board of Directors of Confindustria Digitale until April 2014, an
industrnial federation of representation, which has the aim to promeote the deveiopment of the digital
economy through competition and the innovation of the courntiry

Oscar Pepino (Executive Director and founder of Reply Sp A)

Mr Pepino gracduated in Science Informatics at the University of Tunn in 1977 In 1981 he founded
Mesarteam S p A, a System Integration company fulfilling his management role from the headquarters in
Milan After Mesarteam was sold to Sligos, company belonging to the Group Crédit Lyonnais in 1890, Mr
Pepino joins Digital (now HP), covenng the role of informatics consultant In June 1996 he participates in
the foundation of Reply and fulfils the role of Chief Executive Officer with the task of Technical and Quality
Director of the Reply Group Mr Pepino s currently is in charge of the Reply Group Operations Office which
runs the informatics system, quality management, the management of operational quarters, PM Academy
and Cmm, Safety at work and Privacy, supervision of the Internal Coniro! System and tasks associated to
this rote in accordance with the Procedures for Operations with Related Parties

Claudio Bombonato {(Executrve Director of Reply Sp A )

Mr Claudio Bombonate graduated in Aercnautics Engineering from the Polytechnics of Turin He holds a
Doctorate in Philosophy in Aerospace Engineering from the Turnn University, and also a Masters degree in
Business Administration from Universita Commerciaie Luiig Boccom After a 10 year professional
expenence in Fiat Aviation Division and IBM ltaly, he started working at McKinsey (in 1981) where he was
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mainly invelved in the banking sectorand ICT In 1986 he became Partner and leader in financial Institutional
practices and ICT n ltaly In 1990, he was appointed Director of the company by McKinsey and was a
member of the European leadership group on Financial Institutions Mr Claudio Bombonato was the
European Supervisor overseeing Commercial Banking practices for a number of years In 2006 he left
Mckinsey and was appointed European Senior Adwiser for Morgan Stanley (Financial Institution sector in
Italy) He has published many articles on strategic thematic, organization and technology both for the
financial and public sectors He was Member of the Board at Sl Holding and Banca Fonspa Sp A until
November 2013 At present he 1s a Member of the Board at Whysol Sp A a financial holding company
active Inthe energy sector Since March 2015 he 15 the Chairman of Amima Holding S p A, a company which
Is listed on the Italian stock exchange

Damiele Angelucci (Executive Director of Reply Sp A)

Daniele Angelucc worked from 1376 to 1986 at the Centre of Study & Laboratories of Telecommunications
(CSELT, now Telecom ltaly Lab) as a researcher, From 1986 to 1995 he worked in Mesarteam S p A fulfiling
various roles including Technical Director of the Rome office, Head of Technical Software and then
Technical Director of Turin He joined Reply as a Senior Partner n 1996 In 1996 he became President and
founding member of Cluster Reply, a group company focused on e-business solutions using Microsoft
technology From 2000 to 2002 he was Director of operations in the Turin area In 2003 he became CEQ
of Santer S p A, a company specialized in the health market and local government From 2006 to 2010 he
was Chief Financial Officer of Reply Deutschland AG Since 201 he has been Chief Financial Officer of
ReplySpA

Filippo Rizzante (Executive Director of Reply Sp A}

A computer engineernng graduate from the Polytechnic University of Tunn, whom has always been
fascinated by new technologies He began his career with Reply in 1999 In the early years, he worked
within the Group mainly in consultancy and projects for the web division, focusing in particular on the
development of B2B and B2C portals In 2003 he held the position of Technical Manager of Technology
Reply Rome, and then continued his career within YH Reply (now Whitehall Reply) as CEO In 2006 he
became Executive Partner of the Reply Group, overseeing the Group companies that deal with Cracle
technologies, Safety, information Lifecycle Management Web 20 and Open Source Over the years his
responsibiliies within the Group grew and he assumed direct responsibility for vanous business lines
mcluding Architecture and Technclogies, Digital and Mobile Media ~ in addition to contrnibuting to the
success of the Reply offer In the context of Cloud Computing, Digital Media and Sccial Media for signdficant
ltalian and foreign chents Since 2012, In the capacity of Reply CTO, he ied the development of new offer
elements associated with technological innovation and assumed Group responsibility for all partnerships

Fausto Forti (Independent Director and Lead Independent Director of Reply S p.A)

Mr Forti has a graduate degree in mathematics From 1974 to 1983 he held several positions In Inveco
Sp A (Fiat Group) among which 1S and in charge of Spare parts for the Brazilian affilate, from 1983 to 1994
inFiat S p A he held the posthion of Director of Logistics From 1994 to 2004 joins the TNT Group — Logistics
division — where he covers the role of Chief Executive Officer of the Italian Business Unit and South
America In 2005 he joins DHL Express Mediterranean (italy, Greace, Cyprus, Malta and Israel), Deutsche
Post Group World Net, and 15 appointed Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, position that he held until
March 2013 From Agpnl 2013 to April 2015 he was the Chairman of DHL Express ltaly Srl From 2000 to
2006 he was Chairman of Assologistica (Assoclazione Iltaliana delle Aziende di Logistica) Since April 2010
he 1s Chairman of Confetra (Confederazione italiana delle Associazion di Trasporto e Logistica)
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Mana Letizia Jacchen {Independent Director of Reply S p.A )

Norwegian nationality, holds a PhD in Computer Engineenng at the Politecnico of Tunn, achieved in 1994
and a degree in Computer Science from the University of Pisa in 1988 Since 2002 she 1s Professor at the
Norwegian University of Science and Technology (NTNU) and since 2013 appointed Director of the
Department of Computer and Informanen Science NTNU) managing a group of 140 employees (professors,
administrators, graduates and researchers, more than 1,000 siudents and numerous research activities for
the innovation of the department with several projects funded by the Norwegian Research Council and by
the European community and industry

Since 2014 | she 15 an alternate member of the Sintef Counail, 8 Norwegian research organization with
about 2,000 employees Since April 2015 Independent Director of Reply Sp A She has published more
than 100 scientific papers since 1989, for which she obtained over 1,500 mentions according to Google
Scholar

Enrco Macli {Independent Director of Reply Sp A)

Since 2001 Ennco Macn s a Full Professor of Computer Engineering at Politecnico di Tonno Prior 1o that,
he was an Asscciate Professor (1998-2001) and an Assistant Professer (1993-1998) &t the same institution
From 1991 to 1997 he was alsc an Adjunct Faculty at the University of Colorado at Boulder He holds a
Laurea Degree in Electrical Engineenng from Politecrico di Torino (1980), a Laurea Degree in Computer
Science from Universitd ci Tering (1991) and a PhD degree in Compuier Engineering from Politecnico di
Tonno (1995) Since 2007, he 1s the Vice Rector for Research at Poltecruco di Tonne, he was also the
Rector's Delegate for Technology Transfer (2009-2015) and for International Affars (2012-2015) His
research interests are i the design of electronic circuits and systems, with particular emphasis on low-
power consumption aspects In the lasi few years, he has been growingly involved in projects focusing on
the devetopment of new technologies, methodologies and policies for achieving energy efficiency in
builldings, districts and cities, therefore addressing multi-disciplinary activities regarding clean energy
deployment, low-pollution mobility, sustainable urban development pointing towards the actuation of the
concept of smart city In the fietds above he has authored over 450 scientific publications

electronic systems The scientific results obtamned in his career have given rise 1o a total of about 500
publications in journals, books and conferences Internationally

The critena in evaluating the requisites of independence of the Board of Directors has not been integrated
or modified

The Board of Directors has verified, at the date of approval of the Report herein, the offices of Directors
and Statutory Auditors, held by the Directors in other hsted companies, finance, bank, and insurance
companies or big enterprises

The following arose

¢« Mr Claudio Bombonato 1s a Director of Whysol S p A, a financial holding company active in the
energy sector and Charrman of Amma HoldingSp A

+ Proiessor Carlo Alberto Carnevale Maffé 1s a member of the Board of Directors’ of Poligrafica San
Faustino Sp A,

Although recommended by the Code, the Board of Directors has preferred not to express an opinion in
relation to the maximum number of offices compatible with the execution of the Directors’ role as
believes that such assessment firstly should be made by the shareholders when appointing the Directors
and secondly by the individual Director when accepting the office
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In accordance to the Group's practices that have been adopted In relation to induction programmes,
several initiatives are foreseen aimed at providing Directors and Top Management an adequate knowledge
of the area in which the company operates, of the dynamics of the company and its evolution and of the
regulatory framework More specifically, it 1s provided that a full set of documents containing the principle
regulations and laws regarding the Board of Directors, the varous internal Committees withun the Board
and the main refated corporate documents be made avallable

Role of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors 15 the statutory managing body vested with the broadest powers for the ordinary
and extraordinary management of the Company

The Board of Directors pnmarily carry out 8 management and control function with relation to the general
activities of the company and the subsidiary companies

More speciiically the Board of Directors in comphance with the Code

a) Examine and approve the company’s strategic, operational and financial plans and the corporate
structure of the group it heads perncdically monitoring its iImplementation, defines the corporate
governance system and the structure of the group,

b} Defines the nature and level of nsk compatible with the 1ssuer’s strategic objectives,

<} Evaluates the adequacy of the organizational, adminisirative and accounting structure of the 1ssuer
and s subsidianies having strategic relevance, as established by the managing Directors, n
particular with regard to the Internal Control System and nsk management,

d) it shall specify the imits on these delegated powers, the manner of exercising them and the
frequency, as a rule no less than once every three months, with which the bodies In question must
report to the board on the activities performed in the exercise of the powers delegated to them,

e) Evaluates the general performance of the company, paying particular attention to the information
received from the Executive commiitee (when established) and the managing Cirectors, and
periodically comparing the results achieved with those planned,

1) Decides on operations carried out by the issuer and its subsidianes when said operations have
significant strategic, economic or financial relevance to such issuer, to this end, the board shall
establish general cnternia for iIdentifying the transactions which might have a significant impact,

o)) At least once a year, it performs an evaluation of the work of the Board itself as well as of its
committees including therr size and composition also taking into account elements such as the
professional charactenstics, (managerial) expenence and general qualities of its members, including
therr length of time Iin ofiice,

h} Taking account of the outcome of the evaluation under point g), before a new Board 15 appointed, it
adwvises shareholders with regard to the types of professionals it deems advisahle to have
represented on the Board,

I} Provides information in the report on corporate governance {1) on its composition of the board,
indicating for each member the qualification (Executve Non-Executive, or independent) the role
within the Board, his or her main professional features and senionty as a member of the Board, (2)
the methods of application of Art 1 0f the Code and, on the number of meetings of the board and of
the Executive committee, if any, held during the fiscal year plus the related percentage of attendance
of each Director, (3) on the modalities of the evaluation process referred to under point g),

N In order to ensure the proper management of corporate information, adopted, on the proposal of
the Chief Executive Officer or Chairman of the Board of Directors, a procedure for the internal
management and external communication of documents and information concerning the 1ssuer, with
particular reference to privileged information
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The Board of Directors meet on a regular basis, at least every three months, as established by the Company
by-laws, or when deemed necessary

The Chairman, under the company’s by-laws has the power to convene the Board of Directors meetings
The Directors report to the Statutory Auditors on a quarterly basis with regards to the activines carnied out
duning the year, the significant operations carried out by the company or its subsidianies and with regards
to operations that could be of potential conflict of interest and provide adequate information on atypical,
unusual or with related party transactions, that are not subject to the Board of Directors approvat

Durning 2015 the Board of Direciors met five {5} imes and the average duration was approximately two
hours (2)

The Board of Directors are scheduled to meet at least four (4) times in 2016 The Board of Directors have
held no meetings at the present date of this Report

During 2015, the Chairman, In accerdance to the Corporate Governance, provided documents containing
information relevant to the discussion to directors and statutory auditors a few days preceding the meeting
as to ensure the directors and siatutory auditors timely and complete access to infermation in advance of
the Beard meeting In particular, to simplify access and consultation of such documents, a synthesis of the
most relevant items (hew amendments, regulations) has been providged The documentation shall be sent
a few days prior to the established date of the meeting, except documentation which 1s not available or
particularly urgent or unforeseen

The Chairman of the Board of Directors ensured that each meeting was carmed out appropriately, ensunng
that each item on the minutes was treated accordingly and that adequate time was spent to establish an
advantageous companson among the members of the board

The participating members of the Board are also allowed to intervene through audiowisual connection

In order to facilitate the partcipation of a greater number of Managers and Statutory Auditors, a calendar
of the annual meetings scheduled 1s drafted

The Board of Directors, upon the approval of the annual and half-year financial report and considering the
duties carried out by the Control and Risk Committee (which in turn 1s based on controls carned out by the
Internal Audit), examine and evaluate penodically the adequacy of the organizational, administrative, and
accounting structure and the general performance of the system of the mternal control and risk
management

This point 1s fully detailed in “Internal Control and nsks Committee”

In accordance with the Corporate Governance Code {(art 1C 1, letter f), the company has granted the Board
of Directors the exarmnation and approval of the operations deemed “significant” and some specific
operations with related parties, fully detalled in thus Report in the section dedicated to the topic

Coherent to the Code, the Board of Directors, cn an annual basis, evaluate the activities performed by the
Board and ts Commuttees with particular emphasis on size, composition and functioning The evaluation
takes 1nto account the relative mix of executive, non-executive and independent directors, as well as their
specific technicat abiliies and professional background and expenence and the length of time on the
board

During the meeting held on 31 July 2015, the Board of Directors deemed that the stancding Board and its

Committees, with particular emphasis on size, composition and functioning meet the requirements set forth
by the Code
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The Board of Directors, pursuant to the Group's consolidated practices, has considered not to express its
posttion with regards to the nominations of 2015, as this valuation s already carrnied out by the shareholders
upon presentation of the mentioned lists

The shareholders have relieved the Board of Directors from the obligations pursuant to art 2380 paragraph
i of the Civil Code

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors currently holding office comprises of two Chief Executive Officer, {who also fulfils
the role of Chairman of the Board of Directors) four Executive Directors and has empowered the Chairman
{who also fulfils the role of Chief Executive Officer) with the broadest operational delegations, in ight of the
resolutions passed on 23 Apnl 2015

Mr Marto Rizzante, Chairman of the Board of Directors, s empowered with the ordinary and extraordinary
administraton of the company with the exception of those specifically empowered by law to the Board of
Directors and excluding the operaticns empowered to the Board of Directors, as set out by the Reguiation
on Significant Operations and with related parties

The Chairman, I1s respensible for the management of the Company and 1s also major shareholder, as
fllustrated here within

Mrs Tatiana Rizzante, Chief Executive Officer, has the following main powers

+ Ordinary administration of the company, including the activities related to purchase, sales,
trade-in of products, goods and automobiles, real estate and any other asset related to the
company s activities,

« Undersign rent and lease contracts for no longer than a nine year penod establishing the
relative terms and condiions, and arrange the necessary services such as telephone lines,
telex, water, energy, gas, garbage collection by signing the related contracts with the public
administration or private institutions,

« Carry out any type of operation with the offices of the public debt, banking institutions post
offices, administration and finance authornties, customs agents and transport Institutions In
general, governmental authornties whether federal, provincial or local, with ministries and In
general with any public or private office, including the undersigning of any acts or declarations
pursuant to fiscal laws,

« Torepresent the Company before any judicial authonty, before any administration authonty of
the ltahan Republic and foreign countrnies, even with reference to litigations even of fiscal
nature of whatever degree, with reference to appeals, cassation, protests, undersign
conservative and executive acts, and retract from them as necessary, Intervene in bankruptey
procedures, take part in creditor meetings, insinuate receivables from the principal company,
declare the truth, discuss accept sign and refuse agreements, grant to the bankrupt the
benefits foreseen by law, allow penalties to payments, assist in inventories, appoint lawyers,
carry out transactions, appoint arbiters and sign compromises,

* Request, accept and use short term or long term hnes of credit, with no sum Imitation,
according to the necessary conditrons and terms with any banking or credit institution,

* Hire appoint or suspend employees, undersign the related labour contracts, modify or retract
from the same contracts and compromise the related controversies, representing the
Company before the labour unions, nominate and engage external consultants and
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collaborators agreeing the related terms of the contracts, such as the fee, resolve and revoke
the above coniracts,

+ Participate in any public or pnivate biddings — even in temporary groups of similar enterprises
or even through the constitution of mixed enterprises with the scope of acquinng public
investments and ¢an

Draw up, undersign and present all the documentation and any necessary deed for the
Company to participate in the bud,

Confer or receive the related mandate in the event of a temporary group enterpnse
paricipation,

Negotiate and undersign contracts following the awarding of the bid,

Subcontract o third parties within the law, the contracis awarded as well as sigrning
subcontracts with companies, who have been awarded contracts,

* Represent the Company in relation to alt such matters, Issuing the relevant powers of attorney

Mr Oscar Pepino, Executive Officer, has the following main powers

Sign rent and lease contracts for no longer than a nine year penod and establishing the relative
terms and conditions, and arrange the necessary services such as telephone lines, telex, water,
energy, gas, garbage collection by signing the related contracts with the public administration or
private institutions To accept, negotiate and impose in any of the said contracts, deals conditions
clauses, prices, fees, commissions, executing the related payments and obtaning receipt of
payment, resolve, cancel or draw back from any of the said contracts,

Participate in any public or private biddings — even in temporary groups of similar enterprises or
even through the constitution of mixed enterprises with the scope of acquinng public Investments
with an auction value not greater than 10,000,000 00 Euros, and can
* Draw up undersign and present all the documentation and any necessary deed for the
Company to participate in the bid,
¢ Confer or receve the related mandate in the event of a temporary group enterprise
participation,
+ Negotiate and undersign contracts following the awarding of the bid,

+ Subcontract to third parties within the law, the contracts awarded as well as signing
subcontracts with companies, who have been awarded contracts,

Negotiate and undersign contracts for goods and services, and execute any subsequent act useful
for the proper outcome of the contracts for a value not greater than 10 000,000 00 Euros for each
operation from an asset side and 500,000 00 Eures for operations from a lability side,

To represent the Company before any judicial authenty, before any administration authority of the
ltallan Republic and foreign countries, even with reference to hitigations even of fiscal nature of
whatever degree, with reference to appeals, cassation, protests, undersign conservative and
executive acts, and retract from them as necessary, intervene in bankruptcy procedures take part
In creditor meetings, insinuate receivables from the pnincipal company. declare the truth, discuss,
accept, sign and refuse agreements, grant to the bankrupt the benefits foreseen by law, allow
penalues to payments, assist In inventones, appoint lawyers, carry out transactions, appoint
arbiters and sign compromises,

Hire, appoint or suspend employees, undersign the related labour contracts, modify or retract from
the same contracts and compromise the related controverstes, representing the Company before
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the labour unions, nominate and engage external consultants and collaboraters, agreeing the
related terms of the contracts, such as the fee, resolve and revoke the above contracts,

The main proxies empowered to the Executive Director, Mr Claudio Bombonato, with the scope of
supporting the Company in the development of its activities, are the following

- indwidual powers

a) Represent the Company Reply Sp A with external contacts and business negotiations and
authorize the 1ssuing of the related business offer with a imit of 5,000,000 Euros per {ransaction,

b) Negotiate and undersign contracts for goods and services, and execute any subsequent act
useful for the proper outcome of the contracts for a value not greater than 5,000,000 00 Euros for
each operation,

¢) Participate in any public or private bidding — even in temporary groups of similar enterprises or
even through the constitution of mixed enterprises with the scope of acquinng pubhc investments
with an auction value not greater than 5,000,000 00 Euros, and can

- draw up, undersign and present all the documentation and any necessary deed for the Company
to parucipate in the bd,

- confer ar receive the necessary mandate in the case of temporary joint ventures,
- undersign contracts following the awarding of the bid,

- subcontract to third parties within the law, the contracts awarded as well as sigmng subcontracts
with companies, who have been awarded contracts,

d) To carry out in the interest of the Company whatever 1s necessary or convenient within his powers,

- Joint powers, with another Director having the necessary powers, the powers outlined at letters a), b) and
¢)in the case the mits defined above are exceeded

Executive Director, Mr Claudio Bombonato in capacity of Executive Director, has been assigned further
powers related to activities under Network Finance & Secunty within the Reply Group
The main proxies empowered 10 the Executive Director, Mr Dantele Angelucci

. Negotiate and undersign contracts for goods and services, and execute any subsequent act
useful for the proper outcome of the contracts for a value not greater than 10,000,000 00
Euros for each operation from an asset side with parties belonging to the Group and
1,000,000 00 Euros for operations from a liability side with parties not belonging to the Group,

. Sign rent and lease contracts for a maximum value of 1,000,000 00 Euros for no longer than
a nine year period and establishing the relative terms and conditions, and arrange the
necessary services such as telephone hnes, telex water, energy, gas, garbage collection by
signing the related contracts with the public administration or private institutions To accept,
negotiate and impose In any of the said contracts, deals, conditions, clauses, prices, fees,
commissions, executing the related payments and obtaining receipt of payment, resolve,
cancel or draw back from any of the satd contracts,

- Grant guarantees, sureties 1n the hmit of 5,000,000 Euros,

— To signinsurance policies covering risks pertaining 1o 1ts premises, as well as the preducts
owned by or dealt in by the company, as well as automotive insurance policies and other
insurance contracts all subject to a maximum imit of 500 000 Q0 Euros,

»  Request, accept and use bank credit in the short, medium and long term to a maximum of
10,000,000 Euros,

199




. Sign factoning contracts, negotiating conditions, carry out any operation connected including the
sale of receivables, the provision of guarantees warrants for collection, discount operations and
advance payments with commitment of shares all in the hmit of 10,000,000 Euros,

+ To represent the Company before any judicial authoniy, before any administration authority of the
ftalian Republic and foreign countries, even with reference to litigations even of fiscal nature of
whatever degree, with reference tc appeals, cassation, protests, undersign conservative and
executive acts, and retract from them as necessary, intervene in bankrupicy procedures, take
part in creditor meetings, Insinuate receivables from the prncipal company, declare the truth,
discuss, accept, sign and refuse agreements, grant to the bankrupt the benefits foreseen by law,
allow penalties to payments, assistin inventaries, appoint lawyers, carry out transactions, appoint
arbiters and sign compromises,

« To employ, appoint and dismiss employees with annual gross salarnes (iIncluding any suppiemental
compensation) of up to 100,000 00 Euros, to grant salary supplements to employees as a result
of which the beneficianes do not exceed a gross annual salary {including any supplemental
compensation) of 100,000 00 Euros,

» Within the maximurm spending hmit of 300,000 Euros, retract from contracts with middle and senior
managers, compromise the related controversies, representing the Company before the fabour
urions,

e Participate in any pubhc or private biddings — even in temporary groups of similar enterprnses or
even through the constitution of mixed enterprises with the scope of acquinng public investments
with an auction value not greater than 10,000,000 00 Euros, and can

o Drawup, undersign and present ali the documentation and any necessary deed for
the Company to participate in the bid,

o Confer or receive the related mandate in the event of a temporary group enterprise
pariicipation

o Negotiate and undersign contracts following the awarding of the bid,
Subcontract to third parties within the law the contracts awarded as well as signing
subcontracts with companies, who have been awarded contracts,

o Represent the Company n relation to all such matters, 1ssuing the relevant powers
of attorney

The mamn proxies empowered to the Executive Director, Mr Filippo Rizzante

s Negotiate and undersign contracis for goods and services, and execute any subsequent act useful
for the proper outcome of the contracts for a value not greater than 3,000,000 00 Euros for each
operation from an asset side and for operations from a lability side with Reply Group subjects and
a value not greater than 150,000 Euros for each operatton and from a liability side with parties
ouiside the Reply Group,

* Participate in any public or private biddings — even In temporary groups of similar enterprises or
even through the constitution of mixed enterprises with the scope of acquinng publhc investments
with an auction value not greater than 3,000,000 00 Euros, and has the power to

» Draw up, undersign and present all the documentation and any necessary deed for the
Company to participate in the bid,

e Confer or receve the related mandate In the event of & temporary group enterprise
participation,

* Negotiate and undersign contracts following the awarding of the bid,
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+ Subcontract to third parties within the law, the contracts awarded as well as signing subcontracts
with companies, who have been awarded contracts,

* Undersign rent and lease contracts for no longer than a nine year penod 1o a maximum of 150,000
Euros and arrange the necessary services such as telephone hnes, telex, water, energy, gas,
garbage collection by signing the related contracts with the public admiistration or private
Institutions,

= Sign insurance policies covenng nsks pertaining to the premises where the company carnes out
its business, as well as the products owned by or dealt In by the company, as well as automotive
insurance policies and other insurance contracts deemed to be necessary and expedent, all
subject to a maximum limit of 50,000 Q0 Eures

s Hire employees with annual salantes of up to 40,000 Euros modify or retract from work contracts
up to a maximum fee of 100,000 Euros and settle the related disputes, representing the Company
n front of trades urions,

In order to have a better management of the Group activities, the Board of Directors of Reply Sp A and
the Chairman have the possibility to attnibute specific delegation powers to several key managers of the
Group Compantes that can act in name and on behalf and interest of the Company

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As previously stated, the three Drectors members of the Board of Directors qualifying as being
independent are

- Dott Fausto Fortl (Lead Independent Director)

- Prof Mana Letzia Jaccher

- Prof Ennco Macu

The independent Directors constitute as a whole the Remuneratien and Nomination Committee and the
Internal Control and Risks Committee

The same Independent Directors also qualify as, in the capacity of members of the Internal Control and
Risks Committee, members of the Related party transaction committee established by the retated
procedure

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have the same charactenstics as the Independent Directors, in

compliance with paragraph 3 C1 of the 2015 edition of the Corporate Governance Code that provides that

a Director usually does not appear independent in the following events, to be considered merely as an

example and not imited to

a) If hefshe controls, directly or indirectly, the 1ssuer also through subsidianes, trustees or through a third
party, or 15 able to exercise over the 1ssuer dominant influence, or parlicipates 1n a shareholders’
agreement through which one or more persons may exercise a control or considerable influence over
the i1ssuer,

b} If he/she is or has been in the previous three accounting periods a key person of the 1ssuer, of one of
its subsidianes having a significant strategic relevance or of a joint venture of the 1ssuer, or 8 company
that together with others or under special agreements control the 1ssuer or 5 able to exercise a notable
influence,
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¢} If hefshe has, or had in the preceding fiscat year, directly or indirectly (e g through subsidiaries or
companies of which he/she s a significant representative, or In the capacity as partner of a professional
firm or of a consulting company) a significant commercial, financial or professtonal relationshig

— with the 1ssuer, one of its subsidiarnes, or any of its significant representatives,

— with a subject who, Jointly with others through a shareholders’ agreement, controls the 1ssuer, or —In
case of a company or an entity — with the relevant significant representatives,

or 1s, or has been in the preceding three fiscal years, an employee of the abovementioned subjects,

d)} If hefshe receves, or has received i the preceding three fiscal years, from the issuer or a subsidiary or
holding company of the 1ssuer and compensation for participation in commiitees recommended by the
Code, a significant addional remuneration compared to the “fixed” remuneration of Non-Executive
Drrector of the issuer, Including the participation in incentive plans linked to the company’s performance,
Including stock option plans,

e) If he/she was a Director of the 1ssuer for more than mine years in the last twelve years,

f) If he/she is vested with the Executive Director office in another company in which an Executive Director
of the 1ssuer holds the office of Director,

g) if hefshe is shareholder or shareholder or Director of a fegal entity belonging to the same network as
the company appeointed for the external audit of the 1ssuer,

h) If he/she I1s a close relative of a person who 1s in any of the positions listed in the above paragraphs

The Board of Directors, in its entirety, verfied, in the meeting held 23 Apnl 2015 also betng the first meeting
following its renewal and subsequently on an annual basis, with positive results, the independence of the
abovementioned Directors, by drawing on information provided by each of the Directors \n accordance
with the definition provided by the Corporate Governance Code resolving not to apply the critena stated
In point €) in view of the Directors’ authornty reputation and moral statute This was venfied with regards to
Mr Fausto Forti from Apni 2013

The Independent directors shall communicate in due time to the Board of directors any situatton which may
compromise independency and assume the necessary and/or consequent decisions

The Board of Statutory Auditers verifies the proper application of the assessment critena and procedures
adopted by the board in order to annually assess the independence of its members, communicating the
outcome of such controls in its report to the shareholders

During the perodic meetings held in 2015, the Board of Statutory Auditors has not disclosed any situations
which could compromise independency n accordance to the regulations in force

In 2015 1t was not necessary for the independent Directors to convene in specific individuat meetings as

they periodically meet when the internal Control and Risks Committee and Remuneration and Nomination
Committee meetings are convened representing as a whole such bodies
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LEAD INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The Code requires that, in case the Chairman of the Board of Directors 1s the key person in charge of the
running of the company, and even when office 1s held by the person that controts the Company, the Board
must designate a “Lead Independent Director”, that represents a reference and coordination point of the
motions of the Non-Executive Directors and more specifically the independent ones, and cooperate with
the chairman of the Board of Directors 1n order to ensure that Directors receive adequate information in
good ume, for this scope, shauld these circumstances occur, in accordance with article 2 C 3 of the Code,
the role of Lead Independent Director i1s head by the Non-Executive and Independent Director, Mr Fausto
Forti

PROCESSING OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

The Charrman and Chief Executive Officer, Mr Mario Rizzante and the Investor Relator, Mr Riccardo
Lodigian, handle the processing of internal and external communication of confidential company
informaticn in order to avoid the spreading of such information through means not in compliance with law,
provisions or rulings or by means that are not timely, or that are incomplete or inadequate

More specifically, all company communication to outsiders and all press releases are accurately drawn up
and under the strnict supervision of the abovementioned persons that vernfy the correctness and
compliance, in terms of content and means of diffusion, to the existing laws

Furthermore, all employees, and In particular those having a managing position, have been instructed as
to their duties concerning confidentiality of information of a hsted company and must verify that the Chief
Executive officer’s directions are followed

It 15 alsc acknowledges that following the introduction in ltaly of the so-called market abuse” directive
enacted by Community Law 2004 (Law 18, Apnl 2005 no 62) and endorsed by the corresponding Consob
regulation a law was passed concerning the obligation to notify the public about any transactions carried
out by “key persons’ and peopie strictly associated to them in relation to financial instruments of the
company

Consequently, the Internal Conduct Code on Internal Dealing already adopted by Reply S p A ever since
1 January 2003, was abolished as of 1 April 2006 date 1n which the new Consob Regulation no 11971/99
was implemented

In execution of the new regulation of 1 Apnl 2006, a new Conduct Code was implemented amed at
disciplining the flow of information from “Key persons” and “Parties connected to them” with respect to the
Company and the corresponding obligations and informative and communication means with respect to
Consob and to the market related to operations carned out by these parties

The new Corporate Governance Code was enacted starting 1 April 2006 following the Board of Directors’
resolution of 31 March 2006 and revised in 13 November 2015 following the Board of Directors’ resalution
More specifically, the new Corporate Governance Code, with reference to Internal Dealing concerning
operations on financial derwvative instruments 1ssued by Reply Sp A executed by the so called “key
persons”, disciplines the information to provide the Company, Consob and the market when purchase
sales, undersigning and negotiating of shares or financial denvative instruments connected to the shares,
are executed for personal reasons by “Key Persons’, that Is those being close to the Company that can
legiimately negotiate his shares having access to information concerning the parent Company's or its
subsidiaries financial-economic trends

The code comprises nine paragraphs that define the conduct in terms of “internal dealing” and the ways
of applying the same The code disciplines more specifically, the identification of the so called "key" parties,
the types of operations subject to mandatory communication, identification of the party in charge of
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receiving such information and the notification to Consob and to the market, timing and the means of
communication that must be carried out by the so called “Key persons”, all in accordance with the
regulations issued by Consob

Executive Direcior, Mr Danmiel Angelucc, 1s the person responsible for the handiing of confidential
Information

The complete version of the Ccrporate Governance Code s avalable on the Company's website
fwww reply eu — Investors — Corporate Governance)

Aside from the above, the Board of Directors of the Company has not, for the moment, adopted additional
resclutions for the adoption of procedures concerning internal management and external communication
of documents and information concerning the 1ssuer

COMMITTEES WITHIN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Beard of Directors has set up consulting committees, The Internal Control and Risks Committee and
the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Board of Directors during the meeting held on 23 Aprl 2015, decided not to set up an internal
committee to propose candidates for appointment to the position of Director

Considernng the current ownership structure, proven to be concentrated and the governance structure of
Reply S p A and considering the circumstances that thus function 1s already carried out by the shareholders
upon presentation of the lists for renewal of the governing bodies

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

With reference to what has been stated reference shall be made to the Annual Report on Remuneration
published in accordance with Article 123-ter of TUF

The Board of Directors has internally constituted a Remuneration Committee composed of Professor Mana
Letizia Jacchen and Prof Ennco Maci, Non-Executive and Independent Directors and Mr Fausto Fort,
l.ead Independent Director

In 2015 the Remuneration Committee, in order o carry out its duties, met twice (2) with the presence of all
members

In 2016 one (1) meeting has been planned and has already been held

At present, the Committee has not utilized external consultants

In consideration of the current composition of the Remuneration Committee, it has been deemed not
necessary to proceed with the nomination of a President of the committee, also in light of the fact that the
Lead Independent Director already carries out functions in coordinating and programming actmvities for the
Commitiee and relating to the Board

in accordance with art 6 C 6 of the Corporate Governance Code no Director shail parucipate in meetings
of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee in which proposals are submitted to the Board of Directors
relating to his/her remuneration, meetings will be attended by the Chairman of the Board of Statutory
Auditors

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

204



With reference to what has been stated reference shall be made to the Annual Report on Remuneration
published in accordance with Article 123-ter of TUF

Remuneration of Directors not invested with operational proxies, for each year in office, was resolved by
the Shareholders” meeting of 27 Apnl 2012, upon nomination, and equal to 30 000 00 Euros gross of any
withhelding amounts foreseen by law

Remuneration of Directors mvested with special roles, was established by the Board of Directors in ine
with the Remuneration and Nomination Committee, upon proposal of the Committee, authorsed by the
Board of Statutory Auditors

In comphance with articte 20 of the Company by-laws the tolal amount of remuneration to Directors,
including those nvested with strategic powers, can also be determined by the Annual General
Shareholders’ meeting

In compliance with Article 6 C 1 of the Cede of the March 2006 release, article 22 of the Company by-laws
provides the possibility to attnbute a vanable fee to the Directors invested with special powers, as
participation in the profits of the parent Company, and dependent of the economic trends of the Group and
more specifically 1o the Consclidated Gross Margin, which i1s resolved by the Annual General Shareholders’
meeting approving the annual Financial Statements

Such a possibility, that has already been adopted ever since allocation of the 2004 net result (with the
exception of 2009), considering that this alternative does not exclude the distnbution of dividends to the
shareholders, will be once again applied in relation to 31 December 2015

CONTROL AND RISK COMMITTEE

Under the Article 7 P 4 of the Code, the Board of Directors has internally constituted a Control and Risk
Committee composed by Prof Mana Letizia Jaccher and Ennco Macu, Non-Executive and Independent
Directors and Mr Fausto Forti, Lead independent Director

The Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors or another auditor appointed by the aforementioned and
a Director in charge of the internal control system parttcipate in the work of the Control and Risk Commitiee
a written report shall be prepared at the end of each meeting, which will include the Committee’s proposals

In order 1o carry out its duties, the Committee can request information and data from the head of the Internal
Audit function, the Board of Statutory Auditors and the independent auditors

During 2015 the Internal Control and Risks committee met five times and twice (2} in 2016 All the members
were present and examined the following

* Revision of the Impairment Test policy — Impairment {IAS 36),

* The separate Financial Statements and the consolidated Financial Statements of 2014 and 2015,
and half-year report of 2015,

* Update on activities in relation to Law no 262/200% {Legge sul Risparmio} and other related
Internal improvement projects,

s Update on the introduction of the Risk Management system
* |nternal saudit's mandate and work,

* Updating of the Oraganizational Mcdel ex Law Decree 231/2001 and the Code of Ethics,

* Updating of the Related Party transactions procedure
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With reference {o the examination of 1ssues related to the Financial Statements, the Committee requested
the participation, further to that of the Head of internal Audn, but also the presence of Mr Conti on behalf
of the audit firm Reconta Ernst & Young Sp A

The Committee reported five (5) times to the Board of Directors in relation to the actvittes carmed out and
with reference to the adequate functioning of the Internal Control and Risks System

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The internal control and risk management system s a set of rules, procedures and organizational structures
that contribute to safeguarding the company’s assets, the efficiency and effectiveness of business
transactions, the reliability of financial informaton, the identification and monitoring of the main risks, and
the compliance with taws and regulations

The Board of Directors 1s responsible for the system of internal control and nsk management, that, after
recenving the opinion of the Cantrol and Risks Committee, establishes guidelines and a work plan,
evaluating Its adeguacy

In this regard, during the year, the Board of Directors and the Controi and Risks Committee expressed a
favourable judgment regarding the adequacy of the Internal Control System for montonng the level of nsk
consistent with the objectives of the Group

FOREWORD

Reply has put in place a system of internal control and nsk management for financial reporting based on
the “COSO Framework™, defined as a set of rules, procedures and tools designed 1o provide, through an
adequate process of identification, the measurement, management and monitonng, of the major nsks
related to the disclosure of financial data and reasonable assurance of the achievement of corporate
objectives

The objective of the internal control and nsk management system 1s also to ensure that the financial
reporting disclosed within the required timeframe provides a fair and correct representation of operations,
in order to guarantee the reliability, accuracy, truthfulness and timeliness of the financial information

In relation to the Company s objectives, whether business or compliance, aswell as reporting, the Company
has adopted the iollowing key instruments

INSTRUMENTS AND MONITORING BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

« Planning and management controf — Reply S p A has implemented a structured and penodic system in
order to forecast and monitor company activities, aimed at defimng the Company's objectves/strategies
and operational planning through a budget and monioring them by means of 8 monthly review of
performance

- Compuany operational procedure systeni - Reply Sp A has implemented a group of procedures that
regulate internal processes, n order to properly apply the Company directives and to imit the nsks
connected with the achievement of the Company's cbjectives, regulating both the activiies carned out
within individual departments, as well as relations with other entities

+ Risk Management System- Reply Sp A has implemenied a Risk Management system, based on the
Control Risk Self-Assessment mode!, a self-assessment methodology recognized by sector standards
The objective of such procedure is to develop a corporate culture in view of raising risk awareness, through
a continuous and pervasive process, implemented by the Board of Directors and by top management,
aimed at identifying any potental events that might involve the Company as well as pursuing a risk level
that 1s consistent with achieving the Company's objectives
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The methodology used 1s articulated in the following phases

+ I|dentification of objeciives, strategies, critical success factors and the speciic related rnisks that
conflict with the achievement of the objectives,
* Seli-assessment process based on indicators associated with the different risk categones (named
the Key Risk Indicators)
Such system thus enables the identification, measurement, management and control of the Company's
level of exposure to the different nsk factors, considering (i) the probability that the nsk occurs, (n} the impact
of the risk on the Company's objectives, () the overall scope of the nisk, (iv) the Company’s ability to reduce
the impact of the risk on business operations, and (v} possible relationships among the different nisk factors
The procedure provides for monitonng the adeguacy and effective functioning of the internal control and
rnsk management system, as well as its review, to be completed annually, In order to consider the trend of
business operations and the context of reference Such process, coordinated by the Internal Audi
department, provides for the use of questionnaires so that nisk belonging to each profile can be assessed
by Top Management and the Directors of the Company’s vanous departments as well as by the Partners
of the ltalian subsidiaries

Instruments monitoring compliance objectives

« Law 262/2005 on financtal ond accounting reporting — Consistently with what 15 provided by Law
262/2005 on the protection of savings, Reply S p A implemented accounting and administrative processes
relevant for purposes of the reliability of the financial-economic reporting disclosed to the market, that
prowvide for

e Mapping of the main sub-processes within the adrministraiion and relevant accounting procedures,

= Assessment of the adeguacy of the existing controls and ongoing implementation of further controls
in view of comphance and increased reliabiity of the processes considered,

« Drafting of a series of procedures and consequently the drafing of an Administration Procedures
Manual,

o Creation of future control and monitering instruments

- Legisiative Decree 231/2001 — see the relevant paragraph

- Securnty, environment and quality — Reply has implemented a system of procedures and an organizational
structure dedicated to the management of data secunty (also tn view of the laws on Privacy), environmental
protection, the safety of equipment and personnel and the quality of the services carmed out (1ISO
certification 90012008)

+ Other laws and regulations - Monitoring the evolution of laws and regulations and that relative compliance
1$ carried out internally

INSTRUMENTS MONITORING REPORTING OBJECTIVES

- Accounting disclosures - the drafting of accounting disclosures and disclosures in the consclidated and
separate Financial Statements is regulated by the procedures of an administrative-accounting system

- Confidential Information see the relevant paragraph

- Internal Communications — Reply S p A has implemented an internal communications system aimed at
faciitating and promoting internal communications within the Company and the Group, including by means
of a structured management and coordination Commuttee system
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Characteristics of the current internal control and risk management system in relation to the financial

reporting pertod

The approach adopted by Reply in relation 1o the assessment, monitoring and continuous updating of the

internal conirol and nsk management system 1s based on a process that 1s consistent with the “CoSO

Framework™ model, which allows making assessments focusing on areas of higher nsk and/or matenalty,

that 15, where there are nsks of significant errors In elements of the Financial Statements and related

documents

The key componenis of the process are

1 Identfication and evaluation of the source and probabihty of significant errors in elements of financial
reporting,

2 ldentfficaticn of the key controls aimed at covering the risks,

3 Assessment of the adequacy of the above controis with respect Lo the above nsks, enabling ex ante
or ex post identification of potential misstatements in elements of financial-economic reporting,

4 Verffication of the operating effectiveness of controls

Identification of the nsk of misstatements which could have matenal effects on financiof reporting 1s carried
outi through an admmnistrative-accounting risk assessment process, under the supervision of the Director
in charge of drawing up the Financial Statements along with the Group Finance Duector that idenify the
organizational entiies, processes and the related accounting items that are generated, in addition to
specific activities which could potentially generate significant errors According 1o the methodology
adopted by Reply, nsks and related controls are associated with the accounting and business processes
upon which accounting tnformation 1s based

Significant nisks, denufied through the risk ossessment process require definiion and evaluation of
specific controls {*key controls™ that guarantee “coverage , thereby mitigating the risk that financial
reporiing will contain any matenal misstatements

According to international best practice, there are two principal types of existing controls

e controls that operate at Group or subsiciary level, such as ihe delegation of authonties and
responsibiities separation of duties and assignment of privileges and nghts for access to IT systems,

e controls that operate at process level, such as authonzations, reconciliatons, venfications of
consistency, etc This category includes controls referring to operational processes and controls of
accouning closure processes

Such controls can be “preventive” aimed at preveniing errors or fraud which could result in nisstatements

in financial reporting, or “detective” aimed at revealing errors or fraud which has already occurred They

may also be defined as manual or automatic, such as applcation-based controls relating to the technical
charactenstics and configuration of IT systems supporting business actvities

The process of identifying the above nsks and key controls has led to the elaboration of control matrixes
(RCM - “Risk Control Matrix™ that (dentify, for each significani process, the poiential impact on finanoial
reporting

= Risks subsequent to not having fulfilled the "Financial Statement assertion™ contro!l objectives,
(existence, occurrence completeness, rights and obligations, evaluation and accounting, presentation
and disclosures) and other control objectives (such as authorization, segregation of tasks, data secunty,
documentation and iraceability of operations, etc},

« Therelaied best practice” | e CoS0O Framework),
« The standard contro! activiies (key controls) over these processes/procedures and their principal

characteristics (preventive/detective manual/automatic) and the related process owners,
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s The assessment of the aforesaid controls in relation t¢ the adequacy of mitigating the risks
identfied,

* Suggestions to improve shortages identified in the assessment of control actvities

The control activities related to significant processes of financial reporting are fully detaled in the Reply
Group's Manual of admimistration and accounting procedures”, recently updated/integrated pursuant to
Law No 262/2005, commented on below

As Reply S p A's shares are hsted and negotiated on the ltahan stock market, it 1s mandatory for the Board
of Directors to nominate a Director in charge of drawing up the Financial Statements (Nominated Director),
The Director In charge of drawing up the Financial Statements is responsible for setting up adequate
administrative and accounting procedures to prepare the financial information disciosed to the market, and
to monitor the proper application of such procedures The Admmistratton and accounting procedures
manual defines the guidelines that must be apphed within Reply and more specifically with reference to
obligations under art 154-bis of legislative decree 581998 governing company’s Financial Statements and
related attestation obligations

More specifically the Administrative Procedures Manual

+« Defines the roles and responsibilities of the Organizational Units involved in the general activities
of drafting, commumication and control of the financial reporting disclosed to the market,

» Defines the operational means of managing the necessary activities to comply with the
aforementioned legal obligations,

* Introduces, In order to support the drafting of the legal attestations/statemenis required by law of
the Director in charge and the Chief Executive Officer, the obligation, headed by the Compliance
department, to internally attest, through the internal communication processes, the correct
functioning of the Accounting Control System pursuant to Law 262/2005 related to the accounting
processes/flows regulated by such law and which fall within their admimistrative responsibility the
completeness and relisbihty of the mmformation flows, as well as the adequacy and efiective
application of the key controls summarized in the control matnixes

The company processes, the administrative-accounting procedures and the related control matnixes, along
with the list of persons in charge of the operational units enacting the control are subject to periodic
assessmenis and If the case are updated

The administrative-accounting procedures and the related control matrixes are shared with the relative
process-owners, who attest that the controls have been planned and are operational, Admiristrative
Management, with the support of the Internal Audit department, agree upon the implementation of any
corrective measures

The Internal Audit department carries out periodic assessments of the adequacy and effective applcation
of the key controls every six months at the time of the preparation of the Financial Statements and interim
report through audit procedures performed on specific areas determined by the Director in charge of
drawing up the Financial Statemenis

The persons in charge of the relevant administrative and accounting processes pursuant to Law 265/2005
1Issue an attestation letter addressed to the Director in charge of drawing up the Financial Statements,
confirming the effective application of the admimstrative-accounting procedures for which they are
responsible

The audit plan s aimed at identifying a number of processes o be tested In order to cover the major
processes duning the year The audit 1s performed on several Group companies, selected according to
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quantative parameters (matenal thresholds with respect to the consolidated Financtal Statements) and
qualitative ones

In order to carry out the monitoring controls check lists are prepared according to the different processes
being controlled which summarize the ways of testing the key controls included in the Procedures Manual
and in the RCM, the sample t0 be tested and the outcome of the test

Sample testing 1s the critena used and the data and assessments included in the check ists are supported
by the documentation gathered during the monitonng activities, that are an integral part of the same check
hists

The outcome of the tests performed and any suggesitons made concerning the opportunity of
implementing further controls where shortages were identified, are summanzed by the internal Audit
Officer 1n a special report, object of an internal communications flow, and addressed to the Director in
charge of drawing up the Financial Statements and to the Board of Directors

By sharing this document, two flows are activated

« The attestation process addressed externally based on the declarations made by the Director in
charge in compliance with art 154-bis of legislative decree 58/998, in occaston of the drafung of the
annual Financial Statements or the half-year financial report, as descrnibed above

= The mternal process of shanng with the related process owners the outcome of the control
assessmenis, any compensation controls, corrective measures or improvement plan proposais

The Head of the Internal Audit department periodically refers to the Internal Control and Risk Management

Commuttee, the Board of Statutory Auditers and te the Supervisory Body with reference to the activities

carried out within the assessment process of the Internal Control System

11 1 Director in charge of the Internal control system

The Board of Directors, at its meeting of 23 Apnl 2015, confirmed Mr Oscar Pepine as the Director m charge
of the Internal Control and Risk Management system, responsible for maintaining the internal control and
nsk management system in an efficient manner and in conformity wtih what 1s required by the Corporate
Governance Code and allows the Head of the Internal Audit department to carry out his role i accordance
with the cited provisions of the Code

11 2 Head of the Internal Audit department

The Board of Directors, at its meeting of 23 Apnl 2015, appointed Mr Edoardo Dezani as the Head of the
Internal Audit department, upon a proposal of the Director responsible for the Internal Control System, with
the favourable opinion of the Internal Control and Risk Management Committee and having heard the
Board of Statuiory Auditors, who is responsible for controlling that the internal control and nisk management
system 1s operational and adequate

The Head of the Internal Audit department works on the basis of an audit plan approved by the Board of
Directors, which provides for penodic reports on the assessment of the internal control and nsk
management system s adequacy and the rehability of the reporting systems, mncluding the accounting
reporting systems adwvising the members of the Board of Directors, Tap Management, the Internal Control
and Risk Management Committee and the Board of Statutory Auditors of his activities

11 3 ORGANIZATIONAL MODEL PURSUANT TO EX LEGISLATIVE DECREE 231/01

In November 2004 the Company’s Board of Director's approved an "Ethics Code”, which confirmed the
ethucal principles and transparency that guide the Company's internal and external activities, outhring all
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of the fundamental principles required to guarantee legahty, loyalty, and correctness when conducting
Reply's business

In 2007 a project was Initiated to adopt an updated organizationat, management and control Model
pursuant to the provisions of Article 6 of Legislative Decree 2312001 {the “Model”) v relatton 1o the
responsibilities of enterprises, In order to prevent the crimes provided by such Decree The Model was
approved by the Board of Directors at a meeting held 28 March 2008, and was subsequently updated
penodically through resolutions on 1 August 2013 and on 31 July 2015 which was imited to the Ethic Code

The Model adopted, starting from an accurate analysis of the company activities with the chjective of
identifying the potential activities at risk, 1s the set of general principles, rules of conduct, conirol
instruments and organizational procedures, formation and informational activities and disaiplinary system
finahzed at assunng, the prevention of offences

The types of crme contemplated by Legislative Decree No 2312001 and that have been considered at
rnisk for the Group, as outlined in the annex to the Model, are the following

) Relations with the Public Administration,

{n) Enterpnse obligatrons,

() Privileged nformation,

(v Security, prevention, health and hygiene in the workplace,
v) IT cnmes and illegal use of personal data,

{w) Laundering cnimes,

{wu) Offences related to violation of copyright laws

{wvin) Employing citizens from foreign countries

The Model was adopted in 2008 and updated penodically and the latest version 1n 2015 by all the ltalian
Group companies

The Organizational Model of Reply S p A 1s avallable on the company website (www reply eu — Investors -
Corporate Governance)

The Model and the Code of Ethics have been distnbuted to all Group employees and collaborators through
the company Intranet The Code of Ethics 1s aiso supplied to newly hired employees of the Group

The Board of Directors has appointed a Superviscory Body, which has the duty to venfy the correct
functroning of the Model and to update 1t accordingly The Comphance Commiitee refers to the Board of
Directors and to the Internal Control and Risk Management Committee The Supervisory Body, which has
its own internal Regulations, 15 comprised of an outsider (Eng Franco Gianolio) as its President, the Lead
Independent Director (Mr Fausto Fortl), and the Head of the Internal Audit department {Mr Edoardc
Dezan), who will remain in office until the approval of the Financial Statements as at 31 December 2017

The Itallan Group companies have entrusted the function of the Compliance Committee to their Directing
body, which performs the functions of compliance through resources within the Supervisory Body of the
Parent Company, on the basis of specific agreements

in 2015 the Supervisory Body met four (4) imes and referred to the Board of Directors and to the Statutory
Auditors in relation to their activiies and the state of the art concerning the Model

{NDEPENDENT AUDIT FIRM
The Sharehotders General Meeting held on 29 Apni 2010, approved the appointment of Reconta Ermnst &
Young S p A as the Company’s iIndependent auditors for the mne-year period 2010-2018 which includes
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the audit of the separate Financial Statements, the annual consclidated Financial Statements and the half-
year condensed consolidated Financial Statements

Director in charge of drawing up the Financial Statements and lega!l documents

The Board of Directors, at its meeting of 23 Apnl 2015, In accordance with the provisions of Law 262/2005,
confirmed as the Director responsible for drawing up the Company’s Fingncial Statements, upon the”
proposal of the Charrman and Chtef Executive Officer, and with the favourable cpinion of the Board of
Statutory Auditors, Mr Giuseppe Veneziano, based on the expernence matured in such department during
the prewtous three years, as well as In the context of the Group's administrative and management control
areas ever since it was listed, on 25 June 2015, the power of attorney was renewed for the same Director
in order to enable him to carry out the powers attnbuted to him

Pursuant to ariicle 24 of the Company by-laws, the Director must set up adequate administration and
accounting procedures for the drawing up of the statutory Financial Statements, the consolidated
statements and any other financial communication

The Dwrector, together with the other Executive organs, must undersign an attestation, annexed to every
Financial Statement and to any other financial communication In accordance with specific laws and
regulations

With reference to his tasks, the Director responsible for drawing up the Financiol Statements and legal
documenits has the same responsibilities and habilities as those foreseen by law for the Directors, with the
exception of those executed under work relations with the company

Coordination between those involved in the Internal Control and Risk Management System

At present, the company does not consider It necessary to set up formal procedures for coordination
between the vanous parties involved in the Internal Control and Risk Management system, as they already
work in a spint of mutual cooperation

DIRECTORS' INTEREST AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

in complance with the Corporate Governance Code transactions carned out with related parties are
performed In a transparent manner and meet critena of substantial and procedural fairness Directors who
have an interest, even if only potential or indirect with related parties shall

+ Promptly inform the board in detail of the existence of the interest and of the related circumstances,

+ Abandon the board meeting when the 1ssue I1s discussed

The Board of Directors can however, under certain circumstances, allow the Directors to participate and/or
vote

In accordance with Consob regulation no 17221 of 12 March 2010 the Company has adopted, effective 1
January 201, procedures for transaction with related parties (the “Procedures™) to ensure full transparency
and substantial and procedural farrness in transactions with related parties and 1s avallable on the Company
website (www reply eu - Investors — Corporate Governance)

Recalling the definition of Consob Regulation no 17221 of 12 March 2010, the Procedures establish
“significant transactions” those requiring the prior approval of the Board of Directors, with the exception of
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those subject to law and/or the General Shareholders, “minor transactions” {unless pertaining to the
residual category of non significant transactions) those that can be delegated to one or more members of
the Board and “exempt transactions” those faling under the types disciplined by Consob regulations

In the past the Company has exercised the option to apply the procedures related to minor transachions 1o
significant transactions, as 1t 1s a smaller sized company, in the month of May 2015, as the Company no
longer falls under a small sized company and therefore cannot exercise such faculty, the procedure was
modified

Under a procedural perspective, when a transaction with a related party 1s deemed probable, the
Designated Director (that i1s the Director in charge of supervising the Internal Control System) umely
provides the Committee (identified within the Internal Control Committee) written communication with a
brief description of the transaction

if the transaction falis under the significant transaction category, the Commuttee must express a motivaied
and binding opinion concerning the convernence and substantial correctness of the terms and conditions
of the transaction Should the Commiitee express an unfavorable opinion, the Board of Directors could
choose to submit to the General Shareholders’ meeting the decision cencerning the transaction, in this
case, the transaction cannot be approved unless the majonty of the non Related Shareholders express a
favorable vote, provided that they represent at least 10% of the voting share capital

If the transaction falls under the minor transaction category, the Committee submits to the Director its non
binding opinion concerning the convenience and substantial correciness of the terms and conditions of
the transaction prior to the presentation of the contractual proposal, or, In case the dectsion 1s taken by the
Board of Directors of the Company, at least three days prior to the board’s meeting

If the transaction falls under the General Shareholders’ competencies or must be authonized by the latter,
in addition to what has been descnbed above, depending on whether the transaction is significant or minor,
the Committee must express a motivated opinion in relation to the Company’s interest in carrying out the
transaction along with the convenience and substantial correctness of the terms and conditions of the
transaction when the Board of Directors 1s called to approve the motion to submit to the General
Shareholders’ meeting the decision

If, n relation to a significant operation the motton to submit to the General Shareholders’ meeting the
decision 13 approved by the Board of Directors despite an unfavourable opinion expressed by the
Committee, the transaction — having respected the constituent and voting quorum requested for the
adoption of ordinary and extraordinary resolutions by the General Shareholders’ meeting — cannot be
approved unless the majonty of the non Related Shareholders express a favourable vote, provided that
they represent at least 10% of the voting share capital

In case there 1s an urgency, the operation, as long it 1s not competence of the Shareholders and does not
need their authonzation, may be concluded in derogation of the procedures as long as all mandatory
information has been provided to the public and under the condition that

* Should the transaction fall under the Chief financial officer s powers, the Chairman of the Board of
Directors must be informed the reasons of the urgency prior to the transaction being executed,
* The transactions are subsequently approved in a following Shareholders’ meeting,

* The body convening the Shareholders’ meeting must draw up a report with adequate motivations of
the urgency and the Board of Statutory Auditors must refer to the Shareholders their opinion in relation
to the reasonableness of the urgency,

e The report and valuation of the previous point must be made avallable to the public at least 21 days
prior to the Annual Shareholders’ meeting and m accordance with the means set out by Consob,

s Within one day following the Annual Shareholders’ meeting the Coempany must make available to the
public the information regarding the results of the voting
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The Designated Director, on at least 8 quarterly basis, submits to the Committee, to the Board of Directors
and to the Board of Statutory Auditors, a detalled report concerming transactions previously approved by
the Board of Directors and/or carned out by the Chief Executive Officer

The Head of the Internal Control Function penodically carnes out —on an annual basis — control activities
over the fulfilment of obligations of the Procedures herein by the ¢competent company departments and
refers to the Committee and Board of Statutory Auditors

In 2015 the Commitiee for transaction with related parties, Identified within the internal Control Committee
{now called the Control and Risks Committee), met once to amend the Procedure (as disclosed above)

APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

The appointment and substitution of Auditors 1s disciplined by Art 23 (Board of Statutory Auditors) of the
by-laws, and 1s avallable on the Company's website (wwwieply eu under —investors — Corporate
Governance)

Art 23 of the Company by-laws, requiates that

e The lists of the candidates for the office of Statutory Auditor must be deposited at the Company’s
offices at least twenty-five days prior to the date set for the Shareholders’ meeting on first call, at
least twenty-one days prior to the Sharehoiders’ meeting. the list together with the infermation and
declarattons required, shall be made available to the public,

* Only those shareholders that alone or tcgether with others represent 2 5% of the ordinary voting
shares have the nght to present the Lsts or the mimimum minenty voting share required In
accordance with binding laws or regulations, should at the expiry date stated above, only cne list
be presented, or only lists presented by shareholders that are inter-related in accordance with the
regulaticns in force, lists can be presented up to five days following such date In this case the
above threshold 1s reduced by half,

» Statutory Auditors and Alternate Auditers, will be dwvided by one, two, three for the Statutory
Auditors and one, two for the Alternate Auditors, according to the progressive number of auditors
to be appomnted The ratios will then be progressively assigned to the candidates on each list and
ranked in descending order The candidates with the highest ratio will be appointed being that
one Statutory Auditor and Alternate Auditor have been elected from the second list according to
the number of votes obtained and must not be connected, neither indirectly, to the Shareholders
which presented or voted the list which obtained the highest number of votes,

» The list which presents candidates eqguivalent to or superor to three shall be composed by
candidates from both Statutory auditors and Allernative auditors, so as the number of candidates,
n accordance to the regulations of the Report belong also to the less representative genders {if
n excess, it shall be rounded up to the next number),

 If candidates obtain the same percentage of votes, the candidate will be selected from the hist
which has not elected a Statutory Auditor, whereas if all the lists have elected the same number
of candidates, the Statutory Auditor will be chosen from the st which obtained the most votes If
the result in percentage and vote 1s the same the Shareholders vote once more and the candidate
with the tughest percentage will be appointed,
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» The office of President of the Board of Statutory Auditors 1s held by the Statutory Auditor which
was elected from the minority list that obtained the highest number of votes,

e In the event of a Statutory Auditor andfor an Alternative being replaced, and considering the
balance in genders, if the Statuiory auditor shall be replaced in the majonty list, the nomination I1s
carned out without any binds to the hist, if a Statutory Auditor shall be replaced from a minority lhst,
the Board shall substitute with a majornity vote and when counting such votes, the shareholders’
with a majortty shares and shareholders’ connected 1o the prewtous shall not be constdered

With regard to the application of the critenon of allocation 1n connection with the election of auditors, under
Art 148, paragraph 1bis of the TUF Replyto S p A applied the renewal of the corporaie bodies on 23 Apnl
2015

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Board of Statutory Auditors 1s made up of three standing auditors and two alternate auditors and the
Board 1s compnsed as follows

- Mr Cristiano Antonelh President

- Dott ssa Ada Alessandra Garzino Deme Statutory Auditor
- Mr Paolo Claretta — Assandn Statutory Auditor
- Dott ssa Giuliana Monte Alternate auditor
- Mr Alessandro Pedretu Alternate auditor

The Board of Statutory Auditors was appoeinted duning the Shareholders’ meeting on 23 Apnl 2015 based
on the list which was presented by the majority shareholders of Alika St
The office expires on 31 December 2017 with the appreoval of the Financiatl Statements

On an annual basis and upon nomination, the Committee, verfies the requisites of independence of its
members In accordance to Article 144 novies of the Regolamento Emittentl and in comphance to the Code
of Conduct

During the perodic controls carned out in 2015 and 1in comphance to the Code the Committee has not
disclosed any situations which could compromise iIndependence and it has been resolved not to apply the
critenia stated in Article 3C1 letter f) of the Code, in view of member's authonty, even in light of the
resolutions made by the Board of Directors

This was verfied with regards to Mrs Ada Alessandra Garzino Demo from June 2012

Considenng the professional experience of the members of the Statutory auditors, the Company deemed
not necessary 1o proceed with training courses, finalized at providing an adequate knowledge of Reply
S p A's business and norms and regulations

Statutory auditors who have an interest, even If only potential or indirect In a given transaction shall
promptly nform the members of the Board of Staiutory Auditors and the Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the interest and the related circumstances

During the perodic controls carned out in 2015 by the main controlling commitiees, the Statutory Auditors

coordinated its activities with the functions of the Internal Audit, the Internal Controf committee and with
the Supervisory Board
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The exchange of information 1s carried out on a quarterly basis dunng Statutory Auditors meetings and also

through the participation of the President during the the Internal Control and Risk Committee meetings

The table below summarnzes the Board of Statutory Auditors with the main information requested in

accordance with Article 144-duocdecies issued by Consob

Name Office Date of Date of first In office List(*) Independent % of Other
birth nomination from code attendance in offices
meetings of held {1)
Board of
Statutory
Auditors
From1115%
E:fc‘)'::ﬁ: President 1951 29/04/2009 M X 100% .
1o 311217
From 1115
Ada Alessandra  giatwtory Auditor 196 10/06/2003 M X 100% 16
Garzing Demo
o 311217
) 01/01/2003 From 1115
Paole Elasraet:ja Statutory Auditor 1954 M X 100% 32
ssandn ") o 311217
From 1115
Giuhana Monte A"e;”?j“[" ¢ 1964 22/07/2013 M X NA NA
uaito o 311217
Fromi115
Alei"s;(;t;rlz A'*e;“i‘j‘l'l‘g 1969 29/04/2009 M X NA NA
u o 31217
Key

Wm Mimeonty kst mAmsnonty list

m Where apphcable a 4st of sll posibons held has been snnered accordng 0 An 144-quinquies decies of RE as replaced by Resalution no 17326 of13 May 200

{"}the last guorum for the presentaton of tne ksts reached 2 5% Nominabon wal unammous and reached lavomble votes equal to 59 139% of the shace capital

{1 office not held o0 a Contruous bests
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Following i1s a brief description of personal and professional charactenstics of the members of the Statutory
Auditors of the Company

CRISTIANO ANTONELLI prestdent of the board of the statutory auditors
Cnstian Antonell 1s a professor of political economics, at the Economic Department Salvatore Cognettl de

Martus at the University of Tunn, Director of BRICK (Bureau of Research in Innovatton Complexity and
Knowledge) at Carlo Alberto College He Is the editor of the 'Economics of Innovation and New Technology'
magazine In the past he was Director at the Economic Department Salvatore Cognetti de Martis at the
University of Turin (2004-2010) His education background includes a Master in Economuics at ISTAO of
Ancona During 1978 and 1979 he was a junior economist of the Science and Technology department of
the OCSE and Rockefeller Fellow 1n the Sloan School of Massachusetts Institute of Technotogy from 1983
t0 1985 He has taught inthe universities of Sassari, Calabria, the Polytechnic of Milan and in the universities
of Manchester, Nice, Lyon, Lumiere, Aix-en-Provence, Paris Xlil and Pans Xil During the academic year
1999-2000 he taught in the unmiversity of Dauphine Pans IX In the past Mr Antonell was member of the
Board of Directors of Telecom Italia in the two-year period 1998-99 and of Pirell&C for the three-year period
2008-2011, Member of the Science Committee of Confindusina in 1999 and 2000, Techno-scientific
Committee of ENEA from 2000-2004 Furthermore he hetd office as Chairman of ICER (international Centre
for Economic Research from 2008 to 2011 and was Vice-president of the International Schumpeter Scciety
from 1999 to 2004

ADA ALESSANDRA GARZINO DEMO STATUTORY AUDITOR
Mrs Ada Alessandra Garzino Demo graduated in Economics at the University of Turin in 1987 She has

been registered on the Registry of Qualified Accountants and Bookkeepers ever since 1991 and the
Registry of Auditors ever since 1995 She works as a Charted accountant and provides fiscal and corporate
consuliancy for medium-large companies as well as Multinationals Mrs Ada Alessandra Garzino Demo I1s
specialized 1n Telecommunication tax matters and fiscal planning She covers the role of both Statutory
Auditor and president in other companies

PAOLO CLARETTA ASSANDRI STATUTORY AUDITOR
Mr Paolo Claretta Assandr received a graduate degree In Economics and Commerce at the University of

Tunn In 1978, has been registered on the Registry of Qualfied Accountants and Bookkeepers ever since
1981 and the Registry of Auditors ever since 1983 She works as a Charted accountant in Turin and provides
fiscal and corporate consultancy for medium-large companies as well as Multinationals

In 2015 the Statutory Auditors met six (6) times

The compensations paid to the Statutory Auditors 1s disclosed in the Annual Report on Remuneration
pursuant to Article 123-ter of TUF

Legisiative decree 39/2010 assigns the Board of Statutory Auditors the role of the committee for control
and nsks and audits responsible for supervising (1) the financial disclosure process, (i) the effectiveness of
the internal control, internal audit and nsk management systems, {1} the audit of the annual separate and
consolidated accounts, (Iv) the independence of the independent auditors
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board of Directors ensures that a person in charge of relations with investors 1s 1dentified and
pericdically assesses the need to constitute a structural function within the company

With a resclution of the Board on 23 Apnl 2015 Mr Riccardo Lodigiani, in charge of relations with
institutional investors and with shareholders (Investor relator) in order to ¢create an ongoing dialogue with
the market

The abovementioned person must exclusively and perodically inform the Chairman and the designated
member of the board of his activities

On the Company's webstie (www reply eu, investors — Corporate Governance), the following documents
are available

» Company by-laws,

= Annual calendar for 2016 of company events,

+ Organizational Model pursuant ex art 6 Legislative Decree no 23101 and the Code of Ethics,
= Code of conduct for internal dealing,

s Corporate Governance Code,

« Annual Report on Remuneration,

* Procedures on Related party transactions

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

The company encourages and facilitates the participation at the Annual General Meetings prowiding any
necessary Information or explanation in order to guarantee a smooth and conscientious participation of the
Sharehoiders

The Company, with the resolutton by the Board of Directors on 26 October 2010 and by the Extraordinary
Shareholders meeting on 28 Apnl 201, has introduced the amendments to the Company's by-laws
required by Legislative Decree no 27 of 27 January 2010 enacting the Community Directive no
2997/36/EC n relation to the shareholders’ rights in isted companies

Art 12 of the Company by-laws establishes that shareholders are entitled to intervene duning the General
Shareholders’ meeting if they are shareholders at the end of the seventh accounting day of open markets
preceding the General Shareholders’ meeting and have provided wnitten notice pursuant to art 2370,
paragraph two of the ltallan Civit Code

The Company can designate for each general meeting one or two persons to whom confer the voting
rights with specific instructions for one or more proposals on the agenda

The designated persons, the means and terms of the conferred delegation are communicated on the
notice calling the general meeting

The company does not deem necessary the adoption of an Annual General Meeting legisiation {amed at
regulating the running of the meetings}, as the Company’s by-laws provide adequate provisions concerning
the matter

At the Ordinary General Shareholders’ meeting held on 23 Aprl 2015, Seven (7) Directors out of nine (9)
spoke On that occasion, the Board of Directors reported on its activiies during the year 2014
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OTHER CORPORATE GCVERNANCE PRACTICES

System of the Company's operational procedures — in order to properly apply the Company's regulations
and to reduce nsks connected with achieving the Company’s objectives, Reply S p A has adopted a set of
procedures that regulate internal processes, governmg both the actvities carned out by the single
depantments as well as relations with other entities, Reference 15 made in this regard to what has been
described in the paragraph on the Internal Contro!l and Risk Management System

CHANGES SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR END UNDER REVIEW

Foliowing the year end close no significant changes have been made to the structure of the Corporate
Governance, other than what has been disclosed above

Turin, 15 March 2016
For the Board of Directors

The Chairman
Mr Mario Rizzante
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1 Introduction

This document {“The Annual Report on Remuneration”, the “Report”} was prepared and approved by the Board
of Directors an 15 March 2016 according to Articte 123-ter of Legislative Decree No 581998 (“TUF") and Article 6
of the Corporate Governance Code, the July 2015 versian, approved by the Corporate Governance Committee
established at Borsa ltaliana S p A

The Report describes the Remuneration policy adopted by Reply Sp A (hereon “Reply”} with reference to
remuneration to (i} members of the Board of Directors and in particular to Executive Diwectors and Directors
invested with special charges (i) Directors with Strategic Responsibility

2 Section |

2.1 Drafting, approval and implementation of the Remuneration Policy

The corporate bodies and persons responsible for drafting, approving and implementing the remuneration Policy
are the following

¢« Shareholders' meeting,

» The Board of Directors,

s The Remuneration and Nominating Committee,
« Executive Directors,

¢  Statutory Auditors

Shareholders’ meeting

With regard to remuneration, the Shareholders’ meeting

» Determines the remuneration of each member of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee, if
appointed In accordance with Article 2364(1) (3} of the Itakan Cwil Code, and shall establish, a total amount
to alt the Board This amount 15 established in a concrete manner as to attract retain and motivate the
staff invested with high professional skills necessary to manage the Company with success,

¢ Determines the participation In the profit of the present Company, dependent on the Gross consolidated
margin, to Directors invested with spectal charges in accordance with the Company bylaw,

« Expresses its advisory, non-tinding vote on the Annual Report on Remuneration approved by the Board
of Directors, upon the proposal of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee,

s Recewves adequate information with regards to the remuneration policy,

«» Resolves on the Remuneration Plans based on shares or other financial instruments for Directors,
employees and collaborators, including Managers with strategic responsibilities pursuant to Article 114-
bis TUF
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors

Establishes a Remuneration and Nominating Committee from among its members One member must
have adequate knowledge and experience with regards to financial and remuneraton policy, the persons
competence is evaluated by the Board when he/she 15 elected,

Determines, upon a proposal of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee, the remuneration policy
for members of the administrative bodies The remuneration policy defines guidelines which all company
members involved must follow as to determine the remuneration of Executive Directors, Directors
invested with special charges and Directors with strategic responsibilities Such guidelines are illustrated
in the present document,

Approves the Annual Report on Remuneration which shall be submitied to the General Shareholders’
meeting,

Upon the proposal or opinion of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee determines, based on the
guidehnes of the Remuneration Policy, and In any case upon consuliing the Board of Statutory Auditors,
the remuneration of the Executive Directars and other Directors with specific responsibilities, prepares,
with the assistance of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee, the remuneration plans based on
the allocation of shares or other financial instruments and submits them to the approval of the
Shareholders’ meeting in accordance with Article 144-tis TUF,

Carnes out the Remuneration plans based on shares or other financial instruments delegated by the

Shareholders’ meeting

Considenng the current structure of the Board of Directors and the shares held in Reply Sp A, by various

members, no succession plan which regulates the substitution of Executive Directors or Directors with Strategic

position or those who have ceased has been implemented In particular, the substtution of an Executive s carmed
out (n accordance o Article 2386 of the Italian Civil Code, in which the Board of Directors choose the Executive
Whereas the substitution of Directors with strategic responsibility 15 agreed upon by top management of the

company

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee

Makes proposals and advises the Board of Directors in relation to the remuneration to Executive Directors
and other Directors with special charges, and furthermore advises on the identffication and fixing of
adequate performance objectives that enable the calculation of the vanable components of the
compensation,

Makes proposals to the Board of Directors on the remuneration policy,

Assists the Board of Directors in drawing up and implementing remuneration plans based on shares or
other financial nstruments,

Penodically evaluates the adequacy and correct apphication of the remuneration policy, making use of
information provided by the Executive Directors when the evaluation 1s referred to a Director with
strategic responsibility,

Provides the Board of Directors’ opinions and proposals about remuneration

222



« Monitors implementation of the decisions adopted by the Board of Directors regarding remuneration,
evaluating that the performance target has been achieved,

» Refers to the Shareholders’ the methods of the Committees functions, for such reason, the presence of
the Charrman of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee or another member of the Commuttee s
recommended at the annual Shareholders’ meeting,

» 11115 deemed necessary or appropriate an external consultant with expertise in remuneraton policy can
be utiized to carry out such task, the independent expert must not carry out any form of actvity in favour
of Reply Human resource department, shareholders’, Executive Directors and Directors with strategrc
responsibiities The independence of external consultants I1s venfied by the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee before they are appointed

On 27 April 2012, Reply S p A 's Board of Directors appoinied the members of the Remuneration and Nominating
Committee As at the date of approvai of this Report, the Remuneration and Nominating Committee was
comprised as follows

Fausto Forti, Chairman of the Committee and Lead Independent Drrector,
Maria Letizia Jacchen, Independent Director,

Ennco Maci, Independent Director

The Chairman of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee has gained adequate knowledge and expenence
on financial issues and remuneration policy given his professional experience charactenzed by operational
responsibility in large companies

In 2015 the Remuneration Committee did not rely on the support of Independent remuneration policy experts to
draw up the Remuneration Policy

For further information regarding the operation and activities of the Remuneration and Nominating Commuttee for
the financial year ended as at 31 December 2015, see the 2015 Report on Corporate Governance and Ownership
Structure

Executive Directors

Executive Directors

* Provide the Remuneration Commuttee all useful information so to evaluate the adequacy and concrete
application of the Remuneration Polcy, with particular regard to the remuneration of Directors with
strategic responsibilities,

» Establish the remuneration to Directors with Strategic Responsibilities based on the guidelines set out
by the Remuneration Policy
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Statutory Auditors

The Board of Statutory Auditors has the task of providing opinion In relation to the Remuneration Policy, in
particular the Board provides opinions on the remuneration of Executive Directors and Directors invested with
specral charges, In expressing ther opinion the Board venfies the consistency of the proposals with the
Remuneration Policy

2 2 Remuneration Policies

The 2016 Remuneration Policy has remained substantiaily unvaried wih respect to 2015, in view of the
assessments made by the Remuneration and Nominating Committee at the meeting of 15 March 2016 and
subsequently, on the same date, by the Board of Directors Moreover, the Board of Directors at the meeting held
on 15 March 2016, deemed it was not necessary ic modify the Remuneration Policy adopted the previous year
and to confirm the policies for 2016

The Remuneration Policy 1s intended to ensure the Company has the ability to attract, retain and motivate
individuals who have professional skills and expenence to pursue the achievement of the Company's objectives
The Policy 15 also instrumental In ahgnming the interests of the Company's management with those of the
sharehclders, pursuing the primary objective of the creation of value over & medium-long term penaod, through
the creation of a strong link between remuneration and indmdual performance

2 3 Remuneration of Directors

With reference to 2015 the Directors were as follows

Mario Rizzante Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Tatiana Rizzante Chief Executwve Officer

Oscar Pepino Executive Director

Claudic Bombaonato Executive Director

Daniele Angelucci Executive Director

Flippo Rizzante Executive Director

Fausto Forti Non-Executive Director, Independent and Lead Independent Director
Marco Mezzalama () Non-Executive Director and Independent
Carlo Alberto Carnevale Maffé () Non-Executive Director and Independent
Mana Letizia Jaccher 3 Nen-Executive Director and Independent
Enrico Macii (4 Non-Executive Director and Independent

{  Office held from V12015 = 23/4/2015
{2)  Office held from 1/1/2015 — 237472015
{3)  Office held from 23/472015 - 31122015
{4y  Office held fram 23/472015 - 211272015
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In 2015 remuneration of Dyectors not invested with operational proxies 1s as follows

» 30,000 Euros annually for each member of the Board, as resolved by the Shareholders’ meeting of 23
April 2015
In 2015 the remuneration of Board members of the Supervisory Body — with reference to Mr Fausto Forti — was
determined as follows

« 1000 Euros for each
partictpation n the
Supervisory Body
meeting

A specific remuneration component In relation to the participation in the Committee meetings or to the execution
of specific engagements not related to operational proxies 1s not {oreseen, being the beneficiaries of the
compensation only the Executive Directors that are also members of the Commitiee, the compensation to the
Directors already takes Into consideration the commiment denving from the participation tn the Committee
meetings

In ine with best practices, Non-Executive Directors are not ehgible for any vaniable form of compensation linked
to the achievement of financial targets

In ine with best practice, the Company has an insurance policy on third party hiatuity for damage wnflicted by the
Board of Directors (apart from the General Manager, but also Directors with Strategic Responsibilities) in
performing their duties, with the aim of safeguarding the beneficianes and the Company from any connected
indemnity, excluding cases of malice or gross negligence

2 4 Remuneration of Executive Directors

Under a legal and statutory perspective, remuneration of the Company’s Execuiive Directors are established in
accordance with

e Article 2389(3) of the lkahan Civil Code — "The remuneration of Directors invested with spectal
responsibilities in conformity with the by-laws s determined by the Board of Directors after consultation
with the Board of Statutory Auditors”,

e Article 22(2) of the by-laws —'Directors invested with special responsibilities are entitled to share i the
profits of the Company, dependent on the Consolidated Gross Operating Margin, whose quantification 1s
established annually by the Shareholders’ meeting at the ume the Financial Statements are approved”

From the perspective of the Remuneration Policy, the remuneration of the Executive Directors s generally
comprised of the following elements

. A gross annual fixed component,

. A vanable component iinked to general predetermined, measurable objectives connecied 1o the
creation of value over a medium penod of ume Establishing a twelve month imeframe should allow targets to be
determined that are suitably consistent with the trend of the market in which the Company operates, and 15
consistent with the objective of aligning the interests of the Executive Directors with the pursuit of the creation of
value for shareholders in the medium-long term, considenng that, In the Company's case, almost all of the
Executive Directors are aiso shareholders of the Company
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The payment of the variable compensation 1s deferred in respect of when it has matured of approximately four to
five months which enables a proper nsk management within the Remuneration Policy of the Company

The Board of Directors keeps in mind two factors when determuning remunersiion and its single components (i
the specific proxy that each Executive Directers holds and/or (i) the function and the role actually carned out by
each Executive Directar within the Company, thus ensuring that the vanable componentis coherent with the tasks
assigned

Under an accounting perspective, the remuneration of the Executive Directors I1s recorded in the Financial
Statements In the year in which the services are rendered both for the fixed gross annua!l component and the
variable compenent, even theugh payment 1s made through profit sharing in accordance with Article 22 of the
Company By-laws, This Is consistent with the International Financial Reporting Standards IAS/IFRS 1in as much as
profit-sharing 1s considered to al! effects as part of the remuneration and therefore the relative al location 18
recorded in the Financial Statements in the year in which the Executive Directors’ services are rendered, for such
reason, the proposal to attnbute profit-shanng 1s the object of resolution by the Board of Directors at the same
time as approval of the draft annual Financial Statements

With reference to 2015,

» During the meeting of 13 March 2015 the Board of Directors approved resolutions on the Remuneration Policy
for 2015, upon the proposal of the Remuneration Committee and confirmed on May 14 2015 by the newly
nominated controling body,

« The Shareholders’ meeting of 23 Apnl 2015 approved, with a non-binding resoiution, the Remuneration Report
containing the Remuneration Policy,

e the Board of Directors , upon proposal of the Remuneration Committee , at its meeting on 14 May 2015 adopted
the resolutions granting the fixed component of the Executive Directors and established the methods for
determining the vanable component of the remuneration of Executive Diwectors for 2015 through the
recognition of a profit sharnng pursuant to art 22 of the Bylaws , at its meeting on March 15, 2016 , at the
proposal of the Remuneration Commitiee the Board carned out a performance audit and has made proposals
for profit shaning to be submitted to the General Shareholders’ meeting, together with the relevant breakdown,

e On 21 April 2016 the Shareholders’ meeting shall be called to approve the proposal regarding the vanable
component of remuneration as descrnbed

With reference to 2016, remuneratton 1s based on the following cntena
« The consistency between the elements as 1o determine remunerauon and the cbjectives,

* The correct balance between the fixed and vanable component based on the strategic objectives and
nsk management policy of the Company, keeping in mind the field in which it operates and the
charactenstics of the activities concretely carried out,

+ The weight of the vanable component I1s approximately 60% of the whole remuneration package, being
understood that the fixed component must be sufficient to compensate the performance of Executive
Directors in case the vanable component 1S not paid out when performance cobjectives established by
the Board of Directors are not achieved,

« Pre-established performance targets, 1e financial results or other specific objectives linked to the
payment of the vanable component, are measurable and linked to the creation of value for shareholders
over the medium to long term,
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+« The relationship between the variance of the results achieved and the vanance of the remuneration 15
guaranteed through scaling of the vanable compensation up to a maximum fimit related to a scale of
objectives,

+ Several month deferral of payment of the varable component with respect to when the compensaton
matures in order to enable a proper risk management of the company within the Remuneration Policy
requirements

with reference to the vanable components of the remuneration for the Executive Directors, the Remuneration
Committee proposes objectives and, during the subsequent year, performance checks in order to verfy whether
the objectives established the previous year were achieved

The criteria utihized n defining remuneration for Executive Directors for 2015 was established by the Board of
Cirectors and 1s as follows

s Accrual Is subordinated to the achievement of one of the accessible terms represented by
the capacity of the profits of the Company,

« Fixing of the annual margin objective represented by the Consolidated Gross Operating
Margin as shown in the consolidated Financial Statements, with the identificaticn of a
minimum threshold and maximum threshold,

+ Fixing of further objectives for the Executive Directors invested with special charges In the
Company,

¢ Quantification of the bonus up to a pre-established maximum amount hnked to the
achievement of assigned objectives,

= Allocation, in general, of the vanable profit-shanng component by dividing it among those
entitled to receive it, related to the Consclidated Gross Operating Margin to which Directors

invested with special responsibiliies are entitled pursuant to Article 22 of the Company By-
laws,

The Executive Directors can also be granted other types of benefits typical of the office held and recognized
within the Group to Directors having strategic respensibilities and/or managers {1 e company car)

At present, Direclors’ severance indemnity (TFM) has been allocated for Executive Directors and Managers with
strategic respensibilities having analogous charactenstics to employee severance indemnity (TFR) pursuant to
Article 2120 of the lalian Cwil Code to which the Group s ltalian managers are legally enitled

The Board of Directors can propose to the Shareholders the adoption of the incentive mechanisms through the
attribution of financial options At present no incentive plans of this kind have been established

The Company deems that the Remuneration Policy is consistent with the pursuit of the leng-term interests of the
company and 1ts sk management

2 5 General Managers and Directors with Strategic Responsibihity

As at 15 March 2016 the role of General Manager 1s non existent in the Company’s organization

Four Directors have Strategic Responsibibity at 15 March 2016

227




Remuneration to Directors with Strategic Responsibilities 15 composed by a fixed and vanable component and
established with the same principles and cntena described above for the Executive Directors For further
information see paint 2 4 Remuneration to Executive Directors Direciors with Strategic Responsibilities have the
right to severance indemnity (TFR} ex Art 2120 of the ltalian Civil Code Furthermore some Directors who cover
strateqic posiions In subsidianes have also been assigned post termination treatment determined in the same
manner as severance indemnity

The remuneration to the Director in charge of drawing up the Financial Statements and the Internal Audit manager
are in line with the tasks assigned

2 6 Cessation of office or termination of employment

At the date of the present Report no allowance has been set 1n event of cessation of office or termination of
employment on behalf of Executives and Directors with Sirategic Responsibilities apart from what s provided by
the ex law and/or the Collective labour agreement in case the persons have a dependent work contract

Considenng the current structure and how the vanable component of remuneration 1s determined, of the Directors
and Directors with strategic responsibility, In the case of cessation of office due to madequate results achieved,
and If remuneration has been paid, no return mechanisms have been defined
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33 Shares held by the members of the Board of Directors and Executives with Strategic Responsibility 1n
companies with histed shares and its subsidianes

Shares held by the members of the Board of Directors

First name and Office Shares held No of shares No of shares No of Na of shares
Surname held at bought shates held at
31122018 sotd 31122015
Mario Rizzante Chairman and Chief Executive Officer ReplySpa 11381 1381
Tatiana Rizzante Chief Executive Officer Reply SpA 16734 15 734
Oscar Pepino Executtve Director Reply SpA 13710 1458 12 252
Claudio Bomboenato Executive Director Reply SpA 17 500 - . 17500
Filippo Rizzante Executive Director Reply SpA 3400 - 3400
Danlele Angelucc Executive Director Reply SpA 145 240 - 6200 139090
Fausto Forti Non- Executive Director and Independent Reply SpA - - - -
C A Camevale Maffe Non Executive Director and Independent Reply SpA - - - -
Marco Mezzalama Non Execulive Director and Independent Reply SpA - - - -
Mana Lenzia Jacchen Non- Executive Director and Independent Reply SpA -
Enrico Maci Non Executive Director and Independent Reply SpA
Cristiano Antonedli President of the Board of Statutary Auditors Reply SpA . -
Ag::::zs;::: Statutory Auditar Repty Sp A -
Paolo Claretta Assandrn Statutory Audrtor Reply SpA -

At 3112/2015 the following members of the Board of Directors hold shares in the Company

s Mano Rizzante and Oscar Pepino hold 51% and 18% respectively of Alika Srl, a mited hability company
with headquaners at C so Francia 110, Tunn

e Aika Srl holds no 4,936,204 Reply Sp A shares, equivalent to 52 7775% of the Company's share

capital

Shareholdings of Directors with strategic responsibility

Number of Dilrectors having strategic Sharesin No Of shares held No of shares No of shares sold No Of shares held
responsibllity at 31/12/2014 bought at 31/12/2015
4 Reply Sp A 399375 83017 316 358
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Defintions

In the present document the definitions of the words in upper case I1s as follows
“Board” means all the Board members of Reply, whether Executive Non- Executive, Independent, etc,

“"Executive Directors™ means, In accordance with the critena of the Corporate governance Code for Listed
Companies

. Directors of Reply who have been nominated as Chief Executive Directors of the Company or subsidianes
which has strategic importance,

. Members of the Reply Board of Directors with management duties 1n the Company or subsidianes which
has strategic impontance,

. The Directors of Reply, who may also be the Charman of the Company, holder of specific individual
proxies or having a specific role in the development of the company strategies,

“Other Directors invested with special charges* means Directors who are assigned special charges (e
Chairman, Vice- Chairman), different from the Executive Directors,

“Executives with Strategic responsibilities” means those who have power and responsibility in — directly or
indirectly- planning, managing and controlling the activities of the Company, in accordance with the Consob
Regulation no 17221/2010 regarding Related Parties

r
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